
NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days 
in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

 

 
Meeting of the 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 

SEPTEMBER 10, 2007 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Submitted By 

      The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us


 

 

 -  -  

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 

FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 

This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 

Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 

Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 

Goals 
 

I. Enhance the livability and safety of the community  
II. Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of        

City government 
III. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment 
IV. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally 
V. Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public 

needs 
VI. Emphasize regionalism and incorporate creativity into the annual 

strategic planning process 
 

As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 

 



NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of 
the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
      

  

 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  AGENDA 

September 10, 2007 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

  

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Jack L. Mannschreck - Big Beaver 

United Methodist 1 

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

ROLL CALL 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 No Presentations 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Rezoning Application (File Number: Z-727) – Office Use, West Side of Rochester 
Road, South of De Etta – 6493 Rochester, Section 3 – R-1B to O-1 1 

C-2 Concept Development Plan Approval – Big Beaver Place Planned Unit 
Development (PUD-008), North Side of Big Beaver, West of John R, Section 24 – 
Currently Zoned R-1D (One Family Residential) District 2 

C-3 Concept Development Plan Approval – The Oasis at Centennial Park Planned 
Unit Development (PUD-006), South Side of Long Lake and West Side of John R, 
Section 14 – Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District 3 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us


 

 

 -  -  

C-4 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 230) – Articles X and 
XVIII – Wireless Communication Towers on School Property in the R-1A through 
R-1E (One Family Residential) and C-F (Community Facilities) Districts 4 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 4 

D-1 No Postponed Items 4 

CONSENT AGENDA: 4 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 5 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 5 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 5 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: 5 

a) National Save a Life Month – September, 2007 ................................................... 5 
b) National Autism Awareness Month – September, 2007 ....................................... 5 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 5 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – 
HAVEN Program .................................................................................................. 5 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – 
Troy Youth Assistance .......................................................................................... 6 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10:  Travel Authorization and Approval to 
Expend Funds on Council Members’ Travel Expenses – National League of 
Cities (NLC) Congress of Cities & Exposition ....................................................... 6 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder Contract 07-7 – 
Northwood,  Maple to Maplelawn Mill and Overlay ............................................... 6 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – 
Common Ground .................................................................................................. 6 

E-5 Application for Transfer of SDD and SDM License for Atlas Blue Sky, Inc. 7 

E-6 Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions – Congregation Shir Tikvah 7 

E-7 Sole Source – East Jordan Iron Works – Complete Hydrant and Valve Repair 
Parts 7 



 

 

 -  -  

E-8 Request for Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit, John 
R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard, Project No. 
02.204.5 Parcel #50 – Sidwell #88-20-02-228-028 – Glenda M. McDowell 8 

E-9 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Regrading and 
Temporary Construction Permit, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road 
to South Boulevard, Project No. 02.204.5 Parcel #61 and #62 – Sidwell #88-20-
01-300-02 and #88-20-01-300-001 – The Raymond E. Seguin Revocable Trust 8 

E-10 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement – 4265 and 4305 Rochester Road – 
Sidwell #88-20-15-426-053 and -054 – Aurelia A. Kwitt Revocable Living Trust 9 

E-11 Private Agreement for Mitchell’s Ocean Club Restaurant – Project No. 07.923.3 9 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 9 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 9 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Downtown 
Development Authority b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Animal Control Appeal Board; Ethnic Issues Advisory 
Board; Historic District Commission; Historical Commission; Municipal Building 
Authority; and Parks & Recreation Board 10 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 12 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 12 

a) Street Vacation (File Number SV-32-B) – Lincoln Drive, West of John R, 
South of Big Beaver, Zoned PUD #7, Section 26 – September 17, 2007 .......... 12 

G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 12 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 12 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 12 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 12 



 

 

 -  -  

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 12 

REPORTS: 13 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 13 

a) Downtown Development Authority/Final – May 16, 2007 ................................... 13 
b) Youth Council/Final – May 23, 2007 ................................................................... 13 
c) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – June 11, 2007 ............................................. 13 
d) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – July 17, 2007 .................................................. 13 
e) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – July 24, 2007 .............................................. 13 

f) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – August 1, 2007 .................................... 13 
g) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – August 13, 2007.......................................... 13 

h) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – August 14, 2007 ...................................... 13 
i) Planning Commission/Draft – August 14, 2007 .................................................. 13 
j) Planning Commission/Final – August 14, 2007 .................................................. 13 
k) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – August 21, 2007 ............................................. 13 

l) Youth Council/Draft – August 22, 2007 .............................................................. 13 
m) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – September 4, 2007 ................................. 13 

J-2 Department Reports:  None Submitted 13 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 13 

a) Letter to Officer Harrison from Kym Worth in Appreciation of the Troy Police 
Hockey Clinic ...................................................................................................... 13 

b) Letter of Appreciation to Tim Richnak from Mary Ann Bernardi Commending 
the Efforts of the Public Works Staff .................................................................. 13 

c) Letter of Appreciation to Ann Blizzard from Mary Zimmerman Regarding the 
Professional and Kind Aquatic Center Staff ....................................................... 13 

d) Letter of Thanks to Jennifer Lawson and Steve Vandette from Sandshores 
Area Lake Residents and Lake Charnwood Property Owners Association 
Regarding the Your Lake and You Publication ................................................... 13 

e) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Judith Ryder Commending Officer 
Haddad ............................................................................................................... 13 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 13 

J-5  Calendar 13 

STUDY ITEMS: 13 

K-1 Possible Trends 13 



 

 

 -  -  

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 14 

CLOSED SESSION: 14 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 14 

ADJOURNMENT 14 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 14 

Monday, September 17, 2007 ................................................................................. 14 
1. Street Vacation (File Number SV-32-B) – Lincoln Drive, West of John R, 

South of Big Beaver, Zoned PUD #7, Section 26 ............................................... 14 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 14 

Monday, September 17, 2007 Regular City Council .............................................. 14 
Monday, October 1, 2007 Regular City Council .................................................... 14 
Monday, October 15, 2007 Regular City Council .................................................. 14 

Monday, November 12, 2007 Regular City Council ............................................... 14 
Monday, November 19, 2007 Regular City Council ............................................... 14 

Monday, December 3, 2007 Regular City Council ................................................. 14 
Monday, December 17, 2007 Regular City Council ............................................... 14 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 10, 2007 

 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Jack L. Mannschreck - Big 

Beaver United Methodist 

CALL TO ORDER: 

ROLL CALL  

(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

 
(b) Excuse Absent Council Members 
 

 CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 No Presentations  
 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Rezoning Application (File Number: Z-727) – Office Use, West Side of Rochester 

Road, South of De Etta – 6493 Rochester, Section 3 – R-1B to O-1 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-09- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1B to O-1 rezoning request, located on the west side of Rochester, 
south of De Etta, in Section 3, part of parcel 88-20-03-278-028, being 0.34 acres in size, is 

described in the following legal description and illustrated on the ATTACHED boundary survey 
drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, NE 1/4 of Section 3 
 
Lots 10 and 11, inclusive, of Troy Little Farms Subdivision (Liber 42, pg. 8 of Oakland 
County Plats).  Containing ±0.34 ac. more or less, and subject to easements of record; 
and 

 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS The City of Troy Zoning 
District Map, as described herein. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 10, 2007 

 

- 2 - 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

C-2 Concept Development Plan Approval – Big Beaver Place Planned Unit 

Development (PUD-008), North Side of Big Beaver, West of John R, Section 24 – 

Currently Zoned R-1D (One Family Residential) District 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-09- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The petitioner Big Beaver Place, LLC has requested Concept Development Plan 
approval, pursuant to article 35.50.01, for Big Beaver Place Planned Unit Development (PUD-
008), located on the North side of Big Beaver, East of John R, in Section 24, within the R-1D 
zoning district, being approximately 4.77 acres in size;  
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission recommended approval of the Concept Development 
Plan on June 12, 2007;  
 
WHEREAS, The proposed PUD meets the Standards for Approval set forth in Article 35.30.00;    
and 
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Planned Unit Development, parts of parcels 88-20-24-352-024, -
025, -026, -027, -028 and -041, is described in the following legal description and illustrated on 
the attached Certificate of Survey drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, SW 1/4 of Section 24 
 
Lots 15, 16, 17, 18, 19 and 20 of Big Beaver Poultry Farms Subdivision (Liber 23, pg. 14 
of Oakland County Plats), except the south 69 feet taken for Big Beaver Road.  
Containing ±4.77 acres more or less, and subject to easements of record; 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Zoning District Map of the City 
of Troy Zoning Ordinance to delineate the subject parcel as PUD-008; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED to 
execute the Development Agreement for Big Beaver Place Planned Unit Development; a copy 

of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Big Beaver Place Planned Unit Development Agreement 

be RECORDED with the Oakland County Register of Deeds; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the petitioner is hereby PERMITTED to submit a Preliminary 
Development Plan pursuant to article 35.50.02. 
 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 10, 2007 

 

- 3 - 

 

C-3 Concept Development Plan Approval – The Oasis at Centennial Park Planned Unit 

Development (PUD-006), South Side of Long Lake and West Side of John R, 

Section 14 – Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-09- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The petitioner Centennial Development, LLC has requested Concept Development 
Plan approval, pursuant to article 35.50.01, for The Oasis at Centennial Park Planned Unit 
Development (PUD-006), located on the south side of Long Lake and west side of John R, 
Section 14, within the R-1C zoning district, being approximately 9.35 acres in size;  
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission recommended approval of the Concept Development 
Plan on June 12, 2007;  
 
WHEREAS, The proposed PUD meets the Standards for Approval set forth in Article 35.30.00; 
and   
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Planned Unit Development, parts of parcels 88-20-14-226-014, -
015, -016, -020, -021, -022, and -035, is described in the following legal description and 
illustrated on the attached Certificate of Survey drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, NE 1/4 of Section 14 
 

Commencing at the Northeast corner of Section 14, thence S 03°00'59" W, 300.09 ft. (S 
03°00'00" W, 300.00 ft. record) along the East line of Section 14 and centerline of John 
R Rd. (60 ft. half width); thence N 87°08’40” W, 60.00 ft. to the West right-of-way of 
John R Rd. (60 ft. half width) to the Point of Beginning; thence S 03°00’59” W, 520.12 ft. 
(S 03°00’00” W, 519.75 ft. record) along the West right-of-way of John R Rd. (60 ft. half 
width); thence N 86°55’32” W, 603.14 ft. (N 87°08’40” W, 603.32 ft. record) to the West 
line of the East ½ of the East ½ of the Northeast ¼ of Section 14, also being the East 
line of Long Lake Village Subdivision No. 2  (Liber 142, pgs. 20-21 of Oakland County 
Plats);  thence N 02° 53’45” E, 757.91 ft. (N 02° 55’39” E, 759.75 ft. record) along the 
West line of the East ½ of the East ½ of the Northeast ¼ of Section 14, also being the 
East line of Long Lake Village Subdivision No. 2, in part, to the South right-of-way of 
East Long Lake Rd. (60 ft. half width);  thence S 87°08’40” E, 392.24 ft. (391.78 ft. 
record) along the South right-of-way of East Long Lake Rd. (60 ft. half width);  thence S 
03°00’59” W, 240.09 ft. (S 03°00’00” W, 240.00 ft. record);  thence S 87°08’40” E, 
212.50 ft. to the West right-of-way of John R Rd. (60 ft. half width) and to the Point of 
Beginning.  Containing ±9.35 acres more or less, and subject to easements of record; 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Zoning District Map of the City 
of Troy Zoning Ordinance to delineate the subject parcel as PUD-006; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 10, 2007 

 

- 4 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED to 
execute the Development Agreement for The Oasis at Centennial Park Planned Unit 

Development; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That The Oasis at Centennial Park Planned Unit Development 

Agreement be RECORDED with the Oakland County Register of Deeds; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the petitioner is hereby PERMITTED to submit a Preliminary 
Development Plan pursuant to article 35.50.02. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

C-4 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 230) – Articles X and XVIII 

– Wireless Communication Towers on School Property in the R-1A through R-1E 

(One Family Residential) and C-F (Community Facilities) Districts 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-09- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Article X (R-1A – R-1E ONE FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) and XVIII (C-F COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT) of the City of 
Troy Zoning Ordinance, pertaining to the permitting of Wireless Communication Towers in the 
R-1A – R-1E and C-F Districts, to read as written in the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment (ZOTA 230), City Council Public Hearing Draft, as recommended by the Planning 
Commission. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 

motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 10, 2007 

 

- 5 - 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 

presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-09-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of August 20, 2007 

be APPROVED as submitted. 
 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-09- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamations: 
 

a) National Save a Life Month – September, 2007 

b) National Autism Awareness Month – September, 2007 

   
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – 

HAVEN Program                       
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-09- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby GRANTS approval to expend funds budgeted in 
the 2007/2008 fiscal year to the HAVEN Program to provide community services to support 
victims of domestic assault for the residents of the City of Troy in the amount of $4,500.00, and 

the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the agreement, a copy of which shall 

be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 10, 2007 

 

- 6 - 

 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – Troy 

Youth Assistance                       
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-09- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby GRANTS approval to expend funds budgeted in 
the 2007/2008 fiscal year to the Troy Youth Assistance to provide diversion programs and 
community services to the residents of the City of Troy at a cost of $35,000.00, paid in quarterly 

installments, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the agreement, a 

copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10:  Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 

Funds on Council Members’ Travel Expenses – National League of Cities (NLC) 

Congress of Cities & Exposition                       
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-09- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council Members are AUTHORIZED to attend the NLC Congress 
of Cities & Exposition from November 13 - 17, 2007 in New Orleans, LA in accordance with 
accounting procedures of the City of Troy. 
 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder Contract 07-7 – 

Northwood,  Maple to Maplelawn Mill and Overlay                       
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-09- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS Contract No. 07-7, Northwood, Maple to 
Maplelawn Mill and Overlay, to Florence Cement Co., 12798 23 Mile Road, Shelby Township, 
MI 48315, at an estimated total cost of $255,813.00; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 

requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 25% of the total project cost. 
 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – 

Common Ground                       
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-09- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby GRANTS approval to expend funds budgeted in 
the 2007/2008 fiscal year to Common Ground to provide community service programs to the 
residents of the City of Troy in the amount of $2,100.00, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 10, 2007 

 

- 7 - 

AUTHORIZED to execute the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 

E-5 Application for Transfer of SDD and SDM License for Atlas Blue Sky, Inc. 
 

(a) New License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-09- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from Atlas Blue 
Sky, Inc. to transfer ownership of 2007 SDD and SDM licensed business located at 36949 
Dequindre, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, from MJMN, Inc.; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 

(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-09- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Atlas Blue Sky, Inc. to transfer ownership of 2007 SDD and SDM licensed business 
located at 36949 Dequindre, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, from MJMN, Inc., and the Mayor 

and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED to execute the document, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

E-6 Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions – Congregation Shir Tikvah 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-09- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES the no parking restrictions on the east 
side of Northfield Parkway from the parking lot entrance to Congregation Shir Tikvah to the 
entrance to Boulan Park, on Wednesday, September 12, 2007, 7:00 PM – 11:00 PM, 
Thursday, September 13, 2007, 9:00 AM – 5:00 PM, Friday, September 21, 2007, 7:00 PM – 
11:00 PM, and Saturday, September 22, 2007, 9:00 AM – 9:00 PM. 

        
E-7 Sole Source – East Jordan Iron Works – Complete Hydrant and Valve Repair Parts 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-09- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 10, 2007 

 

- 8 - 

WHEREAS, East Jordan Iron Works, the manufacturer, has agreed to provide East Jordan 
complete hydrants, as well as hydrant and valve repair parts directly to the City of Troy at 
discounts greater than those of distributors; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to 
provide East Jordan complete hydrants, and valve and hydrant repair parts with East Jordan 
Iron Works at discounts of 44.5% and 49% respectively. 
 

E-8 Request for Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit, John R 

Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard, Project No. 02.204.5 

Parcel #50 – Sidwell #88-20-02-228-028 – Glenda M. McDowell 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-09- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Regrading and Temporary 
Construction Permit in the amount of $500.00 from Glenda M. McDowell, owner of property 
having Sidwell #88-20-02-228-028; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a 

copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

E-9 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Regrading and 

Temporary Construction Permit, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road 

to South Boulevard, Project No. 02.204.5 Parcel #61 and #62 – Sidwell #88-20-01-

300-02 and #88-20-01-300-001 – The Raymond E. Seguin Revocable Trust 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-09- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between The Raymond E. Seguin Revocable Trust, owners of property having 
Sidwell #88-20-01-300-002 and #88-20-01-300-001, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of 
right-of-way for John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard in the 
amount of $19,100.00, plus closing costs; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department is hereby 

AUTHORIZED to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase according to 
the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Regrading and 
Temporary Construction Permit in the amount of $900.00 from The Raymond E. Seguin 
Revocable Trust, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-01-300-002 and #88-20-01-300-
001; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Warranty 
Deed and the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit with the Oakland County Register 

of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 10, 2007 

 

- 9 - 

 

E-10 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement – 4265 and 4305 Rochester Road – 

Sidwell #88-20-15-426-053 and -054 – Aurelia A. Kwitt Revocable Living Trust 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-09- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between The Aurelia A. Kwitt Revocable Living Trust, owners of property 
having Sidwell #88-20-15-426-053 and -054, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-
way for Rochester Road from Torpey north to Barclay in the amount of $1,192,480.00, plus 
closing costs; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department is hereby 

AUTHORIZED to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase according to 
the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Warranty 

Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

E-11 Private Agreement for Mitchell’s Ocean Club Restaurant – Project No. 07.923.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-09- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and Troy Place I 
Associates for Mitchell’s Ocean Club Restaurant, for the installation of Water Main and 
Sanitary Sewer on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 

AUTHORIZED to execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 10, 2007 

 

- 10 - 

question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 11 “F”.  

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Downtown 

Development Authority b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 

Persons with Disabilities; Animal Control Appeal Board; Ethnic Issues Advisory 

Board; Historic District Commission; Historical Commission; Municipal Building 

Authority; and Parks & Recreation Board      

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceeds the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 

(a)  Mayoral Appointments   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Downtown Development Authority 
Appointed by  Mayor (13-Regular) –  4-Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/2011 

 
 Term Expires 09/30/2011 

 
 Term Expires 09/30/2011 

 

(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 10, 2007 

 

- 11 - 

Resolution #2007-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities  
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) – 3 Year Terms 
 

(Alternate) Term Expires 11/01/09 

 

Animal Control Appeal Board 
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/10 

 

Ethnic Issues Advisory Board 
Appointed by Council (9-Regular) – 2 & 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/09 - 2 Year Term 

 
 Term Expires 09/30/09 - 2 Year Term 

 
 Term Expires 09/30/09 - 2 Year Term 

 
 Term Expires 09/30/09 - 2 Year Term 

 

Historic District Commission  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 03/01/10 

 

Historical Commission  
Appointed by Council  (7- Regular) 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/31/10 

 

Municipal Building Authority  
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 01/31/09 

 

Parks & Recreation Board  
Appointed by Council  (7-Regular) – 3 Year Terms; (1-Troy School Board)–1 Year Term;  
(1-Troy Daze Committee)–1 Year Term; (1-Advisory Committee for Sr. Citizens) –1 Year 
Term 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 10, 2007 

 

- 12 - 

 
 Term Expires 09/30/10 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  

a) Street Vacation (File Number SV-32-B) – Lincoln Drive, West of John R, South of Big 
Beaver, Zoned PUD #7, Section 26 – September 17, 2007       

    

G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced    

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced    
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 10, 2007 

 

- 13 - 

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  

a) Downtown Development Authority/Final – May 16, 2007  

b) Youth Council/Final – May 23, 2007  

c) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – June 11, 2007  

d) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – July 17, 2007 

e) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – July 24, 2007  

f) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – August 1, 2007  

g) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – August 13, 2007  

h) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – August 14, 2007  

i) Planning Commission/Draft – August 14, 2007  

j) Planning Commission/Final – August 14, 2007  

k) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – August 21, 2007  

l) Youth Council/Draft – August 22, 2007  

m) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – September 4, 2007 
  

J-2 Department Reports:  None Submitted 
 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  

a) Letter to Officer Harrison from Kym Worth in Appreciation of the Troy Police Hockey 
Clinic    

b) Letter of Appreciation to Tim Richnak from Mary Ann Bernardi Commending the Efforts 
of the Public Works Staff  

c) Letter of Appreciation to Ann Blizzard from Mary Zimmerman Regarding the 
Professional and Kind Aquatic Center Staff  

d) Letter of Thanks to Jennifer Lawson and Steve Vandette from Sandshores Area Lake 
Residents and Lake Charnwood Property Owners Association Regarding the Your Lake 
and You Publication  

e) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Judith Ryder Commending Officer Haddad     
 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 

J-5  Calendar 

 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 Possible Trends 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 10, 2007 

 

- 14 - 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 

satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

Monday, September 17, 2007 
1. Street Vacation (File Number SV-32-B) – Lincoln Drive, West of John R, South of 

Big Beaver, Zoned PUD #7, Section 26 
  

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, September 17, 2007 ................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, October 1, 2007 .......................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, October 15, 2007 ........................................................ Regular City Council 

Monday, November 12, 2007 .................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, November 19, 2007 .................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, December 3, 2007 ...................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, December 17, 2007 .................................................... Regular City Council 

 



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

September 10, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 

 
CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 No Presentations  

campbellld
Text Box
A-01



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

September 10, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 

 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items  

campbellld
Text Box
B-01



 1

 
 
DATE: August 22, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing – Rezoning Application – Office Use, West side of Rochester Road, 

South of De Etta (6493 Rochester), Section 3 – R-1B to O-1 (File Number Z-727) 
 
 
Background: 
 

• The Planning Commission recommended denial of the request to rezone the parcel to O-1 at 
the July 10, 2007 Regular meeting.   

 
• The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Medium Density Residential and has 

been since 1999.  The application is inconsistent with the Medium Density Residential 
classification.  In addition, the parcel falls within the Rochester Road Overlay District classification, 
which provides flexibility in terms of permitted uses as a tradeoff for high quality, innovative 
design.  The Rochester Road Overlay classification was approved in 2006.    It has not been 
demonstrated that the application meets the criteria of the Rochester Road Overlay District 
classification, which permits more intense uses than the underlying zoning district, based on a 
number of standards. 

 
• The character of the west side of Rochester Road in this area is a mix of retail and office uses.  

The abutting property to the south was rezoned to B-1 Local Business on December 18, 2006.  
Rezoning the subject property to O-1 Low Rise Office would be less intense than the abutting 
B-1 zoning and would therefore serve as more of a transitional use between the residential 
neighborhood to the west and Rochester Road than the B-1 property.   

 
• The application is not consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan.  However, it is 

consistent with the general character of the area and compatible with adjacent zoning districts and 
land uses. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



 2

Financial Considerations: 
 

• There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

• City Council has the authority to act on this application.  
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

• Approval of the rezoning application would be consistent with City Council Goal III (Retain and 
attract investment while encouraging development). 

 
 
Options: 
 

• City Council can approve or deny the rezoning application. 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Minutes from the March 13, 2007 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
3. Minutes from the July 10, 2007 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
4. Correspondence from Robin Siegel, dated June 1, 2007. 
 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File /Z 727 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-727 Office 6493 Rochester Sec 3\CC Public Hearing 09 10 07.doc 
 
 
 













PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 13, 2007 
  
 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST (Z 727) – Proposed Office Use, 

West side of Rochester Road, South of DeEtta (6493 Rochester Road), Section 
3 – From R-1B (One Family Residential) to O-1 (Low Rise Office) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed rezoning request, and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the rezoning application.   
 
Chair Schultz asked if there was any investigation into what size building could 
be placed on this site.   
 
Mr. Miller replied no.   
 
The petitioner, Lawrence Hromek of 23711 Sandpiper, Clinton Township, was 
present to represent the owner, Robin Siegel.  Mr. Hromek said the building size 
could not be much larger than the existing building.  He indicated the proposed 
vacation of the 20-foot easement for the alley would create an additional 20 feet 
for parking.  
 
Ms. Troshynski questioned if any consideration was given to accessing the 
property from the north.   
 
Mr. Hromek said they have no desire to access the property from the north and 
the existing drive on Rochester Road would be used.   
 
Chair Schultz asked if the petitioner has an interest in consolidating with the 
property to the north. 
 
Mr. Hromek stated the property to the north, which is currently vacant, is a rental 
property that has been rented by different tenants.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Eileen Carty of 990 DeEtta, Troy, was present.  Ms. Carty spoke in opposition to 
the proposed rezoning request.  She said Troy is taking on a Lincoln Park 
persona with strip malls and small storefronts.  Ms. Carty addressed recent 
commercial developments on Rochester Road, specifically Rochester Office Parc 
Building and Binson’s Home Health Care Center, and how they have negatively 
impacted her residential home.  She also addressed the proposed alley vacation, 
which she discovered is no benefit to her because her home does not fall within 
the appropriate subdivision boundaries.  Ms. Carty asked to go on record stating 
that her property and quality of life have deteriorated vastly since she moved into 
her home.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 13, 2007 
  
 
 

Mr. Vleck expressed concern with the small corner lot to the north that would 
remain as a small undevelopable residential property should the rezoning 
request go forward.  He would like consideration to be given to consolidation of 
the properties.   
 
Mr. Strat noted that he voted against the previous rezoning request at this 
location based on the concerns of Ms. Carty.  He asked for clarification on the 
alley vacation.   
 
Ms. Lancaster clarified the “drawn” alley proposed to be vacated is platted as an 
alley on a subdivision plat, and only the subdivision owners within that plat have 
an interest in the alley.  She indicated the developer must start a re-plat action, 
which is a complicated matter. 
 
Mr. Miller stated a Public Hearing on the proposed vacation is scheduled on the 
next City Council agenda.  He indicated the request is to vacate the entire alley 
between DeEtta and Marengo. 
 
The members encouraged Ms. Carty to advise the City in writing of her concerns 
and any associated costs for damage incurred from the recently constructed 
developments; i.e., mailbox replacement, lawn ruts, unshielded vehicular lights, 
dead landscaping, unkempt dumpster, etc.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-059 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends denial to the 
City Council that the R-1B to O-1 rezoning request, located on the west side of 
Rochester, south of DeEtta, within Section 3, being approximately 15,600 square 
feet in size, be denied, for the following reason:  
 
1. By rezoning this property, a financially un-redevelopable residential 

property to the north would remain.  
 
Yes: Strat, Troshynski, Vleck, Wright 
No: Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Tagle 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Ms. Kerwin expressed her reasoning to grant the rezoning request.  She said it 
appears that Rochester Road is not going to be a place for residences, as is the 
case for this remnant parcel.  Ms. Kerwin said she does not see it as an issue for 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 13, 2007 
  
 
 

redevelopment in the future, and the overlay accommodates for parcels such as 
this.   
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-060 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1B to O-1 rezoning request, located on the west side of 
Rochester, south of DeEtta, within Section 3, being approximately 15,600 square 
feet in size, be granted, for the following reason:  
 
1. The application is compatible to adjacent zoning districts and land uses. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Littman asked how site plan compliance would be insured, assuming a site 
plan would not come before the Planning Commission.   
 
Mr. Miller said site plan approval would be required for the site.  He noted the 
parcel would become a legal non-conformity should the parcel be rezoned and 
setback requirements do not meet the ordinance. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Tagle 
No: Strat, Troshynski, Vleck, Wright 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Mr. Wright said he would be more inclined to approve the rezoning request if 
there was an attempt to consolidate the two parcels, and noted the problem is 
the remaining residential parcel that would never be redeveloped as R-1.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-03-061 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Troshynski 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone this item until there is some attempt to consolidate 
with the property to the north.    



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 13, 2007 
  
 
 

Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Ms. Troshynski said the rezoning request goes against the intent of the Planning 
Commission to decrease the driveways along Rochester Road, from Square 
Lake to South Boulevard.   
 
Mr. Miller said the Planning Commission has postponed items and requested 
petitioners to look into consolidation of properties in the past.   
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST (Z 727) – Proposed Office Use, 
West side of Rochester Road, South of DeEtta (6493 Rochester Road), Section 
3 – From R-1 B (One Family Residential) to O-1 (Low Rise Office) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed rezoning request.  Mr. Miller reported that although the application is 
not consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan, it is the 
recommendation of City Management to approve the rezoning application.  He 
reported that the request is consistent with the general character of the area and 
compatible with adjacent zoning districts and land uses.  Mr. Miller indicated it is 
bad planning to leave the single family residential parcel to the north, but noted 
the Planning Commission conducted themselves reasonably by requesting the 
petitioner to assemble that piece of property.   
 
Mr. Vleck asked what would be required of the petitioner to bring the property in 
compliance with the O-1 office zoning district.   
 
Mr. Miller said the petitioner would be required to go through site plan approval 
because the office use has not been approved for that site.  
 
Mr. Vleck addressed site improvements that would be required in relation to 
quality and long-term development.  Mr. Vleck asked if the City could initiate a 
rezoning on the property to the north.   
 
Ms. Lancaster confirmed the City could initiate a rezoning for any property.  She 
indicated City Council could rezone the parcel by going through the appropriate 
approval process.   
 
Mr. Vleck asked if the existing property owner would be allowed to continue as 
residential.   
 
Mr. Miller said the use would be allowed to continue and the property would be 
considered a true nonconforming use.  He noted the site would lose its 
nonconforming status should it be abandoned as a single family use.  Mr. Miller 
said the greater issue for the property to the north is that it would be very unlikely 
that it could be developed as office.   
 
Mr. Vleck asked if the subject property could continue its operation as it exists, 
without site improvements, should it be rezoned to O-1.   
 
Mr. Miller replied that technically the use has not been approved for the subject 
property and is not permitted in that zoning district.  He said the owner would 
have to show good faith in moving forward with site plan approval to have an 
office at that location. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

The owner, Robin Siegel of 283 W. Square Lake Road, Troy, was present.  Ms. 
Siegel addressed the existing screening to the west along the residential area.   
 
Chair Schultz explained different screening requirements would have to be met 
should the site be zoned office.  He informed the petitioner that should the 
rezoning go forward, the site would have to be redeveloped as an office and go 
through the site plan approval process. 
 
Ms. Siegel said they would be more than happy to do that and would make every 
effort to fully comply with all zoning ordinance requirements.  She confirmed that 
the site is currently being used as office only.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
There was discussion on the screen wall requirements for O-1 zoning.   
 
Mr. Vleck said he is not 100% comfortable with the proposed rezoning.  He 
addressed the petitioner’s attempt to consolidate the property to the north, the 
cost involved for site improvements that would be required for office, its relation 
to the Rochester Road corridor, and the developable status of the residential 
property to the north.  Mr. Vleck said a conditional rezoning might be a favorable 
option. 
 
Mr. Littman addressed the small size of the subject parcel should it be developed 
as office.  He said it might very well be a problem for both the petitioner and the 
City.   
 
Mr. Vleck said the property to the north would be less developable and less 
desirable should the subject property be rezoned and the required screen wall is 
in place.   
 
Mr. Tagle asked if a screen wall is required between the property to the south 
[Binson’s] and the subject property.   
 
Mr. Miller replied a screen wall is required unless the property to the south 
[Binson’s] receives a waiver from the Board of Zoning Appeals.   
 
Chair Schultz said he would like to see a potential conditional rezoning 
application submitted on the subject property to see how it might be developed 
as office.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

Mr. Vleck said he would consider the rezoning request further if there was some 
collaboration between Binson’s and the subject property for a cross access 
easement.   
 
Messrs. Hutson and Littman addressed the option of a conditional rezoning 
application. 
 
Mr. Strat said he would not support the rezoning request because there is 
potential the existing house could become a legal nonconforming use 
automatically.  He said the property to the north would remain an orphan parcel 
until the owner decides to sell or consolidate.  Mr. Strat said he would be 
supportive of a conditional rezoning should the petitioner be willing. 
 
Mr. Vleck said his preference would be for the City to initiate a rezoning request 
for the property to the north.  He questioned the time frame for the City to initiate 
such a request.  
 
Mr. Miller said public hearings could be scheduled next month for both the 
Planning Commission and City Council, should the Planning Commission make a 
resolution tonight to initiate a rezoning.   
 
Ms. Troshynski indicated she would not be in favor of the general rezoning 
request because of its affect on the neighborhood.   
 
Mr. Littman said, as a policy, he is not in favor of City initiated rezoning requests 
especially in cases where the owner is not in support.   
 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-116 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1B to O-1 rezoning request, located on the west side of 
Rochester, south of DeEtta, within Section 3, being approximately 15,600 square 
feet in size, be denied, due to problems in how the site might develop.   
 
Yes: Hutson, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Troshynski 
No: Kerwin, Vleck 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck said he is not necessarily in favor of the rezoning request, but he would 
like to see the petitioner pursue other options to develop the property.  He said 
there could be potential for a desirable development if the petitioner collaborates 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

with the Binson’s development.  Mr. Vleck addressed his position for a City-
initiated rezoning on the property to the north.   
 
Ms. Kerwin said she would have preferred a motion to postpone.  She indicated 
she might have voted in favor of denial if the motion had stipulated denial was 
based on non-compliance with the Future Land Use Plan.   
 
Chair Schultz advised the public of the approval process for rezoning requests at 
the City Council level.  He indicated to the petitioner that the Planning 
Department would be the resource on conditional rezoning applications.   
 
A brief discussion followed on the procedure for City-initiated rezoning requests.   

 
 





 1

 
 
DATE: August 28, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing – Concept Development Plan Approval – Big Beaver Place Planned Unit 

Development (PUD 8), North side of Big Beaver, East of John R, Section 24 – Currently 
Zoned R-1D (One Family Residential) District 

 
 
Background: 
 

 
• The Planning Commission recommended Concept Development Plan Approval of PUD 8 at 

the June 12, 2007 Regular meeting.   
 
• The project consists of 23 two-story townhomes in four buildings, including two-car garages.  

Two clustered retail buildings and one separate building for a deli and coffee shop are also 
proposed.   

 
• Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., the City’s Planning Consultant, prepared 

a report summarizing the project and recommends Concept Development Plan Approval. 
 

• The proposed PUD meets the Eligibility requirements of Section 35.30.00 of the City of Troy 
Zoning Ordinance. 

 
• The proposed PUD meets the Standards for Approval of Section 35.70.03 of the City of Troy 

Zoning Ordinance. 
 

• The Development Agreement will be presented for the Public Hearing.  
 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 

• There are no financial considerations for this item. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-02



 2

Legal Considerations: 
 

• City Council has the authority to act on this application.  
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

• The item is consistent with City Council Goal I (Enhance the livability and safety of the 
community), Goal III (Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment), and Goal 
V (Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public needs). 

 
 
Options: 
 

• City Council can approve the application for Concept Development Plan Approval. 
 
• City Council can approve the application for Concept Development Plan Approval with 

conditions. 
 
• City Council can deny the application for Concept Development Plan Approval. 
 

 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality: ________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., dated June 6, 2007. 
3. Planning Commission Minutes from the June 12, 2007 Regular meeting. 
4. Public comments. 
5. Concept Development Plan. 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File /PUD 8 
 Richard Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
G:\PUD's\PUD 008 Big Beaver Place\CC Public Hearing 09 11 07.doc 
 
 
 







ROCHESTER

DEQUINDRE

LONG LAKE
JOHN

R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPHENSON

COOLIDGE

CROOKS
MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ADAMS



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

SUBJECT PROPERTY



CEDAR KNOLL

ORPINGTON

ROUNDTREE

DO
MI

NI
QU

E

WYANDOTTE

RH
OD

E
ISL

AN
D

JO
HN 

R

E BIG BEAVER
E BIG BEAVER

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT REQUEST
PROPOSED BIG BEAVER PLACE
N SIDE OF BIG BEAVER, E OF JOHN R
SEC. 24 (P.U.D. #8)  

0 100 200 300 400 50050
Feet ³

SUBJECT PROPERTY



CEDAR KNOLL

ORPINGTON

ROUNDTREE

DO
MI

NI
QU

E

WYANDOTTE

RH
OD

E
ISL

AN
D

JO
HN 

R

E BIG BEAVER
E BIG BEAVER

R-1E

M-1

RM-1

B-1
P-1B-2

R-EC

O-1

R-C

B-3
CJ-17

CJ-31

CJ-22

CJ-22CJ-22CJ-16

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT REQUEST
PROPOSED BIG BEAVER PLACE
N SIDE OF BIG BEAVER, E OF JOHN R
SEC. 24 (P.U.D. #8)  

0 100 200 300 400 50050
Feet ³

SUBJECT PROPERTY



 
 
  
 Date: March 27, 2007 
 Rev: April 19, 2007 
 Rev: June 6, 2007 
 

 
 

Planned Unit Development/Site Plan Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Applicant: Stefano Mularoni 
 Big Beaver Place, LLC 
 48593 Hayes Road 
 Shelby Township, MI  48315 

Project Name: Big Beaver Place PUD 

Plan Date: March 9, 2007 

Latest Revision: May 23, 2007 

Location: East of John R Road, on the north side of Big Beaver Road.  

Zoning: R-1E, One Family Residential District  

Action Requested: Planning Commission review and recommendation to the City 
Council for approval of a Concept Development Plan as 
established in Section 35.50. 

Required Information: Deficiencies noted.  

 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
The applicant proposes a mixed use Planned Unit Development.  The project has been assembled 
from six parcels and constitutes 4.77 acres.  Three buildings will be demolished to accommodate 
this proposal. The project consists of 23 two-story townhomes in four buildings, with each unit 



Big Beaver Place 6-6-07 

2 

being approximately 1,800 square feet, including a two-car garage.  Two clustered retail 
buildings (6,400 s.f. and 9,600 s.f.), and one separate building for a deli and coffee shop (3,500 
s.f.) are also proposed.  A few changes have been made to this concept in comparison to the 
previous submission.  The most significant changes include the configuration of the coffee 
shop/deli, size of patio areas, circulation/parking changes, and the configuration of the detention 
pond.     
 

 

 
 
 
NEIGHBORING ZONING AND LAND USE 

 
North: Properties to the north of this site are zoned R-1E, One Family Residential.  They 

are also used for single-family purposes, but are relatively large compared to 
other residential properties in the area. 

 
South: Big Beaver Road is at the southern boundary of the site.  The zoning of the 

properties across Big Beaver Road are controlled by court order.  Current uses 
include office and industrial buildings. 

 
East: Zoning to the east of the site is also R-1E, One Family Residential.  While the use 

of these properties is single-family, the lots are significantly smaller than the 
residential lots located north of the site. 

 

Project 
Site 

Big Beaver Road 



Big Beaver Place 6-6-07 

3 

West: The land directly to the west is zoned per court order, and used for an office 
building.  Properties at the northeast intersection of Big Beaver Road and John R 
Road include B-2, Community Business, and B-3, General Business zoning 
designations, with various commercial uses such as a daycare, gas station, paint 
store, and service center. 

 
Items to be Addressed:  None 
 
MASTER PLAN 
 
The subject property is currently Master Planned for Medium Density Residential use.  The 
surrounding Master Land Use Plan designations are as follows: 
 

North: Low Density Residential 
 
South: (Across Big Beaver Road) Research Industrial  
 
East: Medium Density Residential 
 
West: Local Service Area 

In the Master Plan, medium density residential use is defined as 5-10 dwelling units per acre, and 
includes a variety of housing forms such as duplexes, townhouses, and apartments.  The 
proposed townhomes and associated parking/pavement are located on approximately 2.75 acres 
of land, resulting in a density of approximately 8.33 units per acre.  The proposed residential 
uses for this property also meet some of the residential development policies stated in the Master 
Plan.  The Townhomes are compatible with the adjacent residential uses, and they provide a 
different type of housing (vs. single-family detached) for residents.  The alternative townhome 
residential type also supports the Big Beaver Corridor Study.  And, mixing housing with retail 
and adjacent office uses will help promote walking, create a lively neighborhood, and knit new 
development with existing residential uses.       

While the proposed commercial buildings are inconsistent with the Master Plan designations for 
this property, the proposed commercial uses do extend to the east a pattern of commercial from 
the John R Road and Big Beaver Road intersection and are consistent with the Big Beaver 
Corridor Study.  Therefore, it is our opinion that the project meets the requirements of Sec. 
35.40.00 regarding consistency with applicable corridor or subarea plans and recent development 
trends in the area. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
NATURAL RESOURCES 
 
The applicant provided an environmental analysis with the previous plan submission.   
 
Topography:  The topography is flat to very gently sloping from northwest to the east. 
 



Big Beaver Place 6-6-07 

4 

Trees: The existing vegetation on site was evaluated by an environmental 
consultant.  His report states that the site is covered by thick shrubs and a 
few trees.  The shrubs are common buckthorn, multiflora rose (both exotic 
invasive species), and gray dogwood.  The trees are short in height (under 
45 feet), and are green ash, boxelder, cottonwood, elm, and apple species.  
No mature or natural woods were observed.  The applicant states that the 
entire site will be cleared, and new open space will be created and 
landscaped.  We would agree that this is acceptable since the vegetation is 
of relative low quality. 

 
Wetlands: Based on the City’s Natural Features Map, there are no existing wetlands 

on this site.  However, the environmental evaluation states that there were 
two wetland areas on the property: one being approximately 5 feet x 90 
feet (or 450 s.f.), and another being 870 s.f.  Neither of these wetland areas 
meets MDEQ criteria as regulated wetlands.   

 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
TRAFFIC IMPACT 
 
A traffic analysis was conducted to determine the impact of the proposed development on traffic 
on Big Beaver Road and its intersection with John R Road.  The analysis states that no 
improvements are required for the public road system as a result of this development.        
 
Items to be Addressed:  None.  
 
ESSENTIAL FACILITIES AND SERVICES 

Water and Sewer 

The site will connect to existing water and sewer within the right-of-way of Big Beaver Road.     

Stormwater Management 

A conceptual stormwater system is shown on the plans that include both above- and below-
ground stormwater facilities.  Where feasible, stormwater will be directed to bioswales along the 
east, north and west boundaries, which will infiltrate stormwater and uptake runoff by plants.  
The bioswales will be planted with wetland and upland native shrubs and herbaceous species.  
All bio-swales will have underdrains.  The swale to the east will outlet to an existing stormwater 
pipe on the adjacent property.  The swales on the north and west will outlet to the proposed site 
stormwater system and eventually the central detention pond.  The pond will outlet to the 
existing stormwater system along Big Beaver Road.     

We support the use of infiltration devices in the stormwater management design.  The detention 
pond configuration has been modified in this plan set from a more organic shape to a rectilinear 
shape.  Could the applicant clarify the reason behind this change?       
 



Big Beaver Place 6-6-07 

5 

Items to be Addressed:  Configuration of detention. 
 
 
PUD STANDARDS  
 
The Zoning Ordinance sets forth criteria in Section 35.30.00 for consideration of a project as a 
PUD.  We have also evaluated the proposal in light of the Big Beaver Corridor Study.  We have 
the following comments: 
 
Section 35.30.00, A.  The applicant has demonstrated that they are legally permitted to execute 
a binding agreement over the parcels in the development. 
 
Section 35.30.00, B.:  The applicant shall demonstrate that through the use of the PUD option, 
the development will accomplish a sufficient number of the following objectives, as are 
reasonably applicable to the site, providing:  
 
1.  A mixture of land uses that would otherwise not be permitted without the use of the PUD, 

provided that other objectives of this Article are also met.  

 The proposal provides a mixture of land uses that would otherwise not be permitted in 
the underlying zoning category, or in any other single zoning category. 

2.  A public improvement or public facility (e.g. recreational, transportation, safety and 
security) which will enhance, add to or replace those provided by public entities, thereby 
furthering the public health, safety and welfare.  

 The site plan includes a pedestrian network, increased landscaping, and a large central 
water feature. 

3. A recognizable and material benefit to the ultimate users of the project and to the 
community, where such benefit would otherwise be infeasible or unlikely to be achieved 
absent these regulations.   

 Applying a PUD mixed use concept to this parcel allows for commercial development 
along Big Beaver Road, and attached single-family units behind.  This arrangement 
buffers the residential units from the noise and traffic of the roadway, and places higher-
density residential units along the rear of the property, providing a transition between 
the commercial development and the residential lots behind the project site.  This 
walkable, integrated design would be difficult to arrange using conventional zoning 
techniques. 

4. Long term protection and preservation of natural resources, natural features, and historic 
and cultural resources, of a significant quantity and/or quality in need of protection or 
preservation, and which would otherwise be unfeasible or unlikely to be achieved absent 
these regulations.  

 We are aware of no such features on the subject site. 

5. A compatible mixture of open space, landscaped areas, and/or pedestrian amenities.  

 The proposed plan in the residential portion of the site includes a large open space area 
that serves as a water feature and stormwater detention/retention pond, as well as 



Big Beaver Place 6-6-07 

6 

landscaping/buffer areas around the boundaries of the site.  The commercial portion of 
the property proposes a plaza area (3,760 s.f.) between the two retail buildings, and a 
water feature and 1,600 s.f. plaza along the boulevard entrance.  While landscaped areas 
used for storm drainage purposes may be countable for a portion of required landscape 
area, this area may not exceed more than 5 percent of the overall site area.   A 
calculation for the amount of open space is provided on the site plan (Sheet 2), and states 
that the proposal provides 25 percent (1.20 acres of open space), not including areas 
used for stormwater management.  We feel this meets with the requirements of Section 
39.70.04 and are satisfied that the proposed open space is optimally located to provide 
the best possible transition to adjacent development. 

6. Appropriate land use transitions between the PUD and surrounding properties.  

 As noted above, the project places higher-density residential units along the rear of the 
property, providing a transition between the commercial development and the residential 
lots behind the project site.   

7. Design features and techniques, such as green building and low impact design, which 
will promote and encourage energy conservation and sustainable development.  

 The proposal provides for several environmental quality objectives, such as 
environmental protection through stormwater quality, open space through the water 
feature and pedestrian plazas near the retail buildings, and pedestrian facilities that 
connect the development to retail uses, encouraging users to experience the site on foot.   

8. Innovative and creative site and building designs, solutions and materials.  

 The incorporation of a central water feature and the mix of proposed land uses represent 
an innovative and creative site plan which will provide an amenity to potential visitors to 
the area.  More detailed architectural renderings were provided in this submission, 
showing the variety of construction materials and site furnishings proposed for the 
development.  These details better convey the architectural intent of the townhomes, and 
describe a residential opportunity not readily available in the City.     

9. The desirable qualities of a dynamic urban environment that is compact, designed to 
human scale, and exhibits contextual integration of buildings and city spaces.   

 The proposed site design uses stormwater runoff as an amenity in the central pond and 
open space feature, and places residents in close proximity to commercial and office 
uses, encouraging walking.  These benefits are also consistent with the goals of the Big 
Beaver Corridor Study. 

10.  The PUD will reasonably mitigate impacts to the transportation system and enhance non-
motorized facilities and amenities.   

 The site does include a comprehensive pedestrian pathway network throughout the site 
which provides excellent non-motorized access from one use to another.  Also, based on 
the information provided, it does not appear that the proposal will alleviate current 
traffic congestion on adjacent roadways.  However, it also won’t significantly add to 
existing traffic conditions.  



Big Beaver Place 6-6-07 

7 

11.  For the appropriate assembly, use, redevelopment, replacement and/or improvement of 
existing sites that are occupied by obsolete uses and/or structures;  

 This proposal will redevelop properties that currently include a one-family residence.  
While we do not know whether the specific single family home is obsolete, it is unlikely 
this site would be viable for new single family development. 

12.  A complementary variety of housing types that are in harmony with adjacent uses;  

 The attached single-family portion of this project will provide an alternative type of 
housing within the City.  The proposed residential buildings are limited in height (two 
story) and are designed and located to most appropriately remain in harmony with the 
adjacent subdivision 

13. A reduction of the impact of a non-conformity or removal of an obsolete building or 
structure.  

 As we have indicated,  it is unlikely this site would be viable for new single family 
development; we are not aware of any non-conformities on the site. 

14. A development consistent with and meeting the intent of this Article; and will promote 
the intent of the plan meeting the requirements of the Municipal Planning Act or the 
intent of any applicable corridor or sub-area plans.  If conditions have changed since the 
plan, or any applicable corridor or sub-area plans, were adopted, the uses shall be 
consistent with recent development trends in the area.  

 As noted earlier in this review, the commercial portion of this project does not meet the 
goals of the Master Plan.  However, the project is consistent with a pattern of 
commercial from the John R Road and Big Beaver Road intersection and the Big Beaver 
Corridor Study.  

15.  Includes all necessary information and specifications with respect to structures, heights, 
setbacks, density, parking, circulation, landscaping, amenities and other design and 
layout features, exhibiting a due regard for the relationship of the development to the 
surrounding properties and uses thereon, as well as to the relationship between the 
various elements within the proposed Planned Unit Development. In determining whether 
these relationships have been appropriately addressed, consideration shall be given to the 
following: 

A.  The bulk, placement, and materials of construction of the proposed structures and 
other site improvements.   

 Basic information with regard to building materials has been provided on the 
conceptual floor plan and elevation drawings. 

B.  The location and screening of vehicular circulation and parking areas in relation 
to surrounding properties and the other elements of the development.   

 The vehicular parking and circulation areas and preliminary screening measures 
are adequately described on the site and landscape plans. 



Big Beaver Place 6-6-07 

8 

C.  The location and screening of outdoor storage, loading areas, outdoor activity or 
work areas, and mechanical equipment.   

 A proposed loading area has been added to the site plan.  An analysis of parking 
and loading is provided later in this review. The location and screening of any 
mechanical equipment have not been provided.  Please clarify. 

D.  The hours of operation of the proposed uses.  

 The applicant has provided a list of potential tenants.  In addition, the proposed 
hours of operation for each use has been added to Sheet 2.  While the actual 
hours of operation will be finalized once the spaces have been leased, the 
proposed hours are, in our opinion, reasonable given the nature of each building 
use. 

E.  The location, amount, type and intensity of landscaping, and other site amenities.   

 While specific material quantities have not been provided at this time, a 
conceptual landscaping plan showing initial landscaping designs has been 
provided. 

 
16.  Parking shall be provided in order to properly serve the total range of uses within the 

Planned Unit Development. The sharing of parking among the various uses within a 
Planned Unit Development may be permitted.  The applicant shall provide justification to 
the satisfaction of the City that the shared parking proposed is sufficient for the 
development and will not impair the functioning of the development, and will not have a 
negative effect on traffic flow within the development and/or on properties adjacent to 
the development.   

  
 The number of parking spaces has been reduced by four (4) spaces in this submission.  

However, we still consider that the amount of proposed parking is adequate.  Each of the 
proposed one-family attached residential units has a 2 car attached garage, and 
sufficient parking has been provided for the proposed non-residential uses.  A complete 
parking analysis is provided in later section of this review.   

 
17.  Innovative methods of stormwater management that enhance water quality shall be 

considered in the design of the stormwater system.  
  
 The applicant has proposed an innovative stormwater management system that promotes 

infiltration and improved water quality.  Key features include bio-swales with natural 
contours and native wetland and emergent plant species, and a detention/retention pond 
as a site amenity. 

 
18.  The proposed Planned Unit Development shall be in compliance with all applicable 

Federal, State and local laws and ordinances, and shall coordinate with existing public 
facilities.   

  
 The applicant must demonstrate throughout the process that the proposal meets with all 

applicable Federal, State and local laws and ordinances.  We defer to the City Engineer 
with regard to the site’s coordination with existing public facilities. 



Big Beaver Place 6-6-07 

9 

 
Items to be Addressed:  Clarify screening of mechanical equipment. 
 
AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS 
 
The underlying zoning for the entire site is R-1E, One-Family Residential.   
 
Front yard setbacks shown on the plans to the commercial properties range between 40 feet and 
59 feet, measured from the road right-of-way.  (Note that the coffee shop/deli building has been 
pushed back from the street by five (5) feet compared to the previous submission.)  The existing 
office building to the west is setback 53 feet, and the single-family home to the east is setback 50 
feet.  The Big Beaver Corridor Study states that buildings should be sited based on the district in 
which it is placed.  This property lies within the Single Family Residential district in the 
Corridor Plan.   
 
To the extent possible, the setbacks for all three proposed buildings are relatively consistent, and 
are coordinated with the existing buildings along the corridor (50 foot setback).  The proposed 
height of the retail buildings meets the recommendations for height in this Corridor district. 
  
Appropriate setbacks are provided for the proposed one-family attached residential structures.  In 
addition, the building heights (2 stories) conform to the lower heights called for in this Big 
Beaver district. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
PARKING, LOADING 
 
The plans meet the overall parking requirements.    For the attached one-family residential units, 
2 parking spaces per unit are required.  The site plan provides 46 spaces within garages.  This 
meets the required number of spaces.  An additional 9 spaces are provided on the street for 
visitor parking.   
 
Information about the seating capacity of the coffee shop/deli has been provided on Sheet 2.  
One space is required for every 2 persons within seating capacity of the establishment.  The 
coffee shop will have 20 seats, while the deli will have 30 seats, for a total of 50 seats (or 25 
spaces).  In addition, one space is required for each employee for each 10 seats of seating 
capacity, or one for each 35 s.f. of dining area, whichever is greater.  The applicant calculated 
this requirement using seating capacity, resulting in 5 additional parking spaces.  Total required 
parking spaces equals 30 spaces for the coffee shop/deli.   
 
Seventeen (17) spaces are shown adjacent to the coffee shop/deli, and an additional 13 spaces are 
shown along the western boundary, behind the townhouses.  In addition, the coffee shop has a 
drive-thru window.  This facility requires nine stacking spaces, which have also been added to 
the plans.    
 
The remaining retail portion of the development requires 1 space per each 200 s.f. of gross floor 
area, or 80 spaces (16,000/200 = 80).  The plans provide parking in the front, rear and side of the 



Big Beaver Place 6-6-07 

10 

retail buildings equaling 58 spaces (which was reduced from 60 spaces in the previous 
submission).  An additional 15 spaces (increased from 13 spaces) are shown behind the 
townhouses to the east.   
 
A loading area has been designated behind the retail building to the east. 
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION 
 
Two access points are proposed to service this development.   The main access is a boulevard 
drive to the residential units, and a secondary access is proposed to the east.  Parking serving the 
retail building is proposed via a service lane.  As requested, the applicant has eliminated the two 
most easterly spaces for safety purposes. 
 
The easterly entrance drive has been reconfigured slightly to clarify that it is an “entrance-only” 
drive.  The boulevard section has also been extended north to provide a resting place for 
pedestrians that are crossing the boulevard.   
 
We defer to the City Traffic Engineer for further comment on traffic and circulation issues. 

Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
SAFETY PATHS/SIDEWALKS 
 
Proposed amenities allow pedestrian access between the residential and commercial uses of the 
property.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
LANDSCAPING 
 
An amended landscape plan has been provided with this submission.  The plan shows 
landscaping around the site’s perimeter, at the water feature, and interspersed throughout the 
retail uses.  A finalized landscape plan is not required at this time in the site plan review process.  
However, we have the following comments: 
 
Composition: The mix of plant types provided in the preliminary plan selection is 

appropriate.  The applicant is proposing a range of species throughout the 
site. 

 



Big Beaver Place 6-6-07 

11 

Existing  
Vegetation: As mentioned above, the applicant states that they will clear the site of 

existing vegetation.  Due to the mix of existing species, we would 
consider this to be appropriate. 

 
Greenbelt: A 19 foot wide greenbelt area is proposed along Big Beaver Road within 

the road right-of-way.  The Big Beaver Corridor Study encourages the use 
of vegetation to separate pedestrians from vehicular traffic along the 
Corridor.  The Study also calls for planting large shade trees along the 
street.  Twenty-two (22) shade trees are proposed between the roadway 
and the sidewalk along Big Beaver Road.   

 
Residential  
Screening: Section 39.10 of the ordinance requires that a 6 foot high wall be provided 

for those sides of a conventional commercial district when abutting a 
residential district.  Given that the immediate use proposed along the east 
boundary within the PUD is attached one-family residential, we do not 
believe a wall is warranted, and that the proposed landscaping is 
preferable. 

 
Site  
Landscaping: Developments requesting PUD approval shall provide substantially more 

open space area than required for typical developments within the 
underlying zoning district.  As noted in the PUD section, a calculation for 
the amount of open space and landscaping was provided, stating that the 
proposed development is 25% (or 1.20 acres) open space and landscaping.  
(Also refer to comment #5 under the PUD Standards section of this 
review.)   

 
Other: Use of native herbaceous plantings in the bio-swales will require 

appropriate seed bed preparation, weed control as the plants are 
established, and maintenance to ensure that the plantings thrive and stay 
attractive.  Additional details of how the applicant proposes to accomplish 
these tasks will need to be provided. 

 
Items to be Addressed:  Details of herbaceous planting installation and maintenance.   
 
LIGHTING 
 
A lighting plan has not been provided as part of this submission, but will be required at the time 
of final site plan review.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  Lighting information must be provided at the time of final site plan 
consideration. 



Big Beaver Place 6-6-07 

12 

 
SIGNS 
 
Information about proposed signs has not been provided as part of this submission. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  Signage information must be provided at the time of final site plan 
consideration. 
 
FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS 
 
A rendering, elevations, and floor plans have been provided of the commercial and one-family 
attached residential buildings. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The plan provides many positive aspects that couldn’t be achieved without applying the PUD 
option.  The PUD concept locates appropriate uses across the site to transition from the Big 
Beaver corridor to the adjacent one-family residential area.  The commercial buildings provide 
space for local businesses and complement the other commercial uses along Big Beaver Road.  
The one-family attached residential use provides a comfortable transition between the 
commercial and single-family homes, and coordinates with the City’s Mater Plan and Big 
Beaver Corridor Study.   
 
Because of the revisions shown in this plan submission, it is our opinion that this project meets 
the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance and the intent of the Planned Unit Development 
option.  Therefore, we recommend that Planning Commission recommend approval of the 
Concept Development Plan to the City Council. 
 
 

 
 
  # 225-02-2701 
 
cc: Big Beaver Place, LLC, 48593 Hayes Road, Shelby Township, MI  48315 
 Fazal Khan & Associates, Inc., 43279 Schoenherr Road, Sterling Heights, MI  48313 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (P.U.D. #8) – Proposed 

Big Beaver Place, North side of Big Beaver, East of John R, Section 24, 
Currently Zoned R-1E (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Miller indicated City Management concurs with the recommendation of 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc.  
 
Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., provided an updated report 
on the proposed development and indicated there are no outstanding issues.  Mr. 
Carlisle recommends approval of the Concept Development Plan.   
 
A discussion followed on the internal traffic circulation.  Concerns with egress 
and a designated “No ‘U’ Turn” sign were discussed.   
 
Norman Hyman of 38500 Woodward Avenue, Bloomfield Hills, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  He introduced project team members Carol Thurber of 
Fazal Khan & Associates, Paul Landry of Landry + Newman Architects, and 
Stefano Mularoni, developer.  Mr. Hyman said the revisions made to the internal 
traffic pattern were a result of a consensus of their traffic consultant and the 
City’s Traffic Engineer.   
 
Ms. Thurber said three traffic pattern alternatives were discussed at an April 
Planning Commission study session, and the plan reflects the direction given by 
the members, as well as a consensus reached by the City’s Traffic Engineer and 
the project traffic consultant.  She also addressed the deceleration lane as 
relates to the Oakland County Road Commission (OCRC).  
 
Mr. Landry provided a rendering of the proposed development.  He addressed 
the configurations of the retail building and pond and provided details on the 
building materials.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Mike Dunaj of 2100 Orpington, Troy, was present.  Mr. Dunaj spoke in opposition 
of the proposed development.  He addressed the commercial use near 
residential and existing retail vacancies.   
 
Victor DeFlorio of 3609 Cedar Brook, Rochester Hills, was present.  Mr. DeFlorio 
developed Rhode Island Estates, a residential development located east of the 
subject proposal.  He addressed the difference in development concepts 
between the proposed development and Rhode Island Estates.  Mr. DeFlorio 
said residents are concerned with privacy, property values, traffic and density.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 
 

Ms. Troshynski commented favorably on the amount of landscape buffer 
proposed for the development, especially to the east to buffer the proposed 
parking from the back yards of those residents in Rhode Island Estates.  She 
said getting that information out to the neighbors might result in a better 
understanding of the development. 
 
Mr. Strat commended the developer on the project, but noted he is not pleased 
with the internal traffic circulation.  
 
Mr. Vleck emphasized the developer’s intent to provide 25% open space.  He 
indicated the petitioner might consider additional buffering, such as a fence, in 
the final stage of site plan review.  
 
Mr. Littman said initially he was not comfortable with the fit of the proposed 
development in the neighborhood, and has gradually grown to appreciate it.  He 
indicated the critical point for him is the buffering between the two developments, 
and encouraged communication between the developer and neighbors.  
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-102 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed a Concept Development Plan for 
a Planned Unit Development, pursuant to Article 35.50.01, as requested by Big 
Beaver Place, LLC for the Big Beaver Place Planned Unit Development (PUD 8), 
located on the north side of Big Beaver Road and east side of John R Road, 
Section 24, within the R-1E zoning district, being approximately 4.77 acres in size; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s Planning Consultant Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman 
Associates, Inc. prepared a memorandum dated June 6, 2007 that recommends 
Concept Development Plan Approval of Big Beaver Place Planned Unit 
Development; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed PUD meets the Eligibility Requirements set forth in 
Article 35.30.00; and   
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission recommends that 
Concept Development Plan Approval for Big Beaver Place Preliminary Planned 
Unit Development be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Schultz briefly addressed the procedure for the City Council public hearing. 





  1

 

 

 

 

 

BIG BEAVER PLACE 

 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN / COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

CITY OF TROY 

 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 

FOR 

“BIG BEAVER PLACE” 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

 

 This Development Agreement (“Agreement”), dated __________________, 
2007, is entered into by and between BIG BEAVER PLACE, LLC, a Michigan limited liability 
company, the address of which is 48593 Hayes Road, Shelby Township, Michigan  48315, 
referred to herein as the “Developer”, and the CITY OF TROY, a Michigan municipal 
corporation, having its principal offices at 500 West Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan  48084 
(“City”). 

 
R E C I T A L S: 

 
A. Developer is the owner of certain real property located in the City of Troy, 

Oakland County, Michigan, consisting of 6 parcels and containing approximately 4.77 acres, as 
more particularly described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto (the “Property”). 

 



  2

B. Developer shall follow all required steps, per City Ordinance, Article VI, to effect 
a description change combining all parcels into one (1) parcel.  The City agrees to process the 
description change, and request a new Parcel identification Number from Oakland County when 
all Ordinance requirements are met. 

 
 
C. Developer has petitioned for an amendment to the City’s Zoning Ordinance 

granting a rezoning of the Property to Planned United Development (“PUD”), the Development 
to be known as “Big Beaver Place”, sometimes also referred to herein as the “Development” or 
the “Planned Unit Development”.  Developer has received Conceptual Development Plan 
Agreement approval from City Council for the rezoning of the Property to PUD as required by 
Article XXXV of the City’s Zoning Ordinance, and approval of a Conceptual P.U.D. Site Plan, a 
copy of which is hereto attached as Exhibit B. 

 
D. In connection with the grant of rezoning of the Property to PUD, Section 35.50.00 

of the City’s Zoning Ordinance requires the submissions of a Planned Unit Development 
Agreement which incorporates conceptual site plans, conceptual landscaping plans and other 
documents enumerated as PUD Documents, as defined below and which requires the  approval 
of those documents by City Council as part of the grant of rezoning of the Property to PUD.  As 
part of Conceptual Development Plan approval, Developer has offered and agreed to proceed 
with the undertakings described in the PUD Documents which Developer and the City agree 
were necessary and roughly proportional to the burden imposed in order to (i) ensure that the 
public services and facilities affected by the Development will be capable of accommodating 
increased services and facility loads caused by the Development, (ii) protect the natural 
environment and conserve natural resources, (iii) ensure compatibility with adjacent uses of land, 
(iv) promote use of the Property in a socially and economically desirable manner and (v) achieve 
other legitimate objectives authorized under the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, MCL 125.3101, 
et. seq. and Chapter 39, Article XXXV of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance. 

 
E. For the purpose of confirming the rights, obligations and restrictions in 

connection with the development to be undertaken on the Property, once City Council has 
enacted an Amendment to the Zoning Ordinance rezoning the Property to the Planned Unit 
Development and approved this Agreement, conceptual site plans, conceptual landscaping plans 
and the other PUD Documents, the effective date of the rezoning and this Agreement shall be the 
date on which City Council approves this Agreement.  After the agreement granting rezoning is 
effective, the Planning Director shall take what actions are necessary to correct the Zoning Map 
to show the rezoning of the property this Agreement shall be binding upon the City, the 
Developer, the owners of any portion of the Property including condominium units, if applicable; 
and tenants within the Development; and all the association(s) established, and all successors and 
assigns and shall run with the land. 

 
F. The Developer reserves the right to convert all or portions of the Property as a 

condominium development at any time in its discretion. 
 



  3

NOW, THEREFORE, as an integral part of the grant of the rezoning of the Property to 
“Big Beaver Place” Planned Unit Development, and for other good and valuable consideration 
the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

 
ARTICLE I 

 
GENERAL TERMS 

 
1.1 This Agreement including all PUD Documents, whether conceptual, preliminary 

or final, shall run with the land.  Reference in this Agreement or any PUD Documents to 
“Developer” shall include Developer’s successors and assigns.  Any reference to owners, 
property owners, or Associations or Condominiums shall include their successors and assigns.  It 
is the intent of the City and Developer to put all future owners of the Property or parties in 
interest on notice of the rights, obligations and restrictions contained herein by recording this 
Agreement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds.  Any termination of an ownership 
interest shall not nullify or void this Agreement.  The terms and conditions of this Agreement 
shall be considered “Deed Restrictions” binding upon all Developers and any successors or 
assigns of the Property. 

 
1.2 The Project shall be developed and improved in accordance with the following, 

which shall be referred to herein as the “PUD Documents”: 
 

A. Chapter 39, ARTICLE XXXV of the City’s Zoning Ordinance, and 
amendments, if any. 

 
B. This PUD Agreement. 
 
C. The Conceptual P.U.D. Application date stamped “Received” by the City 

of Troy Planning Department on August 9, 2007. 
 
D. The following full-sized plans, date stamped “Received” by the City of 

Troy Planning Department on August 1, 2007: 
    
   Cover Sheet 

Sheet 1  Boundary and Topographic Survey 
Sheet 2 Conceptual P.U.D. Site Plan (referred to as Preliminary 

P.U.D. site Plan) 
Sheet 3 Conceptual Grading and Stormwater Management Plan 
 (Referred to as Preliminary Grading and Stormwater 

Management Plan) 
Sheet P-1 Landscape and Planting Plan 
Sheet P-2 Pedestrian Circulation Plan 
Sheet P-3 Details 
Sheet A-101 Conceptual Floor Plans 
Sheet A-102 Conceptual Floor Plans and Elevations 

 



  4

E. The resolution in the official minutes of the meeting at which the City 
Council approved the Planned Unit Development, including any and all 
conditions of the approval contained therein. 

 
F. An Affidavit of Property Ownership to be recorded with the Oakland 

County Register of Deeds prior to commencement of construction and 
prior to the sale of any portion of the Project, containing the legal 
description of the entire Property; specifying the date of approval of the 
Planned Unit Development rezoning, and declaring that all future 
development of the Property has been authorized, restricted and required 
to be carried out in accordance with this Agreement and the Ordinance 
amendment granting rezoning to Planned United Development. 

 
G. The Preliminary Development Plan, when it is approved by City Council. 
 

Engineering Plans have not been submitted with this Agreement.  It is understood by all 
parties and it is part of this Agreement that Engineering Plans, acceptable to the City Engineer, 
must be compliant with this Agreement, the City of Troy ordinances and development standards, 
and state and federal law and shall be submitted at the time of the request for Final Site Plan 
approval for such Phase. 

 
1.3 The Ordinance amendment granting Big Beaver Place Planned Unit Development 

reclassifies the zoning of the Property to PUD and constitutes the land use authorization for the 
Property, and all use and improvement of the Property shall be in substantial conformity with 
such Ordinance and the PUD Documents referenced herein. 

 
ARTICLE II 

 
DEVELOPER’S RIGHTS, OBLIGATIONS AND PROPERTY RESTRICTIONS 

 
2.1 Developer shall have the right to develop and use the Property in accordance with 

the PUD Documents and the Zoning Ordinance in effect at the time of the Conceptual PUD 
Approval.  Any changes to the Conceptual P.U.D. Site Plan or the Final Site Plan shall be 
approved in accordance with the City’s Zoning Ordinance.  Provided, however, that minor 
modifications resulting from engineering considerations or site conditions may be approved by 
the Director of Building and Zoning. 

 
2.2 “Big Beaver Place” is being proposed to be developed utilizing the City of Troy’s 

Planned Unit Development (PUD) Ordinance for a mixed-use commercial, retail, and residential 
development.  The Development will enable the redevelopment of the obsolete six (6) parcels of 
land located on the north side of Big Beaver Road, east of John R. Road.  Big Beaver Place will 
provide attractive and viable uses.  The Development will provide the residents of the City of 
Troy with a mixed-use development with new commercial, retail, and residential opportunities. 

 



  5

2.3 Developer shall develop the Property substantially in accordance with the PUD 
Documents.  Failure to develop the Property substantially in accordance with the PUD 
Documents shall constitute a deficiency under this Agreement. 

 
2.4 The uses permitted at Big Beaver Place are depicted on the Conceptual P.U.D. 

Site Plan recommended for approval by Planning Commission on June 12, 2007, and City 
Council on _________________, 2007, prepared by Fazal Khan & Associates, Inc. date stamped 
“Received” by City of Troy Planning Department on August 1, 2007.  The two retail buildings 
shall not exceed a combined area of 16,000 square feet; the separate commercial building shall 
not exceed 3,500 square feet in area, and may be used for a deli and coffee shop or similar 
commercial uses.  The residential component shall consist of no more than 23 townhouses, not 
exceeding two stories in height, with each unit having an area of approximately 1,800 square feet 
and a two-car garage.  The uses permitted under this PUD are also uses permitted in the B-2, 
RM-1 Commercial, and RM-3 Zoning Districts of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance.  To the 
extent otherwise provided in the PUD documents, all uses in the regulations for the B-2, RM-2 
and RM-3 Zoning Districts are allowed.  In the event that there is any conflict between the City’s 
Ordinances and this PUD Agreement, the terms and conditions of this PUD Agreement shall 
prevail. 

 
2.5 List of Conditions Offered in Exchange for PUD Consideration.  Developer or its 
successors or its assigns shall cause to be installed landscaping and an irrigation system on the 
Property in accordance with the Landscaping Plans.  The Conceptual P.U.D. Site Plan includes 
landscape features above the requirements as outlined in the City Ordinance, and including bio-
swales with under drains, planted with wetland and upland native shrubs and herbaceous species, 
and an attractive detention pond/water feature.  The pond and open area is centrally located so 
that it can be enjoyed by all the users on the Property.  The public benefit provided by Developer 
includes the elimination of existing under-development as well as the assemblage of properties to 
create a consistent development that provides a logical transition with the surrounding properties.  
The Development promotes and is consistent with the redevelopment goals of the Big Beaver 
Corridor Study and incorporates and implements numerous goals and strategies of the Big 
Beaver Corridor Study.  The objectives of the PUD provide a higher quality of development than 
could be achieved under conventional zoning.  The façade quality and pedestrian amenities 
exceed Ordinance requirements and accomplish safe and efficient site circulation connectivity.  
The development plan provides a large open space and landscaped area which exceeds the 
requirements of the City, and a workable integrated design. 
 
 2.6 Developer shall maintain all common areas, storm water drainage and retention 
facilities, landscaped areas, parking areas and sidewalks in good working order and appearance.  
Developer may establish an Association or Associations to assume the maintenance obligations 
set forth in this Article II, this Planned Unit Development Agreement and otherwise, in which 
event the Association or Associations shall succeed to the Developer’s obligations for those 
portions of the Property defined in the instrument establishing each Association, and Developer 
shall be relieved of all obligations and liability with respect thereto. 
 
 2.7 Developer or an Association or Associations shall perform its landscaping 
maintenance obligations under Article II, this Planned Unit Development Agreement and 



  6

otherwise,  such that the landscaping and related improvements are maintained in a neat and 
orderly appearance, substantially free from refuse and debris and, weather permitting, Developer 
or the Association or Associations shall promptly replace any dead or dying plants and shrubs, 
but in no event later than the end of the then-current planting season. 
 
 2.8 In the event Developer conveys all or any portion of the Property, it shall 
establish restrictions on the Property providing that all portions of the Property shall have full 
egress and ingress for both vehicular and pedestrian use and for egress and ingress to Big 
Beaver, and full access of the common areas for utility installation, construction, repair, and 
maintenance affecting and placed upon the Property, which may provide for shared participation 
in the cost of maintenance and repair.  Developer may, however, designate specific parking areas 
for use by specific components of the Development. 
 
 2.9 The Property contains three structures which Developer intends to demolish.  The 
City will grant any permits required for such purpose, which shall be subject to the requirements 
set forth below in this section.  Developer shall comply with all State statutes and City 
Ordinances regarding demolition.  In connection with the demolition of such structures, 
Developer shall engage a demolition contractor to remove any asbestos and/or asbestos 
contaminated materials contained within such structures(s) prior to performing its demolition 
activities.  Any asbestos shall be removed in accordance with an action plan prepared by 
Developer’s contractor, which action plan shall include the following:  prior to the removal of 
any asbestos and/or asbestos contaminated materials, such contractor shall notify the Michigan 
Department of Environmental Quality that the contractor intends to commence demolition 
activities involving a structure(s) which contains asbestos; Developer’s contractor shall use 
trained asbestos abatement/removal technicians.  All asbestos materials, if any, which are 
removed from the site shall be sent to a Type II landfill and, in connection with the transportation 
of such materials to the landfill, appropriate shipping manifests shall be obtained and a third-
party monitoring company shall be engaged to monitor the transportation of asbestos 
contaminated materials to such landfill.  Demolition of structures will commence/resume 
following completion of asbestos removal activities.  During the demolition process, the site will 
be sprayed with water to minimize airborne particles.  Following completion of the demolition 
activities, the City shall inspect the site prior to the performance of backfilling and grading 
activities.  When the City has approved the site, which approval shall not be unreasonably 
withheld, the site will then be graded and seeded to prevent soil erosion. 
 
 2.10 Developer shall comply with the City Code and Ordinances and Engineering 
Standards not inconsistent with this Agreements, make any necessary application for permits, 
and obtain any necessary permits for the use of construction trailers and for lease and advertising 
signs. 
 

ARTICLE III 
 

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 
 

 3.1 Water and Sanitary Sewer Systems.  Developer shall, at its sole expense, 
construct and install improvements and/or connections tying into the municipal water and 



  7

sewage systems, including any required water hydrants.  Such improvements shall be designed 
and constructed in accordance with the Final Site Plan, the PUD Documents, approved 
engineering construction plans, applicable City, County and State standards, codes, regulations, 
ordinances and laws.  Such water and sanitary sewer service facilities, including any on-site and 
off-site facilities, extensions and easements to reach the area to be served, shall be provided by 
and at the sole expense of the Developer, and shall be completed, approved and dedicated to the 
City, as requested by the City in its discretion,  to the extent necessary to fully service all 
proposed and existing facilities, structures and uses within the Development to be served 
thereby.  No building shall be issued a Certificate of Occupancy until that building is served by 
water and sanitary sewer improvements according to applicable laws, ordinances, codes, 
regulations and standards in effect at the time the Certificate of Occupancy for the building is 
applied for.  The City may require that the Developer post security in the form of cash or check 
or certificate of deposit or irrevocable letter of credit issued by an institution doing business in 
Oakland County, under a separate agreement in an amount equal to the cost of construction, or a 
performance bond in an amount equal to the cost of construction plus ten (10%) percent, as 
specified in a bona fide contract for construction of such water and sanitary sewer system 
improvements, which estimate shall be approved by the City Engineer, together with an 
agreement with the City, approved by the City Attorney, authorizing the City, at its option, to 
install the water system and/or sanitary sewer system if Developer has failed to do so within the 
time specified in this Agreement.  If such deposit is approved and made, all building permits 
shall be issued for construction of buildings and improvements.  If Developer fails to fulfill its 
obligation, then the City shall provide thirty (30) days prior written notice to cure.  If a 
Developer has commenced performance to cure, it shall be given such further reasonable time to 
complete such cure.  All performance bonds, if elected in lieu of letter of credit, shall be issued 
by institutions licensed and admitted to do business in the State of Michigan.  Building permits 
for any building to be served by the water and sanitary system facilities improvements shall be 
issued upon the posting of the above security and execution of such agreement prior to 
installation or construction of such sewer and water installations.  Developer shall assume all 
risks associated with any non-availability of water and/or sanitary sewers to serve the structures 
within the Development, including without limitation, uninhabitable buildings and fire protection 
risks, and shall release, indemnity and hold harmless the City from and against any claims 
arising by reason of any such non-availability except for damages that are directly proximately 
caused by the City’s acts or omissions or the gross negligence of the City.  Developer shall, upon 
completion of installation and testing of the public water and sanitary sewer improvements for 
each building, convey and dedicate all interest in such facilities to the City by providing and 
executing documents and title work in accordance with all applicable City ordinances and 
requirements.  Thereafter, the City shall assume all liability and obligation for such utilities 
dedicated. 
 
 3.2 Storm Water Drainage.  The Developer, at its sole expense, shall construct and 
maintain a storm water and retention and/or detention system for the Development, which system 
shall include the improvements provided in this Agreement, and shall be installed in accordance 
with the PUD Documents, the approved engineering construction plans, and all applicable 
ordinances, laws, codes, standards and regulations.  All drainage improvements necessary to 
serve the Development shall be completed and approved prior to issuance of any Certificate of 
Occupancy.  The City may require the Developer to post security in the form of cash or check or 



  8

certificate of deposit or irrevocable letter of credit issued by an institution doing business in 
Oakland County, in a separate agreement approved by the City in an amount equal to the 
estimated cost of installation, or a performance bond in an amount equal to the cost of 
construction plus ten (10%) percent, as specified in a bona fide contract for installation of such 
drainage improvements approved by the City Engineer, together with an agreement with the 
City, approved by the City Attorney, authorizing the City to, at its option, install the drainage 
improvements in question if the Developer has failed to do so at the expiration or revocation of 
building permit(s) after construction has commenced.  All performance bonds, if any, shall be 
issued by institutions licensed and admitted to do business in the State of Michigan.  Building 
permits shall be issued upon the posting of such security and execution of such agreement. 
 
 All construction, repair, maintenance and replacement of the storm drainage and 
retention/detention system which are Developer’s responsibility, as described in this Section, 
shall be the sole obligation of the Developer and its successors and assigns.  During the 
development of the Property, the Developer or its successors or assigns shall be obligated to 
maintain the storm drainage and retention and/or detention system and facilities in a fully 
operational condition. 
 
3.3 Streets, Boulevards, Sidewalks, Drives, Entryways and Parking Lots.  All drives, 
entryways, sidewalks, non-motorized paths and parking areas within the Development shall be 
designed, situated and constructed in accordance with the PUD Documents and all requirements 
and applicable ordinances of the City not inconsistent with this Agreement, and the approved 
engineering construction plans.  All internal drives, entryways, sidewalks, and parking areas will 
be private except as otherwise setout herein.  The construction drawings for drives shall be 
approved prior to issuance of building permits for the construction of any building or structure to 
be served thereby or to benefit therefrom.  The City may require the Developer to post security in 
the form of cash or check or certificates of deposit or irrevocable letter of credit issued by an 
institution doing business in Oakland County, in a separate agreement approved by the City in an 
amount equal to the estimated cost of the construction, or a performance bond in an amount 
equal to the cost of construction plus ten (10%) percent, as specified in a bona fide contract for 
construction of all such improvements, approved by the City Engineer, together with an 
agreement approved by the City Attorney authorizing the City to, at its option, install the 
improvements in question if the Developer has failed to do so after thirty (30) days prior notice.  
Developer shall be given such additional time as is reasonable to effectuate a cure if it has timely 
commenced a cure.  All performance bonds shall be issued by institutions licensed and admitted 
to do business in the State of Michigan.  Building permits shall be issued for any building in the 
Development upon posting the security for the amounts as set forth above.  Developer shall 
install and maintain an adequate gravel surface base as determined by the City Engineer for all 
entranceways and internal drive areas to provide for access for construction traffic, City 
personnel, emergency and fire fighting equipment for such specific site and prior to construction 
of a final base course.  The aforementioned agreement for completion shall provide that the 
paving of all areas referenced in this paragraph shall be completed and approved (including 
topcoat and parking lot striping) prior to the issuance of more than ninety-five (95%) percent of 
any Certificates of Occupancy for buildings within the Development, but in any event such 
paving shall be completed within two (2) years of issuance of the first building permit for a 
building. 



  9

 
 The internal drives, entranceways, sidewalks and parking areas shall be designed and 
constructed to the standards of the City, except for deviations approved by the City Engineer. 
 
 Developer, its successors and assigns, shall be responsible for maintenance and repair of 
the drives, entranceways, sidewalks, and parking areas for each building site during the period of 
construction, and shall also keep streets abutting the Development free from debris and repair 
any damage to the streets abutting the Development (subject to City of Troy requirements) 
caused by construction activities on or for the Property or the Development and use of abutting 
streets for construction purposes.  If the Developer fails, after thirty (30) days prior written notice 
and failure to cure, to maintain and repair the drives, entranceways, parking areas and abutting 
streets as required by this Paragraph, the City may issue stop work orders and/or withhold 
issuance of further approvals, permits and occupancy certificates for the Development until such 
failure is cured.  At all times, during and after completion of construction, Developer, its 
successor and assigns, shall cause all internal drives, entranceways and parking areas to be 
maintained, repaired and kept in an unimpeded, unobstructed, safe and passable condition at all 
times to allow for the free flow and circulation of traffic throughout the Development, except for 
temporary closures or obstruction due to repairs or snow.  Subject to Paragraph 3.4 below, the 
responsibility and obligation for such ongoing maintenance and repair shall be that of the 
Developer, its successors and assigns. 
 
 3.4 Developer shall have the right to assign its maintenance obligations under this 
Agreement to an Association or Associations and to any successors and assigns including any 
successor developer or owner of a portion of the Development.  Upon the assignment to and 
assumption by an Association or any successor developer or owner of any of  Developer’s 
maintenance obligations, as set out in this Agreement and otherwise, Developer shall have no 
further obligations or liability with respect thereto.  All successors and assigns of Developer shall 
agree to be bound by the obligations for common area maintenance under the PUD Agreement. 
 
 3.5 For purposes of maintenance obligations set forth in this Paragraph, the term 
“maintenance,” “maintain” and “maintained” shall mean and include regular inspections. 
 

ARTICLE IV 
 

THE CITY’S RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS 
 

 4.1 The City, in each instance, shall provide by written thirty (30) day notice to 
Developer with a time period in which to cure any deficiencies under this Agreement, which 
shall be no less than or no longer than such longer reasonable period of time as may be required 
if Developer, its successors, assigns, Association and/or owner(s) have commenced to cure and 
are expeditiously proceeding to satisfy such condition. 
 
 If, following the expiration of the period set forth to cure any deficiencies above, such 
deficiencies have not been cured, the City shall thereupon have the power and authority, but not 
the obligation, to take any of the following actions, in addition to any actions authorized under 
City ordinance and/or State law: 



  10

 
  A. Demand that the non-performance, deficiency or obligation be fulfilled, 
performed or completed, before Developer assigns its obligations to an Association and set a 
specific date to complete the performance which may not be less than thirty (30) days prior 
written notice, and the City may then proceed under Paragraph 4.1(B) to fulfill the obligation or 
correct the deficiency. 
 
  B. Enter upon the Property, or cause its agents or contractors to enter upon 
the Property and perform such obligation or take such corrective measures as reasonably found 
by the City Council to be appropriate.  In addition to any financial assurance given to ensure 
completion of the improvements, the additional costs and expense of making and financing such 
action by the City, including without limitation notices by the City and reasonable legal fees 
incurred by the City, plus an administrative fee in the amount of twenty-five (25%) percent of 
the total of all such costs and expenses incurred shall be paid by Developer within thirty (30) 
days of a billing to Developer. 
  C. The City may initiate legal action for the enforcement of any of the 
provisions, requirements, and obligations set forth in the PUD Documents. 
 
  D. The City may issue a stop work order as to any building or improvement 
affected and may deny the issuance of any requested building permit or Certificate of Occupancy 
for such building or improvement regardless of whether the Developer is the named applicant for 
such permit or certificate of occupancy, and may suspend further inspections of any or all aspects 
of the defaulting building improvement until cured. 
 
  E. The City may assess a lien against an individual property owner on a pro-
rata basis. 
 
 4.2 In the event that the City utilizes the proceeds of a financial assurance given to 
ensure completion or maintenance of improvements, at any time throughout the period of 
development and construction of any part of the Development, the City, its contractors, 
representatives, consultants and agents, shall be permitted, and are hereby granted authority, to 
enter upon all or any portion of the Property for the purpose of inspecting and/or completing the 
respective improvements, and for the purposes of inspecting for compliance with and 
enforcement of the PUD Documents. 
 
 4.3 To the extent the PUD Documents deviate from the City of Troy Development 
Standards, Zoning Ordinances, or other City ordinances, or any amendments thereto, the PUD 
Documents shall control in all respects, including all land uses and approvals set forth and/or 
allowed pursuant to the PUD.  All improvements constructed in accordance with the PUD 
Documents shall be deemed to be conforming under the Zoning Ordinance and in compliance 
with all ordinances of the City for all times and purposes and shall run with the land. 
 
 4.4     A portion of the property that is included in this Proposed Planned Unit 
Development is restricted by an Amended and Restated Consent Judgment dated July 29, 2003, 
which amends the original consent judgment dated January 7, 1992.  According to paragraph 9 
of this Amended and Restated Consent Judgment, the zoning for Lot 20 of the Big Beaver 



  11

Poultry Farms Subdivision “shall be either: (i) the zoning of and uses of Lot 15 (owned by the 
City of Troy as of the time of the original judgment), as elected by Troy; or (ii) R-1E, single-
family residential”.  The approval of the Proposed Big Beaver Place PUD Agreement and 
Conceptual Site Plan by the Troy City Council would satisfy this provision, to the extent that 
both Lots 15 and 20 would be rezoned to the same PUD zoning classification.    
 

ARTICLE V 
 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 

 5.1 This Agreement may not be modified, replaced, amended or terminated without 
the prior written consent of the parties to this Agreement.  Developer and any successor 
developers and property owners shall have the right to delegate its (their) rights and obligations 
under this Agreement to an Association as set out in this Agreement.  Until rights and 
responsibilities under this Agreement are transferred to such Association, Developer and the City 
shall be entitled to modify, replace, amend or terminate this Agreement, without requiring the 
consent of any other person or entity whatsoever, regardless of whether such person has any 
interest in the Property, including owners, mortgages of co-owners, and others.  After the rights 
and obligations under this Agreement are transferred to an Association or any successor 
developer, only the Association or Associations, the successor developers and property owners, 
and the City shall be entitled to modify, replace, amend or terminate this Agreement. 
 
 5.2 This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws 
of the State of Michigan. 
 
 5.3 Where there is a question with regard to applicable regulations for a particular 
aspect of the Development, or with regard to clarification, interpretation, or definition of terms or 
regulations, and there are no apparent express provisions of the PUD Documents which apply, 
the City in the reasonable exercise of its discretion, shall determine the regulations of the City’s 
Ordinances that are applicable, provided such determination is not inconsistent with the nature 
and intent of the PUD Documents nor increase such obligations. 
 
 5.4 The terms of the PUD Documents, including this Agreement, have been 
negotiated by the undersigned parties and such documentation represents the product of the joint 
efforts and agreement of the Developer and the City.  Developer and the City fully accept and 
agree to the final terms, conditions, requirements and obligations of the PUD Documents, and 
shall not be permitted in the future to claim that the effect of these PUD Documents results in an 
unreasonable limitation upon uses of all or a portion of the Property, or claim that enforcement 
of any of the PUD Documents causes an inverse condemnation or taking of all or a portion of the 
Property.  Furthermore, it is agreed that the improvements and undertakings set forth in the PUD 
Documents are necessary and roughly proportional to the burden imposed in order to ensure that 
services and facilities affected by the Planned Unit Development will be capable of 
accommodating increased services and facility loads, traffic and storm water drainage caused by 
the development thereof, to protect the natural environment and conserve natural resources, to 
ensure compatibility with adjacent uses of land, to promote use of the Property in a socially and 
economically desirable manner, and to achieve other legitimate objectives authorized under the 



  12

Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, MCL 125.3101, et seq.  It is further agreed and acknowledged 
hereby that all of such improvements are substantially related to the burdens to be created by the 
development contemplated hereby, and all such improvements and the requirements and 
regulations of the Property under the PUD Documents and Zoning Ordinance, without exception, 
are clearly and substantially related to the City’s legitimate interests in protecting the public 
health, safety and general welfare. 
 
 5.5 Developer, its successors and assigns, shall comply as is applicable with the 
following: 
 
  A. Signage for the commercial and retail components shall comply with the 
Sign Ordinance requirements for B districts.  Signage for the residential facility shall comply 
with Sign Ordinance requirements for the R-M district. 
 
  B. Elevations for the commercial retail buildings shall be consistent with the 
elevations which have heretofore been submitted to the Planning Commission and City Council.  
Furthermore, the elevations shall be brought back to the Planning Commission and City Council 
for review prior to granting of building permits. 
 
  C. Rooftop mechanical equipment shall be fully screened with materials that 
are architecturally consistent with the building elevations. 
 
 5.6 Any notice provided for in this Agreement shall be in writing, addressed to the 
party to whom notice is given at the address set out at the beginning of this Agreement, or to 
such other address as one party gives to the other by notice, and deposited in the United States 
Mails, postage prepaid. 
 
 5.7 This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one agreement.  The signature of any party 
to any counterpart shall be deemed to be a signature to, and may be appended to, any other 
counterpart. 
 
 5.8 This Agreement shall be binding on, and shall inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective successors and assigns. 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT was executed by the respective parties on the date specified with 
the notarization with their name, and shall take effect on the date of adoption by the Troy City 
Council of the Zoning Ordinance amendment granting rezoning of the Property to Big Beaver 
Place Planned Unit Development. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Developer has caused this Development Agreement to be 
executed the day and year first above written. 
 

 
 
 



  13

 
 
 
DEVELOPER: 
 
BIG BEAVER PLACE, LLC,  
a Michigan limited liability company 
 
 
   
By:   

Dated:            Its:        
 
 

CITY: 
 
CITY OF TROY, a Michigan municipal 
corporation 
 
 
   
By:     Louise Schilling 

Dated:            Its:     Mayor 
 
 
                    
            By:   Tonni Bartholomew 
Dated:            Its:    City Clerk 
 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ____________, 
2007, by _________________________, the __________________ of BIG BEAVER PLACE, 
LLC, a Michigan limited liability company, on behalf of the company. 
 

   
Print Name:  
Notary Public, ____________County, Michigan 
My Commission Expires:  
Acting in the County of   

 
 

{Notary continues on next page} 



  14

 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ____________, 
2007, by Louise Schilling, Mayor, and Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk, of the City of Troy, a 
Michigan municipal corporation, on behalf of the Corporation. 
 
 

   
Print Name:  
Notary Public, ____________County, Michigan 
My Commission Expires:  
Acting in the County of   

 
 
 
 

DRAFTED BY:                    WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
Norman Hyman, Esq. (P15319)                            Tonni Bartholomew, 
Honigman Miller Schwartz & Cohn LLP             City Clerk 
38500 Woodward Suite 100                                  500 West Big Beaver Road 
Bloomfield Hills, MI  48304                                 Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 566-8460 

 
OAKLAND.1319692.1 



 1

 
 
DATE: August 28, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing – Concept Development Plan Approval – The Oasis at Centennial Park 

Planned Unit Development (PUD 6), South side of Long Lake and West side of John R, 
Section 14 – Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District 

 
Background: 
 

 
• The Planning Commission recommended Concept Development Plan Approval of PUD 6 at 

the June 12, 2007 Regular meeting.   
 
• The project consists of a mixed-use project with a combination of a 20-bed senior housing 

facility and retail, restaurant, day care, and office uses.   
 

• Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., the City’s Planning Consultant, prepared 
a report summarizing the project and recommends Concept Development Plan Approval. 

 
• The proposed PUD meets the Eligibility requirements of Section 35.30.00 of the City of Troy 

Zoning Ordinance. 
 

• The proposed PUD meets the Standards for Approval of Section 35.70.03 of the City of Troy 
Zoning Ordinance. 

 
• The Development Agreement will be provided for the Public Hearing.  
 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 

• There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-03



 2

 
• City Council has the authority to act on this application.  

 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

• The item is consistent with City Council Goal I (Enhance the livability and safety of the 
community), Goal III (Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment), and Goal 
V (Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public needs). 

 
 
Options: 
 

• City Council can approve the application for Concept Development Plan Approval. 
 
• City Council can approve the application for Concept Development Plan Approval with 

conditions. 
 
• City Council can deny the application for Concept Development Plan Approval. 
 

 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality: ________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., dated June 6, 2007. 
3. Planning Commission Minutes from the June 12, 2007 Regular meeting. 
4. Public comments. 
5. PUD Agreement. 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File /PUD 6 
 Richard Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, inc. 
 
G:\PUD's\PUD 006 Oasis at Centennial Park PUD\CC Public Hearing 09 11 07.doc 
 
 
 











ROCHESTER

DEQUINDRE

LONG LAKE
JOHN

R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPHENSON

COOLIDGE

CROOKS
MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ADAMS



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

SUBJECT PROPERTY



GA
MB

ER

WH
ITE

SE
LL

RADCLIFFE

GR
EE

ND
AL

E

E LONG LAKE

ALTON

CARR

CA
LV

ER
T

WE
ST

MO
RE

LA
ND

CT EVANSTON

WILMET

OR
CH

AR
D 

CR
ES

T

WELLING
JO

HN
R

ALTON
CT

DO
UG

LA
S

FIR

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT REQUEST
PROPOSED OASIS AT CENTENNIAL PARK
S SIDE OF LONG LAKE, W SIDE OF JOHN R
SEC. 14 (P.U.D. #6)  

0 100 200 300 400 50050 Feet ³

SUBJECT PROPERTY

PROPOSED HIDDEN PARC 
SITE CONDOMINIUM



GA
MB

ER

WH
ITE

SE
LL

RADCLIFFE

GR
EE

ND
AL

E

E LONG LAKE

ALTON

CARR

CA
LV

ER
T

WE
ST

MO
RE

LA
ND

CT EVANSTON

WILMET

OR
CH

AR
D 

CR
ES

T

WELLING
JO

HN
R

ALTON
CT

DO
UG

LA
S

FIR

CR-1

C-F

R-1C

O-1

B-3
CJ-25

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT REQUEST
PROPOSED OASIS AT CENTENNIAL PARK
S SIDE OF LONG LAKE, W SIDE OF JOHN R
SEC. 14 (P.U.D. #6)  

0 100 200 300 400 50050 Feet ³

SUBJECT PROPERTY

PROPOSED HIDDEN PARC 
SITE CONDOMINIUM



 
 
  

 Date: March 28, 2007 
Rev: April 18, 2007 

Rev: June 6, 2007 
   

Planned Unit Development/Site Plan Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Applicant: Stefano Mularoni 
 Oasis at Centennial Park, LLC 

48593 Hayes  
 Shelby Township, MI  48315 

Project Name: Oasis at Centennial Park Planned Unit Development 

Plan Date: April 10, 2007 

Latest Revision: May 23, 2007 

Location: Southeast corner of Long Lake and John R roads  

Zoning: R-1C, One Family Residential District  

Action Requested: Planning Commission review and recommendation to the City 
Council for approval of a Concept Development Plan as 
established in Section 35.50. 

Required Information: Deficiencies noted.  

 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
We are in receipt of a revised application for the Oasis at Centennial Park Planned Unit 
Development.  The site is located at the southwest corner of Long Lake Road and John R Road.  
The proposal consists of a mixed use project with a combination of a 20-bed senior housing 
facility and retail, restaurant, day care, and office uses.  The senior housing is proposed in the 
form of “greenhouses”, a concept which offers alternative care for the elderly.  The site is 
currently occupied by seven (7) one-family residences on their own parcels, and is 9.34 acres in 
total.  The site is currently zoned R-1C, One Family Residential District.  



Oasis at Centennial Park PUD 6-6-07 

2 

 
 

 
 
The applicant has made the following revisions to the plan which include, but are not necessarily 
limited to, the following: 
 

1. Eliminated parallel parking spaces on either side of the proposed central driveway near 
the southeast access to John R Road.  This resulted in more green space near the cafe; 

2. Relocated the loading area on the proposed central driveway to the north side of the 
Retail/Retail C building. 

3. Narrowed the boulevard entrance slightly off of John R Road. 

4. Added banked parking in the northwest corner of the property.  This change eliminates 
constructing fifty-two (52) parking spaces in this location. 

Project 
Site

Long Lake Road 

Jo
hn

 R
 R

oa
d 



Oasis at Centennial Park PUD 6-6-07 

3 

5. Added nineteen (19) parking spaces in front of the restaurant/office building; two (2) 
spaces in front of Retail A, and two (2) spaces in front of Retail B-C.   

6. Added pedestrian amenities to improve opportunities for crossing the main road through 
the development; added walks behind the retirement facility; and added walkways to 
allow a person to walk from John R Road to E. Long Lake Road. 

 
NEIGHBORING ZONING AND LAND USE 

 
North: The properties directly north across Long Lake Road are zoned R-1C, One Family 

Residential District; uses in this area include a church and one-family residences.  
To the north and east, at the northeast corner of the Long Lake Road and John R 
Road intersection, is a parcel zoned B-3, General Business District, which is used 
for retail.   

 
South: Properties to the south of the site are zoned R-1C, One Family Residential 

District.  Existing uses in this area include a party store and one-family 
residential.   

 
East: The properties located on the southeast corner of Long Lake Road and John R 

Road are zoned B-3, General Business District and R-1C, One Family Residential 
District.  The site surrounds an existing CVS on the southwest corner of Long 
Lake and John R Road. The remainder of the area is used for one-family 
residential (south of the subject site), with the exception of the fire training 
facility, which is located directly east of the project site.  

 
West: The land to the west along Long Lake Road is zoned R-1C, One Family 

Residential District, and is used for one-family residential. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
MASTER PLAN 

The subject property is currently planned for low density residential use along both Long Lake 
Road and John R Road.  The Master Land Use Plan classifications surrounding the site are: 
 

North: Low density residential 
 
South: Low density residential 
 
East: Community facilities 
 
West: Low density residential 

 
While the commercial or senior housing proposed for this property are not consistent with the 
Master Plan designation of low density residential, we agree with the applicant’s assertion that 
the proposed uses are compatible with the surrounding area.     



Oasis at Centennial Park PUD 6-6-07 

4 

 
As set forth in Sec. 35.40.00, the proposal must be consistent with the Master Plan, sub-area or 
corridor plans or recent development trends of the area.  This Plan designates the northeast and 
southeast corners as local service area and community facilities respectively.  However, 
commercial zoning exists on the northeast, and southwest corners.  Therefore, the subject project 
is consistent with “recent development trends in the area.”  The proposed project provides 
relatively low intensity mixed collection of smaller commercial and office uses, which are well 
located in close proximity to the CVS.  The balance of the uses, senior citizen greenhouse and 
day care, are uses which are compatible with the adjacent residential.    
 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
NATURAL RESOURCES 
 
Topography:  The topography of the site is relatively flat, with drainage moving from 

west to east.  The site was previously developed for one-family residential 
use, and varies in grade from 665 feet above sea level at the highest point 
on the west end of the site to 658 feet above sea level at its lowest point at 
the east end of the site.   

 
Woodlands: There does not appear to be a significant number of large mature trees on 

site that could be maintained and/or transplanted, although the plan does 
indicate that there are several pockets with trees of some maturity.  There 
are small collections of trees and brush near the existing residences and in 
a few small brushy areas throughout the site.  The topographic survey 
provided does indicate that a small pocket of larger evergreens at the 
southwest corner of the site will remain.   

 
Wetlands: The on-site evaluation conducted by King and MacGregor Environmental 

on behalf of the applicant indicates that no wetlands are present on the 
subject site.   

 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
TRAFFIC IMPACT 
 
A traffic impact study was provided in a previous submittal, prepared by Traffic Engineering 
Associates, Inc.  The analysis provides land use observations, traffic counts, a level of service 
analysis, a review of background conditions, projected site traffic generation, the estimated 
future traffic volumes, and a future level of service analysis.  The study also includes a summary 
of findings which indicate that the following 5 items should be considered: 
 

1. The Road Commission for Oakland County should evaluate the John R Road and East 
Long Lake Road intersection for the need for signalization and geometric alterations that 
may be necessary in the future, potentially including dedicated right-turn lanes. 



Oasis at Centennial Park PUD 6-6-07 

5 

2. The proposed drive on Long Lake Road should be constructed with two full width exiting 
lanes, and a full-width right-turn lane should be provided for traffic entering the site from 
eastbound Long Lake Road. 

3. The north proposed drive on John R Road (which accesses the CVS site) should be 
provided at the southbound right turn lane shown on the site plan. 

4. A right turn taper for southbound John R Road traffic should be provided at the south 
proposed drive on John R Road. 

5. The proposed boulevard section at the south proposed drive on John R Road should be 
removed to reduce potential left turn conflicts. 

We defer to the City Engineer with regard to the conclusions of the traffic analysis.  The 
applicant has added the proposed changes suggested in #2, #3, and #4 to this set of plans.  The 
only change suggested that was not made was removing the proposed boulevard off of John R 
Road.    

 
Items to be Addressed:  Address conclusions of traffic study.  
 
ESSENTIAL FACILITIES AND SERVICES 

Water and Sewer 

The site will connect to existing water and sewer mains located within the right-of-way of Long 
Lake Road (water) and John R Road (sewer).   

Stormwater Management 

The site plan states that site is in the Nelson Drain District, and that stormwater will be detained 
on site, and then discharged to the existing storm sewer along Long Lake Road.  The plan also 
makes use of bio-swales within parking lot landscaping areas.  Additional information with 
regard to proposed stormwater management has been included in the submittal, in a new Sheet 3 
containing proposed preliminary grading and stormwater management measures.  We support 
the applicant’s use of bio-swales throughout the property. We defer to the City Engineer with 
regard to proposed utilities. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  City Engineer review of utilities.  
 
PUD STANDARDS  
 
The Zoning Ordinance, as amended, sets forth criteria in Section 35.30.00 for consideration of a 
project as a PUD.  The following are our comments:  
 
Section 35.30.00, A.  The proposal development shall be applied for by a person or entity who 
has the legal right to execute a binding agreement concerning all process on the development. 
 
The applicant has demonstrated that this requirement has been met. 
 



Oasis at Centennial Park PUD 6-6-07 

6 

Section 35.30.00, B.:  The applicant shall demonstrate that through the use of the PUD option, 
the development will accomplish a sufficient number of the following objectives, as are 
reasonably applicable to the site, providing:  
 
1.  A mixture of land uses that would otherwise not be permitted without the use of the PUD, 

provided that other objectives of this Article are also met.  

 The proposal provides a mixture of land uses that would otherwise not be permitted in 
the underlying zoning category, or in any other single zoning category. 

2.  A public improvement or public facility (e.g. recreational, transportation, safety and 
security) which will enhance, add to or replace those provided by public entities, thereby 
furthering the public health, safety and welfare.  

 The site plan includes an extensive pedestrian network, increased landscaping, and three 
large park-like settings.  There are walkway connections to the public system along both 
roadways and the neighboring subdivision. 

3. A recognizable and material benefit to the ultimate users of the project and to the 
community, where such benefit would otherwise be infeasible or unlikely to be achieved 
absent these regulations.   

 The proposed project represents a coordinated plan which includes a mix of land uses 
working together to form an innovative and high-quality development.   This walkable, 
integrated design would be difficult to arrange using conventional zoning techniques. 

4. Long term protection and preservation of natural resources, natural features, and historic 
and cultural resources, of a significant quantity and/or quality in need of protection or 
preservation, and which would otherwise be unfeasible or unlikely to be achieved absent 
these regulations.  

 We are aware of no such features on the subject site. 

5. A compatible mixture of open space, landscaped areas, and/or pedestrian amenities.  

 The applicant is required to provide substantially more open space and landscape area 
than the ten (10%) percent requirement of Section 39.70.04.  This requirement is in 
addition to the greenbelt requirements.  Open space and landscape features are intended 
to be primary features of developments seeking PUD approval and are expected to 
provide substantially more open space area than that required for typical developments.  
The site plan now indicates that 2.91 acres of open space (which does not include the 
area occupied by the water feature) are proposed for this development, which is 
equivalent to over 31 percent of the site.  Including the area occupied by the water 
feature, 3.73 acres, or 40 percent of the site, is proposed.  We feel this meets with the 
requirements of Section 39.70.04 and are satisfied that the proposed open space is 
optimally located to provide the best possible transition to adjacent development. 

6. Appropriate land use transitions between the PUD and surrounding properties.  

 The strategic location of the senior housing and proposed open space and landscaping 
materials provide the best possible transition to the adjacent land uses, given the nature 
of the proposed uses within the project.  As mentioned in the previous review, we have a 
concern that the westerly parking is not an appropriate transition.  However, the 



Oasis at Centennial Park PUD 6-6-07 

7 

applicant has now proposed to landback parking for this area and add parking 
elsewhere. 

7. Design features and techniques, such as green building and low impact design, which 
will promote and encourage energy conservation and sustainable development.  

 The applicant has incorporated bio-swales throughout the development to mitigate the 
effect the development will have on stormwater infiltration.  We defer to the City 
Engineer in this regard.  They have also reduced the number of parking spaces by a total 
of twenty-nine (29) spaces, and increased the green/open space by banking parking.  We 
are not aware of any other measures being taken to ensure sustainable design. 

8. Innovative and creative site and building designs, solutions and materials.  

 The incorporation of a central water feature and the mix of proposed land uses represent 
an innovative and creative site plan which will provide an amenity to potential visitors to 
the area.  The proposed buildings are shown in conceptual elevations and floor plans, 
and are of a typical mass and height for the area.  The proposed buildings do provide 
architectural variation between the residential and non-residential portions of the site 
and are arranged to take advantage of future views over the central water feature. 

9. The desirable qualities of a dynamic urban environment that is compact, designed to 
human scale, and exhibits contextual integration of buildings and city spaces.   

 This site plan was designed to offer a variety of uses in close proximity. The pattern is 
compact and demonstrates a multi-use site in which users can recreate and work, shop, 
dine, or seek child care. 

10.  The PUD will reasonably mitigate impacts to the transportation system and enhance non-
motorized facilities and amenities.   

 The plan does include a comprehensive pedestrian pathway network throughout the site 
which provides excellent non-motorized access from one use to another.  The previous 
submission includes a traffic study which makes a series of recommendations with regard 
to motorized transportation, may  which have been incorporated into the site plan.   

11.  For the appropriate assembly, use, redevelopment, replacement and/or improvement of 
existing sites that are occupied by obsolete uses and/or structures;  

 This proposal will redevelop properties that currently include one-family residences.  
The surrounding area is predominantly one-family residential and the site abuts the Long 
Lake Village Subdivision.  While we do not know whether the specific single family 
residential is obsolete, it is unlikely this site would be viable for new single family 
development. 

12.  A complementary variety of housing types that are in harmony with adjacent uses;  

 The senior living portion of this project will provide an alternative type of housing within 
the City.  The greenhouse concept is not currently offered.  The proposed senior housing 
buildings are limited in height (one story) and are designed and located to most 
appropriately remain in harmony with the adjacent subdivision 

13. A reduction of the impact of a non-conformity or removal of an obsolete building or 
structure.  



Oasis at Centennial Park PUD 6-6-07 

8 

 As noted above, we do not know whether the specific single family residential is obsolete, 
but we believe it is unlikely that this site would be viable for new single family 
development; we are not aware of any non-conformities on the site. 

14. A development consistent with and meeting the intent of this Article; and will promote 
the intent of the plan meeting the requirements of the Municipal Planning Act or the 
intent of any applicable corridor or sub-area plans.  If conditions have changed since the 
plan, or any applicable corridor or sub-area plans, were adopted, the uses shall be 
consistent with recent development trends in the area.  

 As noted earlier in this review, the proposal does not meet the goals of the Master Plan.  
However, it is our opinion that the Master Plan may not be realistic and the proposal is 
more consistent with development trends in the area. 

15.  Includes all necessary information and specifications with respect to structures, heights, 
setbacks, density, parking, circulation, landscaping, amenities and other design and 
layout features, exhibiting a due regard for the relationship of the development to the 
surrounding properties and uses thereon, as well as to the relationship between the 
various elements within the proposed Planned Unit Development. In determining whether 
these relationships have been appropriately addressed, consideration shall be given to the 
following: 

A.  The bulk, placement, and materials of construction of the proposed structures and 
other site improvements.   

 Basic information with regard to building materials has been provided on the 
conceptual floor plan and elevation drawings. 

B.  The location and screening of vehicular circulation and parking areas in relation 
to surrounding properties and the other elements of the development.   

 The vehicular parking and circulation areas and preliminary screening measures 
are adequately described on the site and landscape plans. 

C.  The location and screening of outdoor storage, loading areas, outdoor activity or 
work areas, and mechanical equipment.   

 One proposed loading area is described on the site plan (which was relocated 
from the previous submission).  Location and screening of any other outdoor 
storage, loading areas, outdoor activity or work areas, and mechanical 
equipment have not been provided. 

D.  The hours of operation of the proposed uses.  

 The applicant has provided a list of potential tenants.  We did not observe any 
information with regard to the proposed hours of operation of the potential uses 
proposed. 

E.  The location, amount, type and intensity of landscaping, and other site amenities.   
 
 While specific material quantities have not been provided at this time, a 

conceptual landscaping plan showing initial landscaping designs has been 
provided. 

 



Oasis at Centennial Park PUD 6-6-07 

9 

16.  Parking shall be provided in order to properly serve the total range of uses within the 
Planned Unit Development. The sharing of parking among the various uses within a 
Planned Unit Development may be permitted.  The applicant shall provide justification to 
the satisfaction of the City that the shared parking proposed is sufficient for the 
development and will not impair the functioning of the development, and will not have a 
negative effect on traffic flow within the development and/or on properties adjacent to 
the development.  We have suggestions regarding location. 

  
 A complete parking analysis is provided in later section of this review.  Given that the 

proposed uses lend themselves to a shared parking agreement, especially the senior 
housing and day care facilities ( which experience only intermittent or limited demand), 
we support the use of shared parking in the development.  The applicant has further  
responded to this by land banking some parking, and reducing the total number of 
parking spaces by twenty-nine (29) spaces across the development. 

 
17.  Innovative methods of stormwater management that enhance water quality shall be 

considered in the design of the stormwater system.  
 
 Stormwater generated by this development will be captured by an above-ground 

detention basin.  After stormwater is detained on site, it will then be discharged to the 
existing storm sewer along Long Lake Road.  The plan also makes limited use of a series 
of bio-swales throughout the property to lessen the impact on stormwater infiltration 
caused by the proposed project.  We would encourage the applicant to explore additional 
methodologies to enhance stormwater quality. 

 
18.  The proposed Planned Unit Development shall be in compliance with all applicable 

Federal, State and local laws and ordinances, and shall coordinate with existing public 
facilities.   

 
 The applicant has demonstrated throughout the process that the proposal meets with all 

applicable Federal, State and local laws and ordinances.  We defer to the City Engineer 
with regard to the site’s coordination with existing public facilities. 

 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS 
 
The underlying zoning for the entire site is R-1C, One Family Residential District.  While 
setbacks are not delineated on the site plan, our measurements indicate that the provided 
setbacks exceed the requirements for projects within the R-1C District, and also exceed the 
requirements for the B-2, Community Business District, and B-3, General Business District, 
districts under which the proposed nonresidential uses could conventionally be located.  
 
Items to be Addressed:  None.   
 
PARKING, LOADING 
 



Oasis at Centennial Park PUD 6-6-07 

10 

The proposal includes 265 parking spaces, which would serve approximately 31,000 square feet 
of retail, 6,900 square feet of office, a 30-child daycare, 4,000 square foot restaurant, and 20 
units of senior housing.  The site plan also shows 52 land banked spaces.  Required parking for 
these uses under conventional development approaches would be as follows.   
 
Proposed Use Calculation Required number of spaces 
Senior Living 0.65 spaces per unit plus one space 

per employee 
21 spaces (20 units and 8 
employees) 

Restaurant 1 space for every 35 square feet of 
gross floor area 

114 spaces (4,000 square feet) 

Retail 1 space for every 200 square feet 
of gross floor area 

155 spaces (31,000 square feet) 

Office 1 space for every 200 square feet 
of gross floor area 

35 spaces (6,900 square feet) 

Daycare 1 space for every 10 children plus 
1 space for every employee 

11 spaces (30 children and 8 
employees) 

TOTAL  336 spaces required under 
conventional zoning 

 
The Ordinance allows for the sharing of parking among mixed uses in a PUD.  The proposed 
reduction in overall required parking is 71 spaces, or approximately 21%. We consider this 
desirable since the proposed uses lend themselves to a shared parking agreement, especially the 
senior housing and day care facilities, which experience only intermittent or limited demand.  
 
The single proposed loading zone for the development was relocated from its previous location 
to the north of the Retail/Retail C building.  This is a more desirable location for loading for the 
central retail area.  Regarding Retail A building, loading/unloading space for each 
commercial/retail building will be accommodated directly behind he building.  Since loading 
will be sharing vehicular access space, there may be times where there are conflicts with patron 
use.  However, this is a small center and we expect the conflicts to be minimal. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION 
 
The plan shows three primary access points, one from Long Lake Road and two from John R 
Road.  These access points are appropriately situated opposite existing drives on both John R 
Road and Long Lake Road.  The site is arranged around a central drive that connects the single 
access drive on Long Lake Road with the south access drive on John R Road.   
 
We support the arrangement of the site around this primary drive, and recognize the applicant’s 
concept of locating the buildings around a central water feature.  Traffic calming features, such 
as relatively narrow roadways (20’), and raised pedestrian crossings have been added to help 
minimize cut-through traffic.  In addition, the applicant has banked parking spaces in the 
northwest corner, reducing pavement and minimizing the dominant appearance of parking.   
 
We consider the modifications to the design have been done in an acceptable manner.     

Items to be Addressed:   None.  



Oasis at Centennial Park PUD 6-6-07 

11 

 
SAFETY PATHS/SIDEWALKS 
 
A sidewalk and pathway plan has been provided.  A connected pathway and sidewalk system is 
proposed throughout the development which allows for full use of the proposed uses on foot.  
Furthermore, the proposed pathways connect the development to the adjacent Long Lake Village 
Subdivision by way of the existing sidewalks along Carr Drive.   
 
The overall compact layout of the site offers good walkability and pedestrian access, although 
the largest parking areas are located in remote locations relative to the main retail buildings 
along John R Road, consequently the walkways must cover significant distances to provide 
access.  The pedestrian pathway fully surrounds the proposed senior living facility and offers 
access to the planned open space in this area. 
 
As suggested in the previous review, the applicant has modified the pathway plan in several 
ways: 
1) Separate walkways from the bioswales,  
2) Move the loading zone near the café to provide direct access to the rear outside dining area, 

and  
3) Add additional crosswalks to offer access between parking areas and the proposed retail 

uses.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
LANDSCAPING 
 
Composition: The applicant is proposing a landscaping program which includes 

deciduous and evergreen plant material, a variety of shrubs, ornamentals, 
and perennials; however, specific quantities and sizes have not been 
identified at this time. 

 
Existing  
Vegetation: While little landscaping exists on the subject site, there are a number of 

smaller trees that are now proposed to remain.  The specific locations of 
these trees have identified on this set of plans.  A description of the trees 
also needs to be provided at the time of final site plan approval. 

 
Greenbelt: A minimum 10’ greenbelt is required along Long Lake Road and John R 

Road, and is provided in both locations.  
 
 For non-residential development, the Ordinance requires one tree per 

every thirty (30) linear feet of roadway frontage.  Long Lake Road will 
require 18 trees (519.75/30), and 19 are proposed.  John R Road will 
require 9 trees (269.59/30), and 11 are proposed. 

 
Residential  



Oasis at Centennial Park PUD 6-6-07 

12 

Screening: This plan does not indicate a wall between the commercial portions of the 
property and the residential portions. Given the integrated, mixed use 
design of this project, and its nature as a PUD, we do not feel that a screen 
wall is necessary and use of landscaping is more appropriate. 

   
Site  
Landscaping: Developments requesting PUD approval shall provide substantially more 

open space area than required for typical developments within the 
underlying zoning district.  As noted above, the site provides 40 percent 
open space including the water feature, and more than 31 percent open 
space not including the water feature. 

 
Details: Planting details have been provided.   
 
Refuse  
Container: Details of pedestrian trash receptacles are shown on the landscape plans, 

and locations and details of dumpsters throughout the development are 
also shown. Five dumpsters appear to be proposed for the entire 
development, two of which are located near the existing dumpster for the 
CVS store, and three of which are located along the south boundary of the 
site, between the day care facility and retail building “A.”  The design of 
the proposed dumpster enclosures is not provided.  

 
Items to be Addressed:  Describe nature of existing trees proposed to remain upon final 
approval.     
 
LIGHTING 
 
A lighting plan has not been provided as part of this submission, and the applicant has indicated 
by way of a note on the site plan drawing that the proposed decorative street lighting near the 
CVS site is still under discussion with the developers.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  Lighting information must be provided at the time of final site plan 
consideration. 
 
SIGNS 
 
Information about proposed signs has not been provided as part of this submission. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  Signage information must be provided at the time of final site plan 
consideration. 
 
FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS 
 
Conceptual floor plans and elevations have been provided for the proposed buildings.  The 
building style of the senior living facility is residential, and incorporates gable-end roofs, 
masonry construction, and dormers.  The proposed building style of the nonresidential portion is 



Oasis at Centennial Park PUD 6-6-07 

13 

far more contemporary, and incorporates limited masonry elements detailing predominantly 
glass and aluminum facades.  Proposed building heights are within the anticipated range for the 
area, and do not extend beyond a single story.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The proposed uses would provide benefit to the adjacent residences, provide an excellent 
transition of use, and would introduce an alternative housing style in the senior living component 
that would help diversify the City’s housing stock.  While the proposed uses within the PUD are 
not supported by the Master Plan, continuation of one-family, low density residential 
development for this site is unrealistic. 
 
Since the last submittal, the applicant has made significant revisions which address our 
outstanding comments.  Therefore, we recommend approval on the basis that the proposed uses 
are in keeping with the overall direction of development trends in the area and that the proposal 
provides positive elements that could not be achieved without application of the PUD option.   
 
 

 
 
  # 225-02-2702 
 
RKC: zb 
 
cc: Oasis at Centennial Park LLC, 48593 Hayes Road, Shelby Township, MI  48315 
 Fazal Khan & Associates, Inc., 43279 Schoenherr Road, Sterling Heights, MI  48313 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENTS 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (P.U.D. #6) – Proposed 

Oasis at Centennial Park, South side of Long Lake, West side of John R, Section 
14, Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Miller indicated City Management concurs with the recommendation of 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc.  He briefly reviewed the new approval 
procedure for planned unit development projects. 
 
Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., provided an updated report 
on the proposed development and addressed the revisions to the plan since the 
members last reviewed it.  Mr. Carlisle recommends approval of the Concept 
Development Plan.   
 
Discussed briefly were the dumpster location in relation to the café and the need 
for grease containers. 
 
Norman Hyman of 38500 Woodward Avenue, Bloomfield Hills, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  He introduced project team members Carol Thurber of 
Fazal Khan & Associates, Paul Landry of Landry + Newman Architects, and 
Stefano Mularoni, developer.  Mr. Hyman noted the location of dumpsters and 
grease containers would be addressed further during preliminary site plan 
preparation.  He said they tried to balance the uses and create a site plan with 
the least impact on the neighbors.   
 
Mr. Strat commended the petitioner on the proposed development.  He asked for 
clarification of the “pool” designations on the site plan.  
 
Ms. Thurber replied the “pool” designations refer to sedimentation forebays.  
 
Mr. Landry presented a rendering of the proposed development and reviewed the 
building materials. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Nancy-Street Merriweather of 1834 Wilmet Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. 
Merriweather spoke in opposition of the proposed development.  She addressed 
concerns with lighting, traffic and safety of school children, and indicated she 
would like to see the area stay residential.  
 
Peter Milosavlevski of 4843 John R, Troy, was present.  Mr. Milosavlevski spoke 
in opposition of the proposed development.  He explained that he and his sister 
were present tonight to speak on behalf of their mother who lives in the house 
adjacent to the proposed development.  They are owners of the Beer Barrel 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 

store.  Mr. Milosavlevski addressed concerns relating to noise, privacy and 
property values.   
 
Saśa Doll of 4843 John R, Troy, was present.  Ms. Doll spoke in opposition of the 
proposed development.  She spoke of the investment in rebuilding the home and 
her mother’s love of the back yard, pool and garden.  Ms. Doll addressed 
concerns with property values, noise and traffic. 
 
Chair Schultz clarified that the development proposes to build one-story buildings 
only, and explained that the development cannot vary from the approved site 
plan.   
 
Mr. Strat emphasized the developer is proposing to provide landscaping far 
above what is required.   
 
Ms. Troshynski said the petitioner would most likely address any lighting 
concerns since it has been brought to their attention.  
 
Roberta Burgin of 1872 E. Long Lake Road, Troy, was present.  Ms. Burgin 
spoke in opposition of the proposed development.  She addressed concerns with 
the location of the proposed restaurant in relation to their home, traffic, and 
existing retail vacancies and child care facilities in the neighborhood.   
 
Mark Weir of 4867 John R, Troy, was present.  Mr. Weir is the owner of one of 
the properties to be developed.  He indicated his home and the three properties 
to the north are in disrepair.  Mr. Weir believes the proposed development is 
good and would benefit the City. 
 
Mike Burgin of 1872 E. Long Lake Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. Burgin spoke in 
opposition of the proposed development.  He spoke of the potential to rebuild the 
homes in the area and maintain the area as residential.  Mr. Burgin addressed 
concerns relating to traffic and the proposed restaurant location in relation to his 
home. 
 
Mr. Strat asked the orientation of the Burgin garage.  
 
Mr. Burgin replied their garage is attached to the house and would face the 
project.  
 
Scott Berry of 1881 Carr, Troy, was present.  Mr. Berry spoke in opposition of the 
proposed development.  His property is directly adjacent to the proposed 
development.  Mr. Berry addressed concerns relating to the investment in their 
home, the natural park-like setting, existing retail vacancies, traffic and property 
values.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 

There were brief comments on the relationship of the property owned by Mark 
Weir to 4843 John R.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Hyman said they met with the neighbors and two concerns were expressed:  
1) they did not want multi-story buildings; and 2) they did not want a through 
street to the residential.  Mr. Hyman said the proposed development has one-
story buildings only, and there is no street connection to any residential.  He said 
property values would most likely increase should the development go forward.  
He also indicated the subject area would not be conducive to single family 
residential development. 
 
Ms. Kerwin asked the petitioner to address public comments expressed tonight 
on the 1872 Long Lake residence in relation to the proposal, the park-like setting 
on Carr Drive, and the number of stories proposed for the senior housing.   
 
Mr. Hyman said the garage of the 1872 Long Lake residence would face 
landbanked parking.  The landbanked parking would be maintained with grass, 
shrubs and trees for potential parking should it be needed in the future.  Mr. 
Hyman said they tried their best to minimize the visual impact of the proposed 
development to the surrounding residential by providing a water feature and 
landscaping that far exceeds the open space requirements of the ordinance.  Mr. 
Hyman addressed the greenhouse elderly housing that is a one-story building, 
and submitted a New York Times article titled “Rethinking Old Age”, dated May 
24, 2007, that talks about the revolutionary concept.  
 
Ms. Kerwin said it appears the residents do not have the same perception of the 
proposed development as the members do, and encouraged the petitioner to 
provide the neighbors with the same information and renderings that have been 
provided to the members.   
 
Mr. Hyman said they would be happy to meet with the neighbors at any time.  
 
Mr. Strat said the concerns expressed tonight by the neighbors are valid, and it is 
the responsibility of the members to protect their properties.  He indicated he 
would scrutinize the landscape plan to assure surrounding properties are 
protected.   
 
Mr. Littman questioned the continuation of the stockade fence north of Carr. 
 
Ms. Thurber explained the fence is an existing fence and is part of the 
topographical survey. 
 
Mr. Vleck addressed the impact to the neighbors should single family residential 
go in the area versus the proposed planned unit development project.  He 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 12, 2007 
  
 

brought to the public’s attention the developer is not developing to the maximum 
and the proposed 31% open space is unprecedented in the City of Troy.  Mr. 
Vleck said the walkability resulting from the proposed development would be an 
asset to the surrounding residential.  Mr. Vleck said he speaks from personal 
experience, noting that he lives near two planned unit development projects.   
 
Mr. Strat agreed with Mr. Vleck’s comments and noted further that should the 
area be developed as residential, Carr Drive would open up and the residents 
would be dealing with drive-through traffic. 
 
Chair Schultz said the density of development would be appreciably higher with 
residential and agreed the 30+% of open space would be an asset to the 
surrounding neighbors. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-101 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed a Concept Development Plan for 
a Planned Unit Development, pursuant to Article 35.50.01, as requested by Oasis 
at Centennial Park, LLC for the Oasis at Centennial Park Planned Unit 
Development (PUD 6), located on the south side of Long Lake Road and west side 
of John R Road, Section 14, within the R-1C zoning district, being approximately 
9.34 acres in size; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s Planning Consultant Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman 
Associates, Inc. prepared a memorandum dated June 6, 2007 that recommends 
Concept Development Plan approval of Oasis at Centennial Park Planned Unit 
Development; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed PUD meets the Standards for Approval set forth in 
Article 35.30.00; and   
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission recommends that 
Concept Development Plan Approval for Oasis at Centennial Park Planned Unit 
Development be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Schultz briefly addressed the procedure for the City Council public hearing.   

 

































 1

 
 
 
DATE: August 22, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing - Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 230) – Articles 

X and XVIII – Wireless Communication Towers on School Property in the R-1A through 
R-1E One Family Residential and C-F Community Facilities Districts 

 
 
Background: 
 
• The Planning Commission held a public hearing for this item at the July 10, 2007 Regular 

meeting and recommended approval of ZOTA 230.  
 
• The amendment will permit freestanding towers and antennas on public school and City park 

sites in the R-1A through R-1E and C-F zoning districts.  Additionally, it reduces the required 
setback from five (5) times the height of the tower to two (2) times the height of the tower. 

 
• Mike Adamczyk, Assistant Superintendent of the Troy School District, requested a text 

amendment that would permit wireless communication towers on school property.  The 
Planning Commission determined that the same standard should apply to City parks.   

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
• The amendment could open potential revenue streams for school districts and the City of 

Troy.  
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
• City Council has the authority to amend the Zoning Ordinance. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-04



 2

Policy Considerations: 
 
• The proposed amendment is consistent with City Council Goal I (Enhance the livability and 

safety of the community) and Goal III (Retain and attract investment while encouraging 
redevelopment). 

 
 
Options: 
 
• City Council can approve, deny or modify the proposed text amendment. 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Draft ZOTA 230 City Council Public Hearing Draft. 
2. Minutes from July 10, 2007 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
 

Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 

G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 230 Cell Towers on School Property\CC Public Hearing 09 10 07.doc 
 
 



 1

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 230) 
 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 39  

OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Amendment to Chapter 39 
 
Chapter 39 of the City of Troy Code is amended by amending Section X (R-IA THROUGH R-
1E ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS) and Section XVIII (C-F COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES) to read as follows: 
 
10.30.08 Utility and public service buildings and uses (without storage yards) when, in the 

opinion of the Planning Commission, said buildings and uses: 
 
  A. Maintain the residential character of the area, and,  
 
  B. Are located so as not to hinder the natural or presumed development of the 

area, or detract from the value of existing development; and, 
 
  C.  Do not constitute a safety or health hazard, a nuisance, or have a noxious 

effect on the surrounding residential area either due to appearance or 
operations; and, 

 
  D. Operating requirements necessitate the location of such uses and buildings 

within the District to serve the immediate vicinity. 
 

  Such buildings and uses shall be developed according to the following 
standards: 

 
  E. All proposed uses and facilities shall be contained within masonry buildings 

and structures similar to or compatible with buildings in the adjacent 
residential areas. 

 
   (Rev. 10-05-98) 
 
  F. Said structures and uses shall be located no closer than eighty (80) feet from 

any property line abutting a public right-of-way or other residentially zoned 
land, except as otherwise provided in this Section. 

 
   (Rev. 10-05-98) 



 2

 
-------- G.  A landscaped berm at least five (5) feet in height shall be required in 

all yards abutting Residential Districts and/or public rights-of-way. 
Said berms shall be landscaped with a minimum of a double row, ten 
(1) feet apart, of upright coniferous evergreens (pine or spruce 
species, as acceptable to the Department of Parks and Recreation), 
five (5) to six (6) feet in height, twenty (20) feet on center, staggered 
ten (10) feet on center. All required yards shall be further landscaped 
in grass as a minimum. The nature of other screening, fencing, etc., in 
addition to the aforementioned berms, shall be subject to the approval 
of the Planning Commission. 

 
    (Rev. 10-05-98) 

 
  H. Overhead transmission lines and tower structures supporting such 

lines are expressly prohibited from such sites. All lines serving such 
sites shall be underground. 

 
    (Rev. 10-05-98) 
 
   I. Freestanding tower structures and antennas may be permitted only 

on sites which are developed or otherwise committed for use other 
than the construction of one-family dwellings, and shall not be 
permitted on developed City park and public school sites.  

 
    1. The setback for a freestanding tower structure, from an 

abutting residentially zoned or used parcel, shall be at 
least equal to two (2) five (5) times the height of the 
structure. This setback requirement shall not apply to 
sites on which antenna tower structures were 
constructed prior to July 1, 1998. 

 
    2. Actions to approve the construction or placement of 

freestanding tower structures and antennas shall be 
conditioned upon submittal by the applicant of financial 
assurances, in a form acceptable to the City Manager, 
in order to assure that the subject facilities will be 
removed from the site within one (1) year of the date 
that their use ceases. 

 
    (Rev. 10-05-98) 
 
   J. In order to maximize the efficiency of the provision of utility 

services, while also minimizing the impact of such facilities on 
the total community, collocation, or the provision of more than 
one utility facility at a single location, may be required by the 
Planning Commission. In this regard, the applicant may be 
required to provide information regarding the feasibility of 



 3

collocation at proposed sites. 
 

    1. In the case of freestanding tower structures and 
antennas, variations from this collocation direction shall 
be considered only in conjunction with a report from an 
independent qualified and licensed professional 
engineer, indicating reasons why collocation is 
physically or technically not feasible. 

 
  Nothing in these regulations shall be construed to prevent the 

construction, installation and operation of necessary utility and public 
service buildings and uses within the Residential Districts. These 
provisions are not, however, intended to include power-generating 
facilities, bulk power and fuel stations, or other large scale facilities 
which, by their nature and service area, could reasonably be located 
in Non-Residential Districts. 

 
  (Rev. 10-05-98) 
 
 
18.25.02 Publicly-owned service buildings, public utility buildings, telephone 

exchange buildings, electric transformer stations and sub-stations, gas 
regulator stations, and water and sewage pumping stations, without storage 
yards.  

 
  A. Said structures and uses shall be located no closer than eighty (80) 

feet from any property line abutting a public right-of-way or 
residentially zoned land, except as otherwise provided in this 
Section. 

 
  B. Overhead transmission lines and tower structures supporting such 

lines are expressly prohibited from such sites. All lines serving such 
sites shall be underground. 

 
C. In order to maximize the efficiency of the provision of utility services, 

while also minimizing the impact of such facilities on the total 
community, collocation, or the provision of more than one utility 
facility at a single location, may be required by the Planning 
Commission. In this regard, the applicant may be required to provide 
information regarding the feasibility of collocation at proposed sites.  

 
   1. Applications for the placement of freestanding tower 

structures and antennas under this Section, which do not 
involve collocation, shall be considered only in conjunction 
with a report from an independent qualified and licensed 
professional engineer, indicating reasons why collocation is 
physically or technically not feasible. 

 



 4

   D. Freestanding tower structures and antennas may be permitted 
only on sites which are developed or otherwise committed for 
use other than the construction of one-family dwellings, and 
shall not be permitted on developed City park and public 
school sites.  

 
   E. The setback for a freestanding communications antenna 

tower structure, from an abutting residentially zoned or used 
parcel, shall be at least equal two (2) five (5) times the height 
of the structure. This setback requirement shall not apply to 
sites on which antenna tower structures were constructed 
prior to July 1, 1998. 

 
   F. Actions to approve the placement of freestanding tower 

structures and antennas under this Section shall be 
conditioned upon submittal, by the applicant, of financial 
assurances in a form acceptable to the City Manager, in order 
to assure that the subject facilities will be removed from the 
site within one (1) year of the date that their use ceases. 

 
  (Rev. 07-10-00) 
 
 

Section 2.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 

 
 

Section 3.  Severability Clause 
 

Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

 
 



 5

Section 4.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon publication, 
whichever shall later occur. 

 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a 
regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ 
day of _____________, 2007. 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 230 Cell Towers on School Property\ZOTA 230 06 20 07.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 230) – Freestanding Tower 
Structures and Antennas in Parks and on School Property 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the revisions made to the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment relating to wireless communication towers on school property and 
City park sites.   
 
A brief discussion followed.   
 
Ms. Lancaster cited unpublished case law that prompted the proposed ordinance 
text amendment.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-120 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article X (R-IA THROUGH R-1E ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICTS) pertaining to permitting freestanding tower structures and antennas 
in parks and on school property subject to Special Use Approval, and Article 
XVIII (C-F COMMUNITY FACILITIES), pertaining to permitting freestanding 
tower structures and antennas in parks and on school property subject to Special 
Conditions, be amended as printed on the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment.  
 
Yes: Hutson, Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Troshynski 
No: Vleck 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck supports the ordinance amendment but would prefer the fall zone to be 
five times the height of the structure.  He believes a bigger fall zone would give 
the City a stronger public stance should there be objections to a proposed 
structure. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

Ms. Kerwin said the text amendment would be helpful and is responsive to many 
objections voiced by the residents.  
 
Ms. Lancaster confirmed that requests for freestanding tower structures in parks 
or on school property would be required to go through the special use approval 
process.   
 
Chair Schultz stated that City Council would have final action on the proposed 
zoning ordinance text amendment. 
 

 
 



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

September 10, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 

 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 No Postponed Items  

campbellld
Text Box
D-01



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 20, 2007 

 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, August 20, 2007, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:33 PM. 
 
Pastor Mike Vallance of Calvary Chapel of Oakland County gave the Invocation and the 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling  
Robin Beltramini  
Mayor Pro Tem Cristina Broomfield  
Wade Fleming  
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 
 

 CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1  No Presentations 
 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Approval of Outdoor Seating Area in Excess of 20 Seats – Mitchell’s Ocean 

Club 2915 Coolidge (Proposed Address) 

 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving no comment from the public. 
 
Resolution #2007-08-244 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Don Waller, 
representing Mitchell’s Ocean Club Restaurant, for Special Use Approval for an outdoor 
seating area for 80 seats as part of the construction of a new restaurant at the 
southwest corner of Big Beaver Road and Coolidge, proposed address 2915 Coolidge, 
for a period not to exceed 2 years, in accordance with Section 26.30.03 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Mitchell’s Ocean Club Restaurant MAY APPLY for 
a 2-year continuance prior to the expiration of this appeal. 
 
Yes:  All-7  

pallottaba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 20, 2007 

 

- 2 - 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Resolution to Refer Charter Revision – Section 6.2 – Vacancies in Elective 

Office to the Charter Revision Committee 
 
Pending Resolution 
Moved by Howrylak    
Seconded by Lambert  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REFERS proposed Charter Revision to 
Section 6.2 – Vacancies in Elective Office to the Charter Revision Committee for further 
review. 

Vote on Resolution to Amend Pending Resolution by Substitution 

 
Resolution #2007-08-245 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Fleming  

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the pending resolution by 

SUBSTITUTING it in its entirety with the following language: 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RECONSIDERS 
Resolution #2007-08-234, as it appears below: 

 

F-5 Charter Revision Committee Recommendation – 

Amendment to the Troy City Charter Section 6.2(g) 

– Vacancies in Elective Office 

 
Resolution #2007-08-234 
Moved by Lambert   
Seconded by Broomfield  

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES as 
to form the following proposed Charter Amendment for the 
November 6, 2007 City General Election: 

 

A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER 

SECTION 6.2 – VACANCIES IN ELECTIVE OFFICE 
 

Shall Section 6.2 (g) of the City of Troy Charter, which 
provides that “Any City Council member desiring to become 
a candidate for any City elective office, except to succeed 
oneself, shall resign from the Council prior to the filing 
deadline of the municipal election”, be deleted in its entirety?   

 
YES ___ NO ___ 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 20, 2007 

 

- 3 - 

Yes:  Howrylak, Lambert, Beltramini, Broomfield  
No:   Stine, Schilling 
Absent: Fleming  

 

MOTION FAILED 
 
Yes: All-7 

Vote on Resolution to Amend Resolution #2007-08-234 by Substitution 

 
Resolution #2007-08-246 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Lambert  

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Resolution #2007-08-234, by 

SUBSTITUTING it in its entirety with the following language: 

 

A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 

6.2 – VACANCIES IN ELECTIVE OFFICE 

 
Shall Section 6.2 (g) of the City of Troy Charter, which 
provides that “Any City Council member desiring to become a 
candidate for any City elective office, except to succeed 
oneself, shall resign from the Council prior to the filing 
deadline of the municipal election”, be deleted in its entirety?   
 

Yes: Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak, Lambert, 
No: Stine, Schilling  

 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

Vote on Resolution to Amend Resolution #2007-08-246 
 
Resolution #2007-08-247 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Lambert  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Substitute Resolution #2007-08-
246 by inserting: 

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES as 
to form the following proposed Charter Amendment for the 
November 6, 2007 City General Election: 
 

prior to:  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 20, 2007 

 

- 4 - 

A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER 

SECTION 6.2 – VACANCIES IN ELECTIVE OFFICE 
 
Shall Section 6.2 (g) of the City of Troy Charter, which 
provides that “Any City Council member desiring to become a 
candidate for any City elective office, except to succeed 
oneself, shall resign from the Council prior to the filing 
deadline of the municipal election”, be deleted in its entirety?   

 
Yes: Fleming, Howrylak, Lambert, Broomfield  
No:  Stine, Schilling, Beltramini  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

Vote on Substitute Resolution as Amended 

 
Resolution #2007-08-248 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES SUBSTITUTE 

RESOLUTION AMENDED as follows: 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES as 
to form the following proposed Charter Amendment for the 
November 6, 2007 City General Election: 

 

A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER 

SECTION 6.2 – VACANCIES IN ELECTIVE OFFICE 
 
Shall Section 6.2 (g) of the City of Troy Charter, which 
provides that “Any City Council member desiring to become a 
candidate for any City elective office, except to succeed 
oneself, shall resign from the Council prior to the filing 
deadline of the municipal election”, be deleted in its entirety?   
 

Yes:  Howrylak, Lambert, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming 
No:  Stine, Schilling 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2007-08-249 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Lambert  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 20, 2007 

 

- 5 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES as to form the following 
proposed Charter Amendment for the November 6, 2007 City General Election: 
 

A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER 

SECTION 6.2 – VACANCIES IN ELECTIVE OFFICE 
 
Shall Section 6.2 (g) of the City of Troy Charter, which 
provides that “Any City Council member desiring to become a 
candidate for any City elective office, except to succeed 
oneself, shall resign from the Council prior to the filing 
deadline of the municipal election”, be deleted in its entirety?   

 
Yes:  Lambert, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak 
No:  Stine, Schilling 

 

MOTION CARRIED  
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2007-08-250-E-1a 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby 

APPROVED as presented with the exception of Items E-2 and E-4a which SHALL BE 

CONSIDERED after Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:  All-7 
 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Submitted 
 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 7: Proprietary Maintenance Service 

Contract Bentley Systems, Inc.                      
 
Resolution #2007-08-250-E-4b 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Proprietary Maintenance 
Service Contract to provide software maintenance for Microstation, InRoads, InRoads 
Survey, PowerSurvey and InRoads Storm and Sanitary Sewer software through July 
13, 2008 to Bentley Systems, Inc., 685 Stockton Drive, Exton, PA 19341 for an 
estimated total cost of $18,687.50. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 20, 2007 

 

- 6 - 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Troy Daze Electrical Services                      
 
Resolution #2007-08-250-E-4c 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a three-year contract to furnish 
all electrical services for the Troy Daze Festival to the lowest bidder meeting 
specifications, Winiarski Electric of Fowlerville, MI, for an estimated three-year total cost 
of $31,000.00, plus a materials allowance of $3,250.00 and other work as assigned at 
the rate of $60.00 per hour; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the bidder’s 
submission of proper contract and bid documents, including insurance certificates and 
all other specified requirements. 
 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Purchase of 

Firearms Ammunition                      
 
Resolution #2007-08-250-E-4d 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to furnish one-year 
requirements of ammunition to the low bidders:  Michigan Police Equipment of 
Charlotte, MI, Michigan Ammo Co., Inc. of Ecorse, MI, TJ Conevera's, Inc. of Rockford 
IL, and CMP Distributors, Inc. of Lansing MI, at unit prices as contained on the bid 

tabulation opened July 24, 2007, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting, with contracts expiring August 20, 2008; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REJECTS bids for lead-
free .223 caliber, duty carry Cor-Bon .40 caliber, and duty carry 12 gauge shotgun 
ammunitions due to budgetary limitations. 
 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Sidewalk 

Replacement and Installation Program                      
 
Resolution #2007-08-250-E-4e 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to complete the 
Sidewalk Replacement and Installation Program for 2007/08 with an option to renew for 
two additional one-year periods to the low total bidder, Viking Construction, Inc. of 
Warren, MI, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened July 19, 2007, a copy 

of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, the cost of which 
shall not exceed budgetary limitations; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, 
insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 20, 2007 

 

- 7 - 

E-5 Resolution to Excuse Mayor Pro Tem Broomfield from the Special Joint 

City Council Meeting of Wednesday, August 1, 2007  
 
Resolution #2007-08-250-E-5 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Mayor Pro Tem 
Broomfield at the Special Joint City Council Meeting of August 1, 2007 due to being out 
of the county.  
 

E-6 Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Sanitary Sewer and Authorization 

of Payment for Easement and Temporary Construction and Grading Permit 

– Patricia Willard-Bonnici Revocable Intervivos Trust and William and 

Helen Yeyna – Section 6, Sidwell #88-20-06-328-007  
 
Resolution #2007-08-250-E-6 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for 
Sanitary Sewer from Patricia Willard-Bonnici individually and as trustee of the Patricia 
Willard-Bonnici Revocable Trust dated November 4, 2000, and William and Helen 
Yeyna owners of the property having Sidwell #88-20-06-328-007; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council AUTHORIZES payment in the 
amount of $13,330.00 for the easement and $6,670.00 for the temporary construction 
and grading permit, plus closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which 

shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

E-7 Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Water Main – Rochester 

Professional Building, LLC, Section 3, Sidwell #88-20-03-226-104  
 
Resolution #2007-08-250-E-7 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for 
Water Main from property owner Rochester Professional Building, LLC, having Sidwell 
#88-20-03-226-104; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which 

shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

E-8 Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Public Utilities – 100 East Big 

Beaver, LLC, Section 27, Sidwell #88-20-27-101-060  
 
Resolution #2007-08-250-E-8 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 20, 2007 

 

- 8 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for 
Public Utilities from 100 East Big Beaver, LLC, owner of the property having Sidwell 
#88-20-27-101-060; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which 

shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

E-9 Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Sidewalk – Troy Long Lake, LLC, 

Section 15, Sidwell #88-20-15-101-001  
 
Resolution #2007-08-250-E-9 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for 
Sidewalk from Troy Long Lake, LLC, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-15-
101-001; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which 

shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

E-10 Acceptance of Warranty Deed and Five Permanent Easements for Athens 

Parc Site Condominium – Milano Development, Inc. Section 14, Sidwell 

#88-20-14-401-006  
 
Resolution #2007-08-250-E-10 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Warranty Deed for right-of-
way and five Permanent Easements for storm sewer, tree-line preservation, drainage, 
sanitary sewer, and public utilities from Milano Development, Inc., owner of the property 
having Sidwell #88-20-14-401-006; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easements and Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of 

Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

E-11 Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Storm Drain/Sewer – Norris and 

Brinda Perkins Reid, Section 4, Sidwell #88-20-04-380-010 
 
Resolution #2007-08-250-E-11 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for 
Storm Drain/Sewer from Norris and Brinda Perkins Reid, owners of the property having 
Sidwell #88-20-04-380-010; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 20, 2007 

 

- 9 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which 

shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

E-12 Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Water Main – Suma Medical 

Properties, LLC – Section 23, Sidwell #88-20-23-401-018  
 
Resolution #2007-08-250-E-12 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for 
Water Main from Suma Medical Properties, LLC owner of the property having Sidwell 
#88-20-23-401-018; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which 

shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

E-13 Acceptance of Warranty Deed and Three Permanent Easements for Stone 

Haven Park Site Condominium – Mondrian Properties Stone Haven 

Development, LLC, Section 20, Sidwell #88-20-20-226-009, -080 and -135 
 
Resolution #2007-08-250-E-13 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Warranty Deed for right-of-
way and three Permanent Easements for storm sewer and surface drainage, sanitary 
sewer and public utilities, and sidewalk from Mondrian Properties Stone Haven 
Development, LLC, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-20-226-009, -080 and 
-135; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easements and Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of 

Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

E-14 Winter Maintenance Agreement – Road Commission for Oakland County  
 
Resolution #2007-08-250-E-14 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Winter Maintenance 
Agreement between the Road Commission for Oakland County and the City of Troy for 
Snow and Ice Control of certain primary and local roads, which are described and 

outlined in Exhibit A, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the 

agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting 
and is authorized by the provisions of 1951 PA 51 (MCL 247.651 et seq.).  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 20, 2007 

 

- 10 - 

E-15 Compensation for a Permanent Easement for Sanitary Sewer and 

Temporary Construction and Grading Permit – Amina R. Haque Revocable 

Trust, Section 6, Sidwell #88-20-06-328-008  
 
Resolution #2007-08-250-E-15 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council AUTHORIZES payment in the amount of 
$8,310.00 plus costs for the sanitary sewer easement and temporary construction and 
grading permit to Amina R. Haque, as Trustee of the Amina R. Haque Revocable Trust, 
owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-06-328-008. 
 

E-16 Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, Square 

Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #42 – Sidwell 

#88-20-02-279-069- John G. Pappageorge and Dianne Cristina Pappageorge  
 
Resolution #2007-08-250-E-16 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase 
Realty for Public Purposes between John G. Pappageorge and Dianne Cristina 
Pappageorge, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-02-279-069, and the City of 
Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for John R Road Improvements, Square Lake 
Road to South Boulevard in the amount of $23,900.00, plus closing costs; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department is 

hereby AUTHORIZED to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

E-17 Approval of Private Agreement for Clark Gas Station, Maple and Livernois – 

Project No. 05.916.3  
 
Resolution #2007-08-250-E-17 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the 
Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy 
and Bala / Ramana for the installation of paving, sidewalks, storm sewer, sanitary 
sewer, landscaping and soil erosion on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the 

Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which 

shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the 

Public 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 20, 2007 

 

- 11 - 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Resolution #2007-08-251 
Moved by Fleming 
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of August 

6, 2007 be APPROVED as corrected 
 
Yes:  All-7 
 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Printing of 

City of Troy 2008 Calendar/Annual Report                      
 
Resolution #2007-08-252a 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, On July 10, 2006, a contract to provide Printing and Design Services to 
mail 40,000 copies of the 2007 City calendar with an option to renew for the 2008 
calendar was awarded to University Lithoprinters, Inc. of Ann Arbor, MI, the vendor with 
the highest weighted final score, as a result of a best value process (Resolution #2006-
07-290-E-4b); and 
 
WHEREAS, University Lithoprinters, Inc. has agreed to exercise the option to renew for 
the 2008 City calendar under the same prices, terms, and conditions; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the 
option to renew the contract for the 2008 calendar with University Lithoprinters, Inc. to 
provide printing, design and distribution of the 2008 City calendar for an estimated total 
cost of $33,825.00, plus $2,310.00 for the reply card insert, under the same contract 
prices, terms, and conditions as the original contract, to expire upon successful delivery 
of the 2008 calendars, in accordance with contract requirements; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That City Management INTENDS to sell advertising in 
excess of $14,000.00 to help offset the costs to produce the calendar/annual report. 
 
Yes:  Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Lambert, Stine, Schilling   
No:  Howrylak  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 20, 2007 

 

- 12 - 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 

F-8 Mobile Windshield Repair 
 
Resolution #2007-08-253 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

(a)  Preparation of Procedure to Permit Mobile Windshield Repairs – Resolution 

to Refer to the Planning Commission  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REFERS the proposal for preparing a 
procedure to permit mobile windshield repair in parking lots to the Planning Commission 
for their evaluation. 
 
Yes:  Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine, Beltramini  
No:  Schilling  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 

Appointments; b) City Council Appointments: Animal Control Appeal 

Board; Liquor Advisory Committee; and Parks and Recreation Board      

 

(a)  Mayoral Appointments  - No Appointments 
 

(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution #2007-08-254 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following person(s) to serve 
on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 

 
Animal Control Appeal Board 
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Patrick K. Carolan Term Expires 09/30/10 

 

 

Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 

 
Patrick C. Hall Term Expires 09/20/10 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 20, 2007 

 

- 13 - 

Parks & Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council  (7-Regular) – 3 Year Terms; (1-Troy School Board) – 1 Year Term;  
(1-Troy Daze Committee) – 1 Year Term; (1-Advisory Committee for Sr. Citizens) – 1  
Year Term 
 
Kathleen Fejes Term Expires 09/30/10 

 
Tom Krent Term Expires 09/30/10 

 
Yes:  All-7 
 

F-2 Bid Waiver – Fire Department Hose Testing 

  
Resolution #2007-08-255 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, Fire hose testing is a required part of providing fire protection;   
 
WHEREAS, Outsourcing fire hose testing provides more training time for firefighters 
and reduces apparatus maintenance repair costs; and 
 
WHEREAS, FireCATT is the sole provider of this service in southeast Michigan; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal 

bidding procedures and APPROVES a contract to utilize the services of FireCATT of 
Troy, MI, for fire hose testing at an estimated total cost of $13,000.00; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor 
submission of proper insurance certificate(s), as required. 
 
Yes:  All-7 
 

F-3 Designation of Voting Delegates at the Annual Meeting of the Michigan 

Municipal League 
 
Resolution #2007-08-256 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Lambert  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DESIGNATES Councilmember Stine as 

Principal Official Representative (Official Voting Delegate) and hereby DESIGNATES 
Councilmember Beltramini as the Alternate Official Representative (Official Alternate 
Voting Delegate) to cast the vote of the City of Troy at the Annual Business Meeting of 
the Michigan Municipal League to be held September 18 through September 20, 2007 
in Acme, Michigan.  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 20, 2007 

 

- 14 - 

Yes:  All-7 
 

F-4 Personnel Evaluation – City Manager Phillip L. Nelson 
 
Resolution #2007-08-257 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the annual compensation of Council Appointee Phillip L. Nelson, City 

Manager, is INCREASED by 3%, EFFECTIVE July 28, 2007. 
 
Yes:  All-7 
 

F-5 Reconsideration of Resolution #2007-07-205 – Standard 2007 Annual Salary 

Update for Classified and Exempt Employees and Proposed Changes to 

Benefit Package and Personnel Rules & Regulations  
 
Resolution #2007-08-258 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RECONSIDERS Resolution #2007-07-205, 
Moved by Beltramini, and Seconded by Stine, as it appears below: 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 2007 
Annual Salary Update for Classified and Exempt Employees and 
proposed Changes to Benefit Package and Personnel Rules & 
Regulations. 
 

           Yes:     Stine, Schilling, Beltramini 
           No:     Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak  

Absent:  Lambert  
 

 MOTION FAILED 
 
Yes:  Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Lambert, Stine  
No:  Howrylak  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2007-08-259 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 20, 2007 

 

- 15 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the resolution for “Standard 2007 
Annual Salary Update for Classified and Exempt Employees and proposed Changes to 
Benefit Package and Personnel Rules & Regulations”  by adding “while leaving the 
Community Affairs Director position at Pay Grade 7” at the end of the resolution. 
 
Yes:  Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak  
No:  Beltramini, Lambert, Stine, Schilling  
 

MOTION FAILED 

 

Vote on Main Resolution as Presented  

 
Resolution #2007-08-260 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 2007 Annual Salary 
Update for Classified and Exempt Employees and proposed Changes to Benefit 
Package and Personnel Rules & Regulations. 
 
Yes:  Fleming, Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini  
No:  Broomfield, Howrylak 
 

MOTION CARRIED  
 

F-6 Emergency Purchase of Firearms Ammunition  
 
Resolution #2007-08-261 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Police department pre-reserved 100,000 rounds of .223 caliber 
ammunition from the vendor who holds the contract with the State of Michigan MiDEAL 
Program, Michigan Police Equipment; 
 
WHEREAS, Michigan Police Equipment indicates delivery is not eminent and would not 
be available until January 2008; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ammunition is required to complete the transition training to the new patrol 
rifle platform and allow the rifles to be placed into service; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONFIRMS a 
purchase made for .223 caliber ammunition with Jerry’s Sports Center of Forest City, 
PA, at an estimated cost of $31,882.50, plus freight. 
 
Yes:  All-7 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 20, 2007 

 

- 16 - 

F-7 Amendments to Chapter 10 – Employees Retirement System  
 
Resolution #2007-08-262 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Howrylak   
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amendment to 
Chapter 10, Sections 6, 9, 54 and 55 as recommended by City Management and 

Employees Retirement Board, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
Yes:  All-7 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a. Rezoning Application (File Number: Z-727) – Office Use, West Side of Rochester 

Road, South of De Etta – 6493 Rochester, Section 3 – R-1B to O-1 – September 
10, 2007  

b. Concept Development Plan Approval – Big Beaver Place Planned Unit 
Development (PUD 8), North Side of Big Beaver, West of John R, Section 24 – 
Currently Zoned R-1D (One Family Residential) District – September 10, 2007  

c. Concept Development Plan Approval – The Oasis at Centennial Park Planned 
Unit Development (PUD 6), South Side of Long Lake and West Side of John R, 
Section 14 – Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District – 
September 10, 2007  

d. Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 230) – Articles X and 
XVIII – Wireless Communication Towers on School Property in the R-1A through 
R-1E (One Family Residential) and C-F (Community Facilities) Districts – 
September 10, 2007     

Noted and Filed 
 

G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual 

City Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 Charter Revision Committee Referral – 2007-08 Property Tax Reduction 

Requested by Council Member Martin Howrylak     

 
Resolution #2007-08-263 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the Charter Revision Committee 
to draft ballot language for City Council consideration to amend Section 9.16 of the City 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 20, 2007 

 

- 17 - 

Charter to reduce the property tax limit to that which is being levied in fiscal year 2007-
08. 
 
Yes: Lambert, Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak  
No: Stine, Schilling, Beltramini  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced    
 

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a. Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – June 5, 2007 
b. Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – June 6, 2007  
c. Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – June 6, 2007  
d. Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – July 10, 2007 
e. Library Advisory Board/Final – June 14, 2007  
f. Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – July 11, 2007 
g. Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – July 24, 2007  
h. Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – July 24, 2007 
i. Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – July 31, 2007  
j. Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – July 31, 2007 
k. Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – August 1, 2007 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports:   
a. Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of July, 2007 
b. Police Department – 2007 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service Report 
c. City of Troy Employees Retirement System Forty-Third Annual Actuarial 

Valuation – December 31, 2006   
d. Purchasing Department – Final Reporting BidNet On-Line Auction – Generators, 

Televisions, Display Case, and Vehicles – May/June, 2007 
e. Purchasing Department – Final Reporting BidNet On-Line Auction – Computers, 

Stacking Chairs, File Cabinets, and Card Tables – July, 2007  
f. City of Troy Retirement System – Summary Annual Report to Members – 

December 31, 2006  
Noted and Filed 

 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a. Letter of Thanks to Carol Anderson from Bethany Mosshart Regarding the Parks 

and Recreation Staff and Activities  
b. Telephone Call to Police Staff from Rosanne MecIsaac Regarding Assistance 

Received from Officer Kris Maczka    
Noted and Filed 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 20, 2007 

 

- 18 - 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None 

Proposed 
 

J-5  Calendar 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-6  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission – 

Notice of Hearing for Gas Customers of Consumers Energy Company Case 

No. U-14716-R 
Noted and Filed 

 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 
 
 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:59 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



Proclamation 
National Save A Life Month 

September 2007 
 
WHEREAS, The Save A Life Foundation’s mission is training and developing people, starting with school 
children, to be active bystanders equipped with basic life supporting first aid skills to aid during emergencies; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Basic Life Supporting First Aid techniques, such as CPR, Heimlich maneuver, and the use of an 
Automatic External Defibrillators (AED) are essential in maintaining life prior to EMS arrival; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Save A Life Foundation, utilizes only Emergency Medical Service professionals as Instructors 
to teach basic life supporting first aid techniques to schoolchildren, grades K – 12 and adults; and 
 
WHEREAS, The U.S. Conference of Mayors passed the Community Response System Initiative (CRSI) 
Resolution and the U.S. Senate Homeland Security and Government Affairs Committee passed the CRSI Act 
both inspired by Save A Life Foundation, calling for communities to create CRSI’s committees that would 
encourage citizens, especially children grades K – 12, to learn life supporting first aid skills allowing them to aid 
in emergencies; and 
 
WHEREAS, Save A Life Foundation works with local, state and federal government organizations and the 
private sector to highlight the importance of “Pre-EMS”, public emergency preparedness and the importance of 
the Good Samaritan Law; and 
 
WHEREAS, Save A Life Foundation, a national affiliate of the U.S. Department of Homeland Security’s Citizen 
Corps, encourages all municipalities to recognize “Save A Life Month” in conjunction with Homeland Security’s 
National Preparedness Month, a nationwide effort to encourage Americans to prepare for emergencies; and 
 
WHEREAS, The month of September 2007 has been designated as National Save A Life Month; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Troy hereby celebrates 
September as National Save a Life Month in the City of Troy; 
 
Signed this 10th day of September 2007. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03a



PROCLAMATION  
NATIONAL AUTISM AWARENESS MONTH 

SEPTEMBER, 2007 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy is a community of compassion and dedicated to being a wonderful place 
to live and raise a family; and 
  
WHEREAS, Autism is one of the fastest-growing developmental disabilities in the world.  Autism 
affects 1 in every 150 children born today.  Over 1.5 million Americans today have some form of 
autism including some family members in our own City; and 
  
WHEREAS, It is known that with proper education, training and community living options, individuals 
with autism can lead distinguished, productive lives  in their communities and strive to reach their 
fullest potential; and 
 
WHEREAS, The annual cost of such disabilities grow to the billions of dollars; and yet service options 
lag the needs of those impacted; and 
 
WHEREAS, Our community supports increasing awareness of this challenging disability and fair 
funding for research and services for those in need; and 
 
WHEREAS, Our City would like to commend Robert & Sandy Waters on their radio show “The Candy 
Store” that airs on Autism One Radio. Named after their beautiful 6 year old daughter Candace who 
has autism and other disabilities; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Waters bring vital and important information to the community and other parents who 
have a child with autism and other disabilities; and 
 
WHEREAS, We would like to further honor Robert & Sandy Waters for writing a song titled “Faith, 
Love and Hope” for their daughter Candace which has increased autism awareness and compassion 
around the world;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that The City of Troy denotes September as Autism 
Awareness Month in our City in honor of Candace Waters and to increase autism awareness and 
compassion in our community. 
 
Signed this 10th day of September 2007. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03b



campbellld
Text Box
E-04a













campbellld
Text Box
E-04b











campbellld
Text Box
E-04c







campbellld
Text Box
E-04d







campbellld
Text Box
E-04e











campbellld
Text Box
E-05













 

 
August 16, 2007 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police   
   William Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT:  Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions  
 
Background: 
 
 The Congregation Shir Tikvah is requesting that the parking restrictions on the East side of 

Northfield Parkway from the entrance of Boulan Park to the entrance of the synagogue be waived 
on the following dates and times: 
 Wednesday, September 12, 2007, 7:00 PM – 11:00PM 
 Thursday, September 13, 2007, 9:00 AM – 5:00 PM 
 Friday, September 21, 2007, 7:00 PM – 11:00 PM 
 Saturday, September 22, 2007, 9:00 AM – 9:00 PM 

 Congregation Shir Tikvah is conducting events related to the observance of the High Holidays on 
these dates and times; although they have arranged for additional parking at Stonehaven Church 
on Wattles Road, they fear they will not have sufficient parking space for all attendees. 

 The waiving of the restrictions would allow attendees to park on the dirt shoulder of Northfield 
Parkway. 

 Congregation Shir Tikvah makes such requests and is granted a variance regularly; no problems 
have ever been reported.  

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 N/A 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 City Ordinance prohibits parking on Northfield Parkway; therefore, City Council action is required 

to grant a variance. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 City of Troy Goal #1 - Enhance the livability and safety of the community.   
 
Options: 
 
 Approve or deny the request. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-06



 

  
August 13, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services  
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Sole Source – East Jordan Iron Works – Complete Hydrant and Valve Repair Parts  
 
Background 
 On September 11, 2006, Troy City Council approved a contract with East Jordan Iron Works for East 

Jordan complete hydrants; as well as hydrant and valve repair parts at a discount off list prices (Council 
Resolution #2006-09-356-E-10). 

 The City of Troy standardized all fire hydrants in the city to those manufactured by East Jordan Iron Works 
many years ago.   

 Standardization has alleviated many problems with employee training, inventory and maintenance issues. 
 By purchasing directly from the manufacturer, the City is receiving a greater discount than a distributor. 
 East Jordan Iron Works has agreed to provide the needed hydrants and repair parts at list prices, with 

various discount structures currently established as follows: 
 

            Discount %   Hydrants:       44.5% 
         Valves:         49% 
                  Cost for 5BR250 complete hydrant:    $996.23 

 
Financial Considerations 
 Funds are available in the Water Division Operating Budget 

 
Legal Considerations 
 Formal bidding procedures are waived, as no benefit would be derived form soliciting formal bids. 

 
Policy Considerations 
 Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City Government. (Goal II) 

 
Options 
 Since the City has standardized on East Jordan hydrants and valves, City management recommends an 

ongoing contract be established with East Jordan Iron Works to provide the needed hydrants and repair 
parts at list prices, with various discounts structures as listed above. 

 
 
 
EF\ef S:Murphy’s Review/Agenda 08.20.07 Bid Waiver - Sole Source - East Jordan Iron Works  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-07



10/1/2007  to  10/01/2008



campbellld
Text Box
E-08









campbellld
Text Box
E-09























campbellld
Text Box
E-10













campbellld
Text Box
E-11









      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

September 10, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: 
Downtown Development Authority b) City Council Appointments: 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Animal Control 
Appeal Board; Ethnic Issues Advisory Board; Historic District 
Commission; Historical Commission; Municipal Building Authority; 
and Parks & Recreation Board      

 

campbellld
Text Box
F-01



 1

 
 
DATE: August 28, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing – Street Vacation – Lincoln Drive, West of John R, 

South of Big Beaver, Zoned PUD #7, Section 26  (File Number SV-32-B) 
 
 
Background: 
 

• A public hearing is scheduled for this item on September 17, 2007. 
 
• The half-street is approximately 260 feet long by 25 feet wide. 

 
• The property is located entirely within PUD #7, The Village of Big Beaver Planned Unit 

Development.  The half-street is unplatted and unimproved; it was deeded to the City of Troy 
by the State of Michigan in 1965.  Following vacation, ownership will revert to the applicant, 
who owns the property on the north, south and west sides of the street.  The street intersects 
John R to the east.  Access to abutting properties will not be impacted by vacation of the 
street.   

 
• There is an 8-inch diameter public water main within the right-of-way.  The water main will not 

need to be relocated for Phase I of the PUD development, but will need to be relocated as part 
of the Phase II development.  A temporary water main easement and natural gas line 
easement shall be retained until such time that easements are executed for the relocated 
water main and natural gas line. 

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 

• There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

• City Council has the authority to act on this application.  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a



 2

Policy Considerations: 
 

• Approval of the street vacation would be consistent with City Council Goal III (Retain and attract 
investment while encouraging redevelopment) and V (Maintain relevance of public infrastructure 
to meet changing public needs). 

 
 
Options: 
 

• City Council can approve or deny the street vacation request. 
 
• No action required until September 17, 2007 public hearing. 

 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Minutes from the August 14, 2007 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
3. Letter from James P. Butler, Professional Engineering Associates, Inc., dated August 1, 2007. 
 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File /SV 32-B 
 
G:\STREET VACATION\SV 32-B Lincoln Drive Sec 26\Announce CC Public Hearing 09 10 07.doc 
 
 
 



ROCHESTER

DEQUINDRE

LONG LAKE
JOHN

R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPHENSON

COOLIDGE

CROOKS

MAIN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ADAMS



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

SUBJECT PROPERTY



BELLINGHAM

JACKSON

ROUNDTREE

ELDRIDGE

GARRY

ISABELL

LINCOLN

CEDAR
KNOLL

DO
MI

NIQ
UE

CAMILLA

RH
OD

E I
SL

AN
D

E BIG BEAVER

JO
HN 

R

AL
GE

R

STREET VACATION REQUEST
LINCOLN DR. - 25' WIDE HALF-WIDTH
STREET EXTENDING 260' WEST FROM JOHN R
W OF JOHN R, S OF BIG BEAVER
SEC. 26 (SV-32 B)

0 100 200 300 400 50050
Feet ³

EX. STREET REQUESTED
TO BE VACATED

VILLAGE AT BIG BEAVER
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT

PHASE I UNDER CONSTRUCTION



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL AUGUST 14, 2007 
  
 
 

STREET VACATION REQUEST 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – STREET VACATION REQUEST (SV 32-B) – Lincoln Drive, 
West of John R, South of Big Beaver, approximately ±260.00 feet long, ±25 feet 
wide, Section 26 – Zoned PUD #7 (The Village at Big Beaver) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed street vacation.  He reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the request with the condition that temporary 
easements would be retained for the water main and gas line.  Mr. Miller 
indicated the easements would be relocated during construction and engineering 
of the Sunrise Senior Living portion of the planned unit development project.  
 
Mr. Hutson asked if the temporary easements would be vacated automatically, or 
if they would remain.   
 
Ms. Lancaster said the temporary easements would cease upon vacation and 
that the Resolution should state that.   
 
Robert Jacobs, Attorney, of Jackier Gould, P.C., 121 W. Long Lake Road, 
Bloomfield Hills, was present to represent the petitioner. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-08-128 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the street vacation request, as submitted, for a street located west of 
John R, south of Big Beaver, approximately 260 feet long by approximately 25 
feet wide, Section 26, be approved, subject to the following condition: 
 
1. A temporary water main easement and natural gas line easement shall be 

retained until such time that easements are executed for the relocated water 
main and natural gas line. 

 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 





      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

September 10, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 

 
Memorandums and Future Council Agenda Items:  

G-2 No Memorandums  

campbellld
Text Box
G-02



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

September 10, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

campbellld
Text Box
H-01



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

September 10, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-01



  
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MINUTES FINAL  May 16, 2007 
 
 
A meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Wednesday, May 
16, 2007 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan.   Alan Kiriluk called the meeting to order at 7:32 a.m. 
 
 
 
PRESENT:  Michael Culpepper 

Stuart Frankel  
David Hay 
Michele Hodges 
Alan Kiriluk 
Carol Price 
Ernest Reschke 
Louise Schilling 
Douglas Schroeder  (departed @ 8:20 a.m.) 
G. Thomas York 
 
 

ABSENT:  William Kennis 
Daniel MacLeish  
Harvey Weiss 
 

 
 

ALSO PRESENT: Phil Nelson 
   John M. Lamerato 

Brian Murphy   
   Lori Bluhm 
   Mark Miller  
    
 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution:    DD-07-09 
Moved by:    Price 
Seconded by:  Culpepper 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the April 18, 2007 regular meeting be approved. 
 
Yeas:  All (10) 
Absent: Kennis, MacLeish, Weiss 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



OLD BUSINESS 
 
None 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS
 
 
A. Priority Plan 
 
Resolution:   DD-07-10 
Moved by:   Hay 
Seconded by:  Reschke 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board receive and file the Big Beaver Corridor Study Priority 
Plan. 
 
Yeas:  All (10) 
Absent: Kennis, MacLeish, Weiss 
 
 
B. Presentation of Pavilions of Troy 
 
Hunter Richardson presented the proposed development for the former Kmart site. 
 
 
C.  Development Plan #6   
 
Downtown Development Authority Plan #6 
 
Resolution:   DD-07-11 
Moved by:   Culpepper 
Seconded by: Reschke 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy Downtown Development Authority hereby approves 
Development Plan #6 to provide for the implementation of the key concepts of the Big 
Beaver Corridor Plan; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy Downtown Development Authority 
hereby requests that Troy City Council hold a public hearing to take public comment 
regarding Development Plan #6 to provide for the implementation of the key concepts 
of the Big Beaver Corridor Plan at the Regular Meeting scheduled for Monday, June 
4, 2007; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Troy Downtown Development Authority hereby 
recommends that Troy City Council take action and approve Development Plan #6 
after taking public comment during the public hearing at the Regular Meeting 
scheduled for Monday, June 4, 2007. 
 



Yes:  All (10) 
Absent: Kennis, MacLeish, Weiss 
 
 
D. World Alliance Financial MEGA Match 

 
Resolution:   DD-07-12 
Moved by:   Schilling 
Seconded by:  Hodges 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy Downtown Development Authority (TDDA) provide World 
Alliance Financial a local match of up to $20,000 for the MEGA financial incentive 
package, provided the funds are spent in keeping with the terms and conditions of 
the TDDA Development Plans and the TIF Plan. 
 
Yeas:  All (9) 
Nay:  Frankel 
Absent: Kennis, MacLeish, Weiss 
 
 
E. Contribution for Concert Series 
 
Resolution:   DD-07-13 
Moved by:   Hay 
Seconded by:  Price 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board contribute $1,500 towards the cost of the summer 
concert series. 
 
Yeas:  All (9) 
Absent: Kennis, MacLeish, Schroeder, Weiss 
 
 
F. Master Plan and Overlay Zoning Update 
 
Mark Miller gave the Board an update on both topics. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None 
 
 
MEMBER COMMENT 
 
Michele Hodges updated the Board on the UM/ULI Forum scheduled for November 
7–8, 2007. 
 
 



EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
 
Resolution:    DD-07-14 
Moved by:    York 
Seconded by:  Schilling 
 
RESOLVED, That Kennis, MacLeish and Weiss be excused. 
 
Yeas:   All (9) 
Absent:  Kennis, MacLeish, Schroeder, Weiss 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:35 a.m. 
 
 
Next Meeting:  June 20, 2007 @ 7:30 a.m. @ Lower Level Conference Room, 
City Hall. 
 

 
         
________________________________________ 

Alan Kiriluk, Chair   
 
 

________________________________________ 
      John M. Lamerato, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
JL/ph 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   May 23, 2007 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC)  was held on May 23, 2007 at 7:00 PM at Troy 
City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver.  Alex Gabriel and Joseph Niemiec called the meeting to order 
at 7:02 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Andrew Corey  (Secretary) 

Maxine D’Amico  
Alex Gabriel (Co-chair) 
Rishi Joshi 
Jessica Kraft 
Joseph Niemiec (Co-chair) 
Anupama Prasad 
Kristin Randall  
Neil Shaw 
Katie Thoenes  
Nicole Vitale  
Karen Wullaert 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Alexandra (Sasha) Bozimowski 
VISITORS: Mayor Schilling 
STAFF PRESENT:  John Hug, Fitness/Gym Coordinator 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 

 Resolution # TY-2007-5-10 
  Moved by   D’Amico 
  Seconded by  Wullaert 

   
  RESOLVED, That the minutes of April 25, 2007 be approved. 

  Yes:  All – 12 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  1 - Bozimowski   
 
3.   Attendance Report:  

Updated through April 2007.  Reviewed by council members, no comments.   
 

4.   Visitor:   Mayor Louise Schilling 
-Mayor presented recognition certificates for members leaving Youth Council.   
Presented information on current issues including: 
-Provided information on the 2007/08 budget.   

  -Presented information on the Pavillions project.  
-Southwest corner of Big Beaver and John R as site of assisted living complex 
with park areas. 
-Civic Center site pathways. 
-Bocce ball and shuffle board courts at Community Center. 
-DDA funding for Jazz concerts. 
-Council voted to approve the liquor license 
-New restaurant in town - Kona Grille      

 
5. Troy Daze Festival Update  - None 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   May 23, 2007 
 

 2

 
6. Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provide d Advance Notification  
  Resolution # TY-2007-5-11 

  Moved by  D’Amico 
  Seconded by  Thoenes  

  
RESOLVED that Sasha Bozimowski is excused. 

  Yes:  All - 12   
            No:       0  
  Absent:  1 - Bozimowski   
  
7. Youth Council Comments –  

 
8. Public Comments  –      

-None. 
 
9. Adjournment – 7:35 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m.   
 
_______________________________________ 
Alex Gabriel, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
John Hug, Fitness Coordinator 

 
Reminder Next Meeting: August 22 at 7:00 P.M.  



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             JUNE 11, 2007  

 Page 1 of 3 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, June 
11, 2007 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big 
Beaver Road.  Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Robert Cantlon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 

ABSENT: Patrick C. Hall 
  Kelsey Brunette, Student Representative 

Clark Yuan, Student Representative 
 
 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Hall 
 
Resolution #LC2007-06-012  
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee member Hall at the Liquor Advisory 
Committee meeting of June 11, 2007 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Hall 
 

 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of March 12, 2007 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2007-06-013 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Payne 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             JUNE 11, 2007  

 Page 2 of 3 

RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the March 12, 2007 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Hall 
 

 
 
There were no items on the Agenda for this meeting.  The following Informational 
Items were briefly discussed. 
 

Informational Items 
 

1. NCJ Acquisitions, Inc requests a new additional bar permit (for a total of 2 
bars) to be held in conjunction with 2006 Class C-SDM licensed business 
with dance permit and official permit (food) located at 1090 Rochester, Troy 
MI 48084, Oakland County. {MCLL Req #416254} Does not require any 
action from Committee or Council 

 
This request is from Norm’s Field of Dreams for a second bar area to be 
used during their busy hours. 
 
 

2. Mayur Indian Cuisine, Inc.  Requesting a new outdoor service area (1 
area) on 2006 Class C licensed business with official permit (food) located 
at 5113 Rochester, Troy, MI 48085, Oakland County.  {MLCC Req 
#415323} Does not require any action from Committee or Council 

 
This request is waiting for final inspection approval by the Building 
Department. 

 
 
3. Rochester Road Ventures, LLC, 3946 Rochester, Troy, Oakland County, 

Request to transfer interest on 2006 Class C licensed business with 
Sunday Sales Permit and permission for sales, service, and consumption of 
alcoholic liquors outdoors (1 area), by dropping Scott Forbes as a member 
thru transfer of 30% interest to existing member, Giancarlo (John) 
Deangelis. Approved by MLCC on March 21, 2007. Subject to verification of 
all membership interest. {MLCC Req #382341}  Does not require any action 
from Committee or Council 

 
This transfer has been completed. 
 

 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             JUNE 11, 2007  

 Page 3 of 3 

4. 1555 E. Maple LLC requests to transfer ownership of 2005 Class C 
licensed business with dance permit, located in escrow at 1555 E. Maple, 
Troy, Mi 48084, Oakland County, from jumbo Investment, Inc.; with license 
to be held in escrow. {MLCC req #367206}  Awaiting return of applicant 
questionnaire 

 
Applicant has not returned the questionnaire. 
 

 
5. Atlas Blue Sky, Inc. requests to transfer ownership 2007 SDD and SDM 

licensed business located at 36949 Dequindre, Troy, Mi 48084, Oakland 
County, from MJMN, Inc. {MLCC req #417140}  Awaiting return of applicant 
questionnaire 

 
Applicant has not returned the questionnaire. 
 

 
 
There was a brief discussion about the recent sale to minor violations issued to 
Nino Salvaggio’s, CVS, and Macy’s. 
 
The Committee congratulates student representative Kelsey Brunette on her 
graduation from Athens High School, extends their best wishes for her future 
endeavors, and thanks her for serving on the Liquor Advisory Committee. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:25 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

1 
 

The Chairman, Mark Maxwell, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M., on Tuesday, July 17, 2007 at 7:30 P.M. in Council Chambers of the 
Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Michael W. Bartnik (Arrived at 7:34 P.M.) 
    Glenn Clark 
    Kenneth Courtney 

Marcia Gies 
Mark Maxwell 
Wayne Wright 

 
ABSENT:   Matthew Kovacs 

 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
  Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
  Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF JUNE 19, 2007 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of June 19, 2007 as written. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Gies, Clark, Courtney, Maxwell, Wright,  
Absent: 2 – Bartnik, Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MNAD PROPERTY, LLC, 3236 ROCHESTER 
ROAD, for renewal of relief of a six-foot high screening wall required by Section 
39.10.01 along the south property line where the property abuts residentially zoned 
land. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief of a six-foot high 
screening wall required by Section 39.10.01 along the south property line where the 
property abuts residentially zoned land.  The variance was originally granted in 1968 
and annually renewed for a number of years.  In 1994 it was reported to the Board of 
Zoning Appeals that the variance was no longer necessary.  A review of the records 
indicates that was not the case.  The petitioner is asking that the original variance be 
renewed on the property.       
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of June 19, 2007 and was 
postponed to allow Board members to take another look at the property to make a 
determination of what will be required. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Maged Michail, the owner of the property was present and stated that this variance 
has been granted since 1968 without an issue.  Mr. Michail does not believe it is fair to 
change this request since it is under private ownership.  The neighbor is not 
complaining about noise or the upkeep of the property, she is upset about people 
coming onto her property.  Mr. Michail said extra landscaping or a wooden fence would 
solve this problem.   
 
Mr. Michail said that he has met with the Planning Commission with his plans for this 
property and feels the requirement to put up a screen wall would be a punishment. 
 
Mr. Maxwell explained that Mr. Michail is required by the Ordinance to put up a screen 
wall, but the Board would like to see an alternative.  The Board can give a one, two or 
three year variance on relief of the required screen wall. 
 
Mr. Michail said that although the neighbor had said the tree was gone, they have only 
trimmed the lowest branches.   
 
Mr. Courtney stated that he would like to see extra screening or a cyclone or wood 
fence.  Mr. Courtney believes this property needs to be screened to address the 
concerns of the neighbor. 
 
Mr. Maxwell pointed out that landscaping would have to be monitored. 
 
Mr. Wright said that he would prefer to see a wooden fence. 
 
Mr. Clark stated that the neighbor that appeared at the meeting in June definitely 
indicated that that she wanted a wall to provide the necessary screening. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that he believes the neighbor wanted a wall.  Mr. Bartnik is concerned 
because of the proximity of residences and businesses and feels that they are in very 
close proximity and the business is closing in on the residential area.  Mr. Bartnik does 
not believe a cyclone fence would be the answer and would vote against this variance. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant MNAD Property, LLC, 3236 Rochester Road, a one-year variance for 
relief of the six-foot high screening wall required by Section 39.10.01 along the south 
property line where the property abuts residentially zoned land. 
 

• 6’ high wood screening fence would be installed. 
• One-year time frame will allow the Board to determine the upkeep of the 

property. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

3 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Gies, Maxwell, Wright, Clark, Courtney 
Nays:  1 – Bartnik 
Absent: 1 – Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE FOR ONE-YEAR CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – APPROVAL REQUEST.  JASON WENZEL, 213 FABIUS, for approval 
under Section 43.74.01 to store a commercial vehicle outside on residential property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting approval under Section 43.74.01 
of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle outside on residential 
property.  The Ford utility van described in the application does not meet the exceptions 
found in Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Troy City Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if Mr. Wenzel had looked into storing this vehicle in another location 
and Mr. Wenzel stated that he hadn’t due to the cost involved. 
 
Mr. Wenzel was present and stated that he has owned the property for three years.  He 
has completely re-done the house, which includes new windows and landscaping.  He 
is not trying to bring property values down but is in fact trying to increase the value of 
the property.   
 
Mr. Maxwell said that the Board has to go by certain criteria to determine if approval can 
be granted to store this vehicle on residential property. 
 
Mr. Wenzel stated that he had spoken to six (6) of his neighbors and they have all told 
him that they approve of him storing this vehicle outside. 
 
Mr. Clark stated that one of the objections indicated that there are a lot of construction 
materials stored outside. 
 
Mr. Wenzel said that he plans to put an addition on the home to increase the value of 
the property. 
 
Mr. Clark asked if this material was to be used for this addition. 
 
Mr. Wenzel said that he plans to remove the one-car garage and make it a two-car 
garage and add a second story to the home. He has been buying material until he gets 
to the point where he is ready to do this. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked which of the criteria Mr. Wenzel feels apply to his situation. 
 
Mr. Wenzel said that he did not know what the criteria were. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

4 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Maxwell read the criteria to Mr. Wenzel from the application. 
 
Mr. Wenzel stated that in his opinion a detached garage would be an eyesore to the 
area as the neighbors would rather look at landscaping than an accessory building.  Mr. 
Wenzel said that a detached garage would bring the value of the property down. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if Mr. Wenzel had any thoughts to making the proposed garage 
large enough to accommodate this vehicle. 
 
Mr. Wenzel said that it would not work as the garage would have to be deeper on one 
side and would lower property value.  Mr. Wenzel also said that he has a height 
requirement to consider.  He wants to put more square footage on the house. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Ms. Betty Dolezel, 242 Fabius was present and stated that she lives across the street 
from Mr. Wenzel.  She sees the truck from her window and does not have any objection 
to the parking of this vehicle outside.  Ms. Dolezel said that the vehicle is not that large 
and it does not bother her at all. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are six (6) written approvals on file.  There is one (1) written objection on file. 
 
Mr. Wright stated that when he had driven by this property the vehicle was parked next 
to the garage and said that it appears there is plenty of room to add an additional 
driveway and a detached garage to house this vehicle. 
 
Mr. Wenzel said that he had expanded the driveway and went from gravel to cement.  
This is the area he plans to put up the addition.  Mr. Wenzel also stated that he believes 
a building at the back of the property would detract from the site. 
 
Mr. Wright said that it appears he has room to go on either side of the house to a 
detached garage. 
 
Mr. Wenzel said he has a deck on the back of the house and does not believe there is 
enough room to maneuver a vehicle back there.   
 
Mr. Courtney said that he believes Mr. Wenzel could look at adding to the garage. 
 
Mr. Wenzel said it will not work, and he would have to put a 10’ door on one side and if 
he put up a detached building, it would be an eyesore because of the 10’ door. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

5 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that he does not like the way the Ordinance is written and believes 
that each individual should look for alternative places for these vehicles.   Mr. Maxwell 
further stated that it is very difficult for this Board to make a decision based on the 
criteria listed.  Mr. Maxwell also stated that he hopes the Planning Commission will 
come up with stricter guidelines regarding commercial vehicles. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked why the petitioner needed a 10’ high garage door. 
 
Mr. Wenzel said that this is an enclosed truck and he cannot take it through a drive-thru 
that has a height of 9’ and so he assumes that he would need a higher door. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked how high the vehicle was and Mr. Wenzel stated that he did not know.   
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if he knew how wide the vehicle was and Mr. Wenzel stated that it is a 
regular dual’e, which means it has two wheels on each side of the back. 
 
Motion by Clark 
Supported by Maxwell 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that in his opinion the petitioner has not met any of the requirements 
listed in the application and believes that it will negatively impact the surrounding 
properties. 
 
MOVED, to grant Jason Wenzel, 213 Fabius, approval under Section 43.74.01 to store 
a commercial vehicle outside on residential property for a period of one-year. 
 

• One-year time limit will allow petitioner to explore other alternative locations to 
store this vehicle. 

• Petitioner has met Standard B and C of Section 43.74.01. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Maxwell, Clark, Courtney, Gies 
Nays:  2 – Wright, Bartnik 
Absent: 1 – Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO GRANT APPROVAL FOR ONE-YEAR CARRIED 
 
Mr. Maxwell strongly urged the petitioner to look into alternatives to store this vehicle 
and to be prepared to come back in one-year’s time to explain to the Board why an 
alternative location would not be an option.  Mr. Maxwell also said that he believes it is 
very difficult for this Board to make a sound decision based on the criteria provided. 
 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

6 
 

ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  PAT PETITTO, REAL ESTATE CONSULTANT 
FOR THE CITY OF TROY, for the purchase of a portion of the property at 6480 John R. 
that will result in a lot area of 8,100 square feet where Section 30.10.05 requires 8,500 
square feet minimum lot size in the R-1D Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to purchase 
a portion of the property at 6480 John R.  The property in question is located in the R-
1D (One-Family Residential) Zoning District.  Section 30.10.05 of the Troy Zoning 
Ordinance requires a minimum lot size for a single-family dwelling in the R-1D Zoning  
District of 8,500 square feet.  The portion of the parcel remaining after the acquisition of 
the John R. Road right of way will be only 8,100 square feet in area. 
 
The Ordinance grandfathers the setback of the structure as it is right now, however, it 
does not grandfather the area of the site and this is reason it needs to meet the 
requirement of 8,500 square feet. 
 
Mr. Stimac further explained that the property to the south wraps behind this parcel.  
The parcel to the south has been split a number of times and the number of allowable 
splits has been maxed out.  City Staff has arranged a “No Build” agreement so that the 
property behind 6480 John R. cannot be developed any further.  Accessory buildings, 
fences or any other type of structure cannot be constructed in this area.  Furthermore, 
any additional landscaping would also require approval.   This agreement does not 
physically expand the size of the property, although it will give the appearance of a 
larger lot. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked how far this existing home would be from the right of way line once 
John R. is expanded. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that it will be approximately 37’ from the road. 
 
Ms. Petitto was present and stated that she had nothing further to add. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Pat Petitto, Real Estate Consultant for the City of Troy, approval for 
the purchase of a portion of the property at 6480 John R. that will result in a lot area of 
8,100 square feet where Section 30.10.05 requires 8,500 square feet minimum lot size 
in the R-1D Zoning District. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

7 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Maxwell, Wright, Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Gies 
Absent: 1 – Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  ND INDUSTRIES, INC. 1893 BARRETT, for relief 
of the Ordinance to construct an addition on the existing industrial building that will 
result in 60 parking spaces where Section 40.21.80 of the Ordinance requires 75 
parking spaces; and, a 6’-2” side yard setback where Section 30.20.09 requires a 
minimum 10’ side yard setback in the M-1 Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
an addition to the existing building.  The proposed addition results in a total building 
area on the site of 33,730 square feet.  The site plan submitted indicates that only 43 
parking spaces will be developed on the site and another 17 spaces will be “land 
banked” at the west end of the property resulting in a total number of parking spaces 
available of 60.  Section 40.21.80 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance requires that a 
minimum of 75 parking spaces be provided for an industrial building of this size. 
 
The existing front building has a 6’-2” side yard setback to the north property line.  
Section 30.20.09 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance requires a 10’ minimum side yard 
setback in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District.  The proposed addition will extend 
this non-conforming setback. 
 
A discussion began regarding the number of parking spaces shown on the plan as well 
as the number of parking spaces the petitioner is planning to “land bank”.  
 
Mr. Thomas Roth of Roth and Associates and Mr. Joe Gutowski, General Manager of N 
D Industries, were present.  Mr. Roth explained that in 2004, N D Industries had met 
with both the Building Department Staff as well as the Fire Department to discuss the 
requirements to bring this building up to code. Two wood storage buildings were 
constructed without permits. Originally, they planned to alter this building in three 
phases.  The first phase was to add a fire protection system, fire pump, generators, 
make up air systems and exhaust systems to handle the chemicals used in this building.  
This phase has been completed. 
 
Their second phase was to go in and change all of the electrical systems where 
hazardous materials were being used.  This phase was scheduled to begin in 2007.   
 
The third phase, in 2008, was to remove the back buildings 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

8 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Management decided to do all of this work in one phase.  Essentially they came up with 
a plan that will eliminate the wooden storage building, a loading dock and a truck well.   
 
They lost about 6,000 square feet of storage space that held highly flammable 
materials.   
 
The proposed addition would have a containment area, a building within a building that 
would store the hazardous materials necessary to this building.   The entire building is 
sprinklered, and this containment room is about 2,000 square feet.  There is also a 
containment area, about 18” deep, to hold the sprinklered water in case of 
contamination. 
 
This addition caused the loss of some available parking needed due to trucks coming in 
and out of the property. 
 
There are 43 parking spaces available to handle their largest shift, which consists of 39 
employees. 
 
Two additions have been put on this building.  Mr. Roth said that they have researched 
property records, but have been unable to determine how this building was constructed 
with a 6’-2” side yard setback.  The building was originally constructed in 1957. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written approval on file.  There are no objections on file. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Clark 
 
MOVED, to grant N D Industries, Inc., 1893 Barrett, for relief of the Ordinance to 
construct an addition on the existing industrial building that will result in 60 parking 
spaces where Section 40.21.80 of the Ordinance requires 75 parking spaces; and, a 6’-
2” side yard setback where Section 30.20.09 requires a minimum 10’ side yard setback 
in the M-1 Zoning District. 
 

• Variance applies only to the property described in this application. 
• Variance does not prohibit the establishment of a prohibited use in a Zoning 

District. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Maxwell, Wright, Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Gies 
Absent: 1 – Kovacs 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

9 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MARCY DEGIULIN-GALCA, 125 E. MAPLE 
(PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new office building 
that will result in a 22’ front yard setback and 10’ side yard setback to the west property 
line where Section 30.20.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance requires a 30’ minimum front 
yard setback and a 20’ minimum side yard setback for buildings in the O-1 District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new office building.  This property is located in the O-1 (Office Building) Zoning 
District.  Section 30.20.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance requires a 30’ minimum front 
yard setback and a 20’ minimum side yard setback for buildings in the O-1 District.  The 
site plan submitted indicates a 22’ front yard setback and a 10’ side yard setback to the 
west property line. 
 
Ms. Degiulin-Galca was present and stated that they have been in this building for 
seventeen (17) years and recently they had a fire.  They are proposing to construct a 
new 1800 square foot building.  The previous building was 2700 square feet. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
No one wished to speak and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written objection on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Clark asked if the neighbors were commercial or residential.  Ms. Degiulin-Galca 
said that they were commercial. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that this area of Maple with the exception of a couple of buildings, 
are a number of houses that have been converted to commercial uses.  The property to 
the north is zoned residential and the petitioner has provided a 6’ high screen wall 
where this property abuts the residential property. 
 
Mr. Clark asked for clarification of the setback requests. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the requested 10’ side yard setback is to the west property 
line and the residential property is to the north of this parcel.  This new building will have 
a 48’ setback to the residential property line and the screen wall that is required is 
shown on the construction plans. 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Courtney 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

10 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Marcy Degiulin-Galca, 125 E. Maple, relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a new office building that will result in a 22’ front yard setback and a 10” side 
yard setback to the west property line where Section 30.20.01 of the Troy Zoning 
Ordinance requires a 30’ minimum front yard setback and a 20’ minimum side yard 
setback for buildings in the O-1 Zoning District. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance applies only to the property described in this application. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Wright, Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Gies, Maxwell 
Absent: 1 – Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  PATRICK DYKE, REPRESENTING AZHAR ALI, 
2062 CHARNWOOD (PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new single-family residence with a 29’-9” building height where Section 30.10.01 (u) 
limits the building height of single-family residences in the R-1A Zoning District to 27’. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new single-family residence.  The plans submitted indicate a 29’-9” building height for 
the proposed residence when measured in accordance with Section 04.20.23.  Section 
30.10.01 (u) limits the building height of single-family residences in the R-1A Zoning 
District with property installed attic draft stopping to not more than 27’. 
 
Patrick Dyke, of Patrick Dyke Collaborative, LLC was present.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked if Mr. Dyke was aware that the means were available to make this 
structure comply with the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Dyke stated that the entire residence would have to have a fire suppression system 
or they would have to physically reduce the structure.  A very small portion of this roof 
would be 29’-9”, the largest portion of the roof will be 29’-3”.  They could sprinkle the 
entire residence; however, it is a major undertaking.  The house is designed as low to 
the ground as possible.  There is a 10’ first floor ceiling and an 8’ second floor ceiling.  
They cut into the attic to bring the roof line down.  The house is only 30’ deep at the 
mid- point. They have designed the eave of the roof as close to the second floor 
windows as possible.  According to the Ordinance they could design a home that is 
15,000 square feet, but are only going to build a house that is about one-half of that 
size.  About 50% of the roof of this house is only one-story.  Mr. Dyke also said that it is 
a major undertaking to put a fire suppression system in an entire home and is very 
expensive. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

11 
 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if Mr. Dyke had spoken to the Fire Department regarding fire 
suppression on this home. 
 
Mr. Dyke said that they had and they have tried to lower the height of the home as 
much as possible.  One of the suggestions made by the Fire Department would be to 
draft stop the attic into smaller portions.  Fire suppression systems usually slow down a 
fire, not necessarily put a fire out.  They have draft stopped the attic in three sections. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that when considering a variance, the Board has to consider the 
character and nature of the surrounding area.  This home “as is” is much bigger and 
higher than anything in this area. 
 
Mr. Dyke pointed out that if they add a fire suppression system, the height of this home 
could be 32’ height. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that in his opinion this home is going to be massive compared to other 
homes in the area.  Mr. Maxwell also said that he understands how large a home can 
be constructed on this property, as it is a very large parcel.  
 
Mr. Dyke stated that he has never seen a 32’ height standard in any other community.  
As markets get stronger, this home will add to the value of the homes in the area. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked how large this home would be and Mr. Dyke stated that the first floor 
is about 7,000 square feet and the basement is approximately 4,200 square feet. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that the Board has to look at how this home would fit into the area. 
 
Mr. Dyke stated that the middle of the house is set quite a way back from the front 
property line, so that it would be less obtrusive to the other homes in the area. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked why it was necessary that this home have a 29’ height. 
 
Mr. Dyke stated that in order to lower the roof, they would have to lower the ceilings on 
the first floor and take something from the ceiling height on the second floor.  As a 
designer different design elements come into play and he is trying to make this home as 
attractive as possible.  The roof line should be symmetrical and the pitches on the roof 
equal, especially as this is a hip roof. 
 
 Mr. Dyke went on to say that he was at this meeting for technical support and 
introduced the owner of the property, Dr. M.A. Ali to answer any further questions. 
 
Dr. Ali stated that his first exposure to Troy was in 1992, living at Somerset Apartments.  
Since that time he had considered himself a citizen of Troy.  Troy has an excellent 
school system.    Dr. Ali said that it is very difficult to say exactly why he wanted to live  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

12 
 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
in Troy, except that in his opinion it was similar to “love at first sight”.  Dr. Ali lived in 
Toronto for a period of time, but always wanted to come back to Troy.  Dr. Ali said that 
he would like to be able to give back to the community.  Dr. Ali plans to replace all the 
trees that have been removed and feels this will be a beautiful addition to the area. 
 
Dr. Ali explained that this home is going to be environmentally friendly.  The basement 
will be constructed with material that is 2 ½ times stronger than anything else that is on  
the market and being used at the present time.  They plan to use much more insulation 
and therefore the amount of heating and cooling required would be greatly reduced.   
 
Mr. Maxwell said that it is a beautiful plan.  Mr. Maxwell said that he appreciates what 
he is trying to do, but does have concerns about the neighborhood as a whole. 
 
Dr. Ali said that there was another home in the area that was higher that this proposed 
home. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked the petitioner why he came before the Board.  If the petitioner 
added a Fire Suppression system a variance would not be required and the house could 
be built with a height of 32’. 
 
Dr. Ali stated that a fire suppression system is a major undertaking and very expensive.  
 
Mr. Dyke stated that a fire suppression system would run between $40,000 and 
$45,000.  This cost is difficult to justify. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Ivan Johnson, 6100 Windrush, was present.  Mr. Johnson said that Charnwood was 
built in the 1950’s and was considered way out in the country.  There were quite a few 
restrictions on the property that limited them to one-story homes and many did not have 
basements.  Times have changed and there is quite a bit of new construction going on 
in this area.  Mr. Johnson said that he would be thrilled to see this home go in.  If the 
house was sprinklered it would be bigger and higher and in his opinion more obtrusive 
to the homes in the area.  Mr. Johnson does support this request. 
 
Ms. Jacqueline Stephan, 2160 Charnwood was present.  Ms. Stephan said that she has 
lived in this area for approximately 1 ½ years.  In the time she has been there she has 
been cleaning up the property and met just about all of the neighbors.  Times have 
changed, but Ms. Stephan does not believe this home is in the spirit of the 
neighborhood.  Most of the people in the area are quiet, retired homeowners and most 
of the children are grown and gone.  The homes being constructed on Dalesford are 
much larger and she believes this is the way the trend is going.  Ms. Stephan does not 
see a lot of people coming into this area to build 7,000 square foot houses.  Ms. 
Stephan also said that approximately 70% to 75% of the people in this area are retired  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

13 
 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
and she thinks that the petitioner should look at the surrounding homes and construct 
his home to fit in with the others in the area.  Ms. Stephan stated that her home is 2,300 
square feet and she does not see doubling the size of it just to have an investment in 
the neighborhood.  Ms. Stephan said that she bought the property for the land. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that the home looks very large but it does not take up the entire lot.  
There will be a lot of property still around this home and would not be considered a “big 
foot” home as it does not take up the entire lot. 
 
Ms. Stephan stated that there will be a lot of driveway and cement near her property as 
there is a four car driveway. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that Mr. Johnson has been there a very long time and he is in favor of 
this request.  
 
Ms. Stephan said that she is not saying that she is not in favor, she just wants to caution 
the Board to be aware of what kind of neighborhood this is.  The neighbor behind this 
parcel is very upset about this construction and she did not know why he was not there 
to voice his disapproval. 
 
No one else wished to speak and the Public Hearing was closed.     
 
There is one (1) written objection on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Wright stated that he did not see any hardship associated with the land that would 
justify a variance. 
 
Mr. Courtney agreed with Mr. Wright and yet would like to see the home constructed.  
The cost of the sprinkler system is not a hardship. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the Board had to find a practical difficulty that would justify 
granting a variance. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that although this is a beautiful home it would have a negative impact 
on surrounding property.  Mr. Maxwell also said that he believes that this home could be 
constructed and comply with the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Dyke stated that the practical difficulty is that you have an Ordinance written that is 
so low that it is not conducive to designing any type of two story home with a decent 
roof pitch on it.  The physical constraint is the height dictated by the Ordinance.  This is 
a 7,000 square foot home but is only 30’ deep.   
 
Mr. Maxwell said that typical homes in Troy are about 2300 square feet and don’t have 
10 foot ceilings. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

14 
 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Dyke said that most new homes are constructed with 9’ high ceilings.   
 
Mr. Maxwell said that this is a very large home.   
 
Mr. Dyke stated that they have draft stopped this home in three sections.  They have 
attempted to get the house to look proportionate.  They are trying to blend this home 
with the area.  This is not an investment home and Dr. Ali and his family plan to stay in 
this home for at least fifteen years.  This is the City they want to live in and are not 
worried about how many children are in the area.  This is not a financial investment. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that the Ordinance allows an exception and he does not believe there is 
a practical difficulty other than the cost involved.  The petitioner has demonstrated that 
he has done a lot already, and he is having a problem understanding why this is such a 
problem. 
 
Mr. Courtney took an informal poll of the Board and believes it may be best to postpone 
this request until we have a full Board. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that right now he would vote against this request. 
 
Mr. Wright said that he would vote against this request because he does not see a 
practical difficulty and there is an alternative solution available. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that the house would be good for the City and these lots are large 
enough to support a home of this size, but he did not see a practical hardship that would 
justify a variance.   
 
Mr. Clark stated that he was having a hard time finding the practical difficulty involved 
with this request.  Mr. Clark said that he would recommend that the petitioners come up 
with a better explanation as to why the Ordinance cannot be met.  This is a great City. 
 
Motion by Bartnik 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Patrick Dyke, representing Dr. Azhar Ali, 2062 
Charnwood (proposed address), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new single-
family residence with a 29’-9” building height where Section 30.10.01 (u) limits the 
building height of single-family residences in the R-1A Zoning District to 27’ until the 
meeting of August 21, 2007. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to provide more information on the 
practical difficulty involved with this request. 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity of a full Board. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                 JULY 17, 2007 

15 
 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Gies, Maxwell, Wright 
Absent: 1 – Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL AUGUST 21, 2007 CARRIED 
 
Motion by Gies 
Supported by Clark 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Kovacs from tonight’s meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Gies, Maxwell, Wright 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. KOVACS CARRIED 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:26 P.M. 
 
 
 
             
      Mark Maxwell, Chairman 
 
 
 
             
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             JULY 24, 2007  

 Page 1 of 4 

 
A special meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Tuesday, July 
24, 2007 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big 
Beaver Road.  Committee member Henry Allemon called the meeting to order at 
7:29 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Henry W. Allemon 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    David S. Ogg 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Robert Cantlon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Timothy P. Payne 
 
 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Members Ehlert and Payne 
 
Resolution #LC2007-07-014  
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee members Ehlert and Payne at the 
Liquor Advisory Committee meeting of July 24, 2007 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Payne 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             JULY 24, 2007  

 Page 2 of 4 

 

 
 
Agenda Items 
 
 
1. The Kroger Co. of Michigan requests to transfer ownership of 2007 SDM 

licensed business located at 1237 North Coolidge, Troy, Michigan 48084, 

Oakland County from Borman’s Inc.  {MLCC Req #421656} 
 
2. The Kroger Co. of Michigan requests to transfer ownership of 2007 SDM 

licensed business located at 2105 W. South Boulevard, Troy, Michigan 
48098, Oakland County from Borman’s Inc.  {MLCC Req # 421608} 
 

3. The Kroger Co. of Michigan requests to transfer ownership of 2007 SDM 
licensed business located at 3125 John R, Troy, Michigan 48083, Oakland 
County from Borman’s Inc.  {MLCC Req # 421588} 

 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Mr. Chris Rodgers, Real 
Estate Manager for the Great Lakes Division of The Kroger Company.   
 
Also present at the meeting was Ms. Ann Comiskey, Executive Director of the Troy 
Community Coalition. 
 
Sgt. Cantlon presented the Committee members with information on the Kroger 
Company’s liquor violation history in Troy, as well as Oakland and Macomb 
Counties.   
 
Mr. Rodgers explained that The Kroger Company is open for business in the three 
former Farmer Jack locations in the City of Troy.  He stated that the stores are 
currently organized and stocked to resemble the former Farmer Jack, but each 
location would be remodeled in the future.  He thanked the Committee for 
convening for this Special Meeting to consider the license transfers.   
 
Concerns were presented by Allemon and Ms. Comiskey as to the location of the 
beer and wine in the John R/Big Beaver store.  They felt that those items should 
be in an aisle further away from the entrance/exit door and within view of the 
Service Desk personnel.  The Committee asked further questions and discussed 
this issue. 
 
The Committee discussed a suggestion that their recommendation for approval of 
the license transfer contain restrictions that The Kroger Company relocate the 
beer and wine shelves and coolers when the stores were remodeled.     
 
There was also discussion to approve the license transfer without restrictions. 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             JULY 24, 2007  

 Page 3 of 4 

 

 
 
Item No. 1  
 
Resolution #LC2007-07-015 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, that the Kroger Co. of Michigan be allowed to transfer ownership of 
2007 SDM licensed business located at 1237 North Coolidge, Troy, Michigan 
48084, Oakland County from Borman’s Inc. 
 
 
Yes:  Godlewski, Hall, Ogg 
No:  Allemon, Ukrainec 
Absent: Ehlert, Payne 
 
 

 
 
Item No. 2 
 
Resolution #LC2007-07-016 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, that the Kroger Co. of Michigan be allowed to transfer ownership of 
2007 SDM licensed business located at 2105 W. South Boulevard, Troy, Michigan 
48098, Oakland County from Borman’s Inc.   
 
 
Yes:  Godlewski, Hall, Ogg 
No:  Allemon, Ukrainec 
Absent: Ehlert, Payne 
 
 

 
 
Item No. 3 
 
Resolution #LC2007-07-017 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             JULY 24, 2007  

 Page 4 of 4 

RESOLVED, that the Kroger Co. of Michigan be allowed to transfer ownership of 
2007 SDM licensed business located at 3125 John R, Troy, Michigan 48083, 
Oakland County from Borman’s Inc.   
 
 
Yes:  Godlewski, Hall, Ogg 
No:  Allemon, Ukrainec 
Absent: Ehlert, Payne 
 
 

 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:55 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Henry W. Allemon, Committee Member 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                            AUGUST 1, 2007 

1 
 

The Vice-Chairman, William Nelson, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:35 A.M. on Wednesday, August 1, 2007 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Rick Kessler 
   Bill Nelson 
   Tim Richnak 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ABSENT:  Ted Dziurman 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF JULY 11, 2007 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of July 11, 2007 as written. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Kessler, Nelson, Richnak, Zuazo 
Absent: 1 – Dziurman 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  JANIS P. HANNAN, 6337 EMERALD LAKE 
DRIVE, for relief of the Section R-305 of the 2003 Michigan Residential Code to 
maintain a dropped ceiling height in the basement of 78 ½”, where 84” is required. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the 2003 Michigan 
Residential Code to maintain a basement ceiling height of 78 ½”.  Section R-305 of the 
2003 Michigan Residential Code requires a ceiling height of 84”.  The home in question 
was damaged by water from a broken water pipe.  The damage was such that the 
ceilings and interior finishes in the basement needed to be replaced.  Field inspections 
of the work show that the height of the dropped ceiling is at 78 ½” 
 
Mr. Stimac also stated that field inspections have been made and based on those 
inspections it has been determined that the height of the floor joists is approximately 
85”. 
 
Roy Rockensuess the Contractor for Janis Hannan, and Ms. Hannan were present.  Mr. 
Rockensuess stated that any type of dropped ceiling would bring the height of the 
ceiling down about 6”.  Most of the floor joists were set at a height of 7’, which makes it 
difficult to meet the 84” ceiling height requirement. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                            AUGUST 1, 2007 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked what material the original ceiling was made of. 
 
Ms. Hannan said that everything is exactly the same.   
 
Mr. Kessler asked why the ceiling was not dry walled. 
 
Mr. Rockensuess stated that there are gas lines and plumbing lines in the ceiling.  
Eventually the homeowner would like to add a bathroom downstairs and a dropped 
ceiling will give them access to the water pipes. 
 
Mr. Hannan said that originally she was appealing this height restriction for her mother 
who recently passed away.  She had lived at this address for forty-five years and Ms. 
Hannan thought this would be the best way to fix the water damage. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the existing soffit under the beam was an issue. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that based on inspections, it does not appear that the soffit has been 
modified. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant Janis P. Hannan, 6337 Emerald Lake Drive, relief of Section R-305 of 
the 2003 Michigan Residential Code to maintain a dropped ceiling height in the 
basement of 78 ½” where 84” is required. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Nelson, Richnak, Zuazo, Kessler 
Absent: 1 – Dziurman 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:41 A.M. 
 
 
              
      William Nelson, Vice-Chairman 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             AUGUST 13, 2007  

 Page 1 of 2 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, August 
13, 2007 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big 
Beaver Road.  Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 6:56 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Clark Yuan, Student Representative 
    Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Robert Cantlon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
   
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of June 11, 2007 & July 24, 2007 Meetings 
 
Resolution #LC2007-08-018 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Payne 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the June 11, 2007 and July 24, 2007 meetings of 
the Liquor Advisory Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  7 
No:  0 
Absent: 0 
 

 
 
Agenda Items 
 
 
1. Atlas Blue Sky, Inc. requests to transfer ownership of 2007 SDD and SDM 

licensed business located at 36949 Dequindre, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland 
County, from MJMN, Inc. {MLCC req #417140}  

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             AUGUST 13, 2007  

 Page 2 of 2 

Present to answer questions from the Committee were Kawkab Matti (seller) and 
Ghassan Hirmiz and Raymond Elia (buyers).   
 
Mr. Matti explained to the Committee that he is selling the Atlas Market & Bakery 
located at 36949 Dequindre to Mr. Hirmiz and Mr. Elia.  There will be no change in 
operations of the store, which is a specialty market, bakery, deli, carryout, and 
pharmacy.  In response to a question from a Committee member, Mr. Matti stated 
that the revenue from liquor, beer, and/or wine purchases accounts for 
approximately 15-20% of the total sales.  The staff will remain the same and Mr. 
Matti will continue in an advisory role for approximately four months.   
 
Resolution #LC2007-08-019 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that Atlas Blue Sky, Inc. be allowed to transfer ownership of 2007 
SDD and SDM licensed business located at 36949 Dequindre, Troy, MI 48084, 
Oakland County, from MJMN, Inc.  
 
 
Yes:  7 
No:  0  
Absent: 0 
 
 

 
 
The next regular meeting will be held on Monday, September 17, 2007 at 7:00 
p.m. in the Lower Level Conference Room. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:11 p.m. 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD FINAL MINUTES AUGUST 14, 2007  

 

 
TROY ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD 

TUESDAY, AUGUST 14, 2007 
TROY CITY HALL - CONFERENCE ROOM C 

 
I. Call to Order 7:05 p.m. 
 
II. Roll Call: 
 

Present:  
Michelle Haight 
Kelly Jones 
Mayada Fakhouri 
Cindy Stewart, City Liaison 
Tony Haddad 
Reuben Ellis (7:15) 
Gladson Remos 
Lulu Guo, student rep 
Helen Yang, student rep 
 
Absent 
Grigore Buia  
Anju Brodbine 
 
Guest: 
Karen Yelder 
 
 

III. Approval of Minutes – July 10, 2007 
Motion by Kelly Jones to approve the July 10, 2007 minutes, seconded by 
Mayada Fakhouri.   Approved unanimously  

 
 
 

IV. Correspondence / Articles  
 

V. New Business  
a. Report on Healing Racism Workshop –  
Michelle wanted Institute for the Healing of Racism of Southeastern Michigan  
chairperson Leona Mackelvene to attend a future (Oct.) meeting re: resources 
they offer. How much time do we wish to allot for her?  Board agreed to 20 
minutes.  

 
VI. Old Business 

b. EthniCity 
 Booths – add Poland 
  Arab American Chaldean Council 
  Spanish Club 
  Carpathia Club (German) 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD FINAL MINUTES AUGUST 14, 2007  

 

 
Coming:  Taiwanese 
  India 
  Buddhist International Association 
 
Lulu will contact Latin Club. 
Helen will contact French Club. 
 
Cindy ordered 1000 4” x 6” American flags to be given out at Troy Daze and 
other events such as Kaleidoscope.  Michelle will coordinate items for E.I.A. 
Board table. Map of the world (laminated) will be brought to EhtniCity by 
Michelle. She will also bring musical instruments, globe.  Also the posters from 
the contest will be hung up.  
 
Cindy will copy the one page info sheet on E.I.A. board. 
 
Michelle has CDs from variety of countries she can bring to play as background 
music.  
 
c. Recommendations re: Board vacancies and absences –  

 
Board looked at proposed recommendations to be a member of the Ethnic Issues 
Advisory Board. Cindy will also check with the City Attorney if all these questions can be 
asked.  
 
Kelly Jones made a motion to recommend Karen Yelder to fill the new vacancy on the 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board which will replace Hailu Robele.  Seconded by Mayada 
Fakhouri. 
 
Discussion:  Karen is a member of the following: 

NAACP 
Charles H. Wright African American Museum 
Board of Directors Boys & Girls Club of Troy 
Board of Directors Troy Schools Sex Education Advisory Board 
Co-Chair Troy Daze Talent Shows 
Founder of social group for African American Business owners in Oakland 
County 
Greater Grace Temple member 
Attended all sessions of Bridging the Racial Divide 
Attends all MLK Celebration of Freedom events with City of Troy & Troy Schools 
Athens Athletic Boosters parent 
Business Owner 
 
Vote – Unanimous to recommend Karen Yelder to fill the EIA Board vacancy. 
 
Her leadership, dedication and compassion would make her an outstanding 
asset to the Board.  



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD FINAL MINUTES AUGUST 14, 2007  

 

 
d. Appointment of a Vice Chair 

 
In case the chair is absent, it is important to have a vice chair to conduct the meeting.  
 
Motion by Tony Haddad to appoint Kelly Jones as Vice Chair.  Seconded by Michelle 
Haight.   Approved unanimously.  
 
VII. Staff Report 
 
Please sign up for volunteer times and t-shirt sizes.  
 
Public comment 
 
Karen Yelder is very appreciative for the E.I.A. Board’s support and said she will be a 
positive contributor. She is very excited about this Board’s mission. 
 
Member comment 
 
Conversation about how Troy Schools can promote greater hiring of teachers from 
diverse ethnic backgrounds.  
 
 
VIII. Adjournment  

 
 Motion to adjourn by Kelly Jones. Seconded by Tony Haddad.  
 Meeting adjourned at 8:31 pm.     

 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
Michelle Haight, EIA Chair 

 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, EIA Recording Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 14, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on August 14, 2007, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Lawrence Littman 
Mary Kerwin 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Mark J. Vleck 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Jonathan Shin, Student Representative 
Joel Cortright, Student Representative 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-08-125 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Littman is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-08-126 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as presented. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 14, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-08-127 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the July 24, 2007 and July 31, 2007 Special/Study Meetings 
minutes as presented. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

STREET VACATION REQUEST 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – STREET VACATION REQUEST (SV 32-B) – Lincoln Drive, 
West of John R, South of Big Beaver, approximately ±260.00 feet long, ±25 feet 
wide, Section 26 – Zoned PUD #7 (The Village at Big Beaver) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
street vacation.  He reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the request with the condition that temporary easements would be retained 
for the water main and gas line.  Mr. Miller indicated the easements would be 
relocated during construction and engineering of the Sunrise Senior Living portion 
of the planned unit development project.  
 
Mr. Hutson asked if the temporary easements would be vacated automatically, or if 
they would remain.   
 
Ms. Lancaster said the temporary easements would cease upon vacation and that 
the Resolution should state that.   
 
Robert Jacobs, Attorney, of Jackier Gould, P.C., 121 W. Long Lake Road, 
Bloomfield Hills, was present to represent the petitioner. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 14, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2007-08-128 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the street vacation request, as submitted, for a street located west of 
John R, south of Big Beaver, approximately 260 feet long by approximately 25 feet 
wide, Section 26, be approved, subject to the following condition: 
 
1. A temporary water main easement and natural gas line easement shall be 

retained until such time that easements are executed for the relocated water 
main and natural gas line. 

 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 

6. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 941) – Proposed AAA Insurance Office, North side of 
Maple, East of Livernois (121 E. Maple), Section 27, Zoned O-1 (Low Rise Office) 
District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the 
site plan as submitted.  Mr. Miller indicated a dumpster is not required on the site, 
but noted there is a requirement to screen a dumpster should one be placed on the 
site. 
 
The petitioner, Marcella DeGiulio-Galka of 121 E. Maple, Troy, was present.  Ms. 
DeGiulio-Galka asked for clarification on storm water detention.   
 
Mr. Miller addressed the engineering process as relates to storm water detention. 
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Mr. Strat asked the petitioner what method of trash removal she would be using.   
 
Ms. DeGiulio-Galka replied that trash would be kept in the basement area and 
placed outside for curb pick-up.  She said a shredding company has been hired, 
and she estimates there would be two trash bags per week. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 14, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Mr. Strat asked if the petitioner uses the City’s residential trash removal service.  
 
Ms. DeGiulio-Galka replied in the affirmative, and said they have been using the 
service for the last 17 years.   
 
Chair Schultz informed the petitioner that it might be in her best interest to hire a 
trash hauling service.  He indicated the City’s residential service should not be 
picking up trash in the O-1 zoning district.   
 
Mr. Tagle asked the petitioner to address the size and setback compliance of the 
existing building. 
 
Ms. DeGiulio-Galka said the existing single floor building is 2,800 square feet and 
does not comply with existing setbacks.   
 
Chair Schultz addressed a news article that implied people were living in the office 
building at the time of the fire.  He asked if there were any legal implications if it 
should be discovered that people reside in buildings within the O-1 zoning district.   
 
Ms. Lancaster said people are not allowed to reside in office buildings, and 
indicated it could result in being ticketed.   
 
Ms. DeGiulio-Galka said there was no one living in the building. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-08-129 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed office, located on the north side of Maple, east of 
Livernois, located in Section 27, on approximately 10,200 net square feet in area, 
within the O-1 zoning district, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

7. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 641-C) – Proposed Industrial Building Addition, West side 
of Barrett, North of Maple (1893 Barrett), Section 28, Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) 
District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the 
site plan as submitted.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 14, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Mr. Tagle asked about the notation on the site plan relating to a waiver of the 
dumpster screen wall. 
 
Mr. Miller said there is no requirement to screen the dumpster because of its 
location on the site.  
 
Mr. Tagle questioned the number of landbanked parking spaces as relates to the 
application.   
 
Mr. Miller said the Planning Department would verify the number of designated 
landbanked parking spaces. 
 
Mr. Tagle addressed the turning radius of a semi trailer truck on the site.  He said 
the site plan shows that a turning semi trailer truck would clip the building.  Mr. 
Tagle said it appears that the landscaped area is in the way.  
 
Mr. Miller indicated that issue should be discussed with the petitioner, as the City 
does not have a standard on turning radii unless it relates to a fire truck. 
 
Thomas Roth of Roth and Associates, project architect, and Joe Gutowski of N D 
Industries, 1893 Barrett Drive, were present.   
 
Mr. Roth addressed the truck turning radius and said the CAD software could not 
put in a 90-degree curb radius.  
 
Mr. Gutowski addressed the building expansion, the landscaped area and existing 
truck wells.  He said they worked with the Troy Fire Department to resolve 
outstanding issues that existed over the years.   
 
Discussion followed. 
 
Messrs. Roth and Gutowski were confident that a semi trailer truck could maneuver 
the turn.   
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-08-130 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed industrial building addition, located on the west side 
of Barrett, north of Maple, located in Section 28, on approximately 2.0 acres in area, 
within the M-1 zoning district, be granted, subject to the following condition: 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 14, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

1. Verification of landbanked parking. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

8. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 305-H) – Proposed West Bed Tower Expansion, William 
Beaumont Hospital, West side of Dequindre, South of South Blvd. (44201 
Dequindre), Section 1, Zoned C-F (Community Facilities) and E-P (Environmental 
Protection) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the 
site plan as submitted. 
 
Tom Platz of Harley Ellis Devereaux, 26913 Northwestern Hwy, Southfield, was 
present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Platz addressed construction of the three 
additional stories.  He indicated the fifth floor would be completed immediately, and 
the 6th and 7th floors would be shelled until 2012.   
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-08-131 
Moved by: Troshynski 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed William Beaumont Hospital west bed tower 
expansion, located on the west side of Dequindre, south of South Boulevard, 
located in Section 1, on approximately 67.695 acres in area, within the C-F and E-P 
zoning districts, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 14, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN 
 

9. SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN REVIEW – Villas of Troy Site Condominium, 12 
units/lots proposed, South of Wattles Road, West side of Finch, Section 21, Zoned 
R-1B (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site condominium project.  He addressed the two flood plain lines shown 
on the plans, indicating that one flood plain line represents the FIRM map and the 
second flood plain line is representative of a study completed by Spalding 
DeDecker in February 2001.  Mr. Savidant reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the application subject to (1) a determination by the 
Planning Commission that the Parallel Plan is feasible; and (2) flood plain boundary 
approval by the MDEQ and FEMA prior to final site condominium approval. 
 
There was lengthy discussion on: 
• Feasibility of the Parallel Plan. 
• Distinction of conflicting flood plain lines, as relates to the number of 

developable units. 
• MDEQ approval procedure of which preliminary site plan approval is required at 

the time of MDEQ submission. 
• Precedence of action by MDEQ and FEMA over the Planning Commission.   
 
Mr. Miller said the City’s Engineering Department has determined that the proposed 
Parallel Plan is feasible.  He indicated it is very likely that the petitioner would get 
approval by the MDEQ.   
 
Mr. Savidant said the Engineering Department’s determination is based on the flood 
plain lines as represented by the Spalding DeDecker study.  He indicated that two 
of the proposed eleven units would conflict with the flood plain line.  
 
Ms. Kerwin expressed concern with the word “shall” in the approval condition cited 
in the Planning Department report.  The report references that the Planning 
Commission “shall” determine that the Parallel Plan is feasible.  Kerwin said the 
engineering report should have indicated in narrative form that the Spalding 
DeDecker flood plain lines were used in its determination that the Parallel Plan is 
feasible. 
 
Mr. Miller apologized if the language in the Planning Department report appeared 
too strong.  He noted that the proposed Resolution does not contain that language, 
and City Management is not asking the Planning Commission to make a 
determination on the feasibility of the Parallel Plan.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 14, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Also discussed were alternative detention methods and ingenuity in storm water 
management.   
 
Mr. Savidant said it would be a first for the City to require a developer to provide 
bioswales in a single family residential development.  He reviewed the procedure for 
preliminary and final site condominium approvals, and noted the Planning 
Commission would not review the plan for final approval. 
 
Mr. Miller said neither the Planning Commission nor City Council have the authority 
to dictate what engineering methods would be utilized.  He indicated that the site 
plan could change because the only requirement from the petitioner at the time of 
preliminary site condominium review is to show on the plan what they might do.  Mr. 
Miller further stated that the Engineering Department does not have the authority to 
require alternative storm water management methods.  
 
The petitioner, Joe Maniaci of Mondrian Properties, 50215 Schoenherr, Shelby 
Twp, was present.  Mr. Maniaci said the intent of the cluster development is to leave 
the natural open space and not impede into the wetlands or flood plain area.  He 
indicated there would be a small impact on one of the wetlands near the detention 
basin.  Mr. Maniaci said his engineer and the City’s Engineering Department 
extensively reviewed the site plan and the plan meets all City ordinance 
requirements.  He said development is feasible using either set of flood plain lines.  
He indicated the development would be easier using the Spalding DeDecker flood 
plain lines, and he is confident of the findings reported in their study.  Mr. Maniaci 
addressed the development process of site condominium development versus 
single family homes.   
 
Ms. Troshynski addressed the size of the homes on the smaller lots as proposed, 
and asked the petitioner if he had a “Plan B”.   
 
Mr. Maniaci replied they have not looked at options to reduce the number of units 
due to cost factors.  He said the lots are wider and the homes will appear larger 
than they really are because of the property depth.  Mr. Maniaci said the lots would 
have the same spatial relationship as the neighbors to the south.   
 
Mr. Miller addressed the 100 year flood plan impact on the proposed development, 
as relates to the FIRM flood plain lines and the Spalding DeDecker flood plain lines.  
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Joe McKeever of 840 Huntsford, Troy, was present.  Mr. McKeever addressed the 
density of the proposed development and storm water management in the area.  He 
asked Mondrian Properties to complete all construction phases, specifically sidewalks, 
of existing developments before beginning a new project.  Mr. McKeever said he 
would like to see future development of the southeast corner.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 14, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

Chair Schultz said the southeast corner is wetland and not buildable.  He informed Mr. 
McKeever to contact the Building Department about the sidewalk construction in the 
area. 
 
Bob Beauchamp of 880 Huntsford, Troy, was present.  Mr. Beauchamp addressed his 
concern for the health of the pine trees in the area with the placement of the drain to 
the south side of the property. 
 
Chair Schultz said the Engineering Department would address that concern.   
 
Jo Alice Pelletier of 800 Huntsford, Troy, was present.  Ms. Pelletier addressed the 
proposed development as relates to density, environmental impact and disruptions, 
and storm water management.  She also addressed the approval process of the City.  
 
Chair Schultz provided a brief explanation of the two-dimensional site plans that are 
reviewed by the Planning Commission, and multi-dimensional plans reviewed by other 
City departments.   
 
Edith Masana of 3830 Finch, Troy, was present.  Ms. Masana addressed the area’s 
environment, natural features and wildlife.  She asked what safety measures the 
developer would take for the protection of children near the creeks.  Ms. Masana also 
addressed the drainage system.   
 
Duane Devereaux 3812 Finch, Troy, was present.  Mr. Devereaux addressed the 
maintenance of the wetlands directly behind his house.  He maintains his property, but 
there has been no maintenance of the wetlands that abuts his property.   
 
Irene Pawlak of 3848 Finch, Troy, was present.  Ms. Pawlak shared a personal, 
negative experience she had with Spalding DeDecker.  She addressed the drainage in 
the area, and asked the City to take its time and review the situation before making a 
decision on the proposed development.   
 
Chair Schultz reviewed the procedure a petitioner must follow to seek MDEQ 
approval.   
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-08-132 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council, that the 
Preliminary Site Plan (Section 34.60.00 Open Space Preservation Option), as 
requested for Villas of Troy Site Condominium, including 11 units, located south of 
Wattles, west side of Finch, Section 21, within the R-1B zoning district, be granted, 
subject to the following conditions: 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 14, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

1.  Prior to Final Site Plan Approval, the flood plain boundary shall be approved 
by the MDEQ and FEMA. 

 
FURTHERMORE, That the following design recommendations are provided to City 
Management and to the property owners: 
 
1. That they will work with the neighboring properties to preserve the health of as 

many trees on the neighboring property when installing the drainage system.   
 
Yes: Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Vleck 
No: Hutson, Kerwin, Troshynski, Wright 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Mr. Wright said he is not convinced the Parallel Plan is feasible and that they can 
get 11 units on the property.   
 
Ms. Kerwin voiced concerns with the potential impact to neighboring properties as 
relates to density, environment and flooding.  She also addressed the engineering 
report on the matter.   
 
Mr. Hutson said he is not satisfied that the Parallel Plan is feasible. 
 
Ms. Troshynski voiced concern with the density of the proposed development.  She 
said the development was not well thought out as far as size and use of the 
property, and addressed the sale of homes without basements.   
 
A brief discussion followed on: 
• Action that could be taken by the petitioner. 
• Recommendation for denial to City Council. 
• Procedure to reconsider the motion. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-08--- 
Moved by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, Reconsideration of this issue.   
 
Motion FAILS due to a lack of a second. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 14, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Miller briefly addressed details of the August 22 and August 28, 2007 
Special/Study meetings.   
 
Mr. Strat regrettably said he would not be in attendance at the August 22nd meeting.   
 
Ms. Kerwin asked the Chair if he could share information on the study being 
conducted on the City’s permit approval process. 
 
Chair Schultz said his interview with Zucker Systems is scheduled tomorrow. 
 
Mr. Vleck thanked the Troy Parks and Recreation Department for a great job in 
accommodating the Troy Youth Football Association.   
 
Mr. Hutson addressed the prepared Resolutions by the Planning Department, as 
relates to general or more specific language for site plan approval.   
 
Chair Schultz reminded everyone of the Special meeting called on Wednesday, 
August 22 at 7:30 p.m. 
 
 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 9:14 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Draft\08-14-07 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL AUGUST 14, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on August 14, 2007, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Lawrence Littman 
Mary Kerwin 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Mark J. Vleck 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Jonathan Shin, Student Representative 
Joel Cortright, Student Representative 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-08-125 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Littman is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-08-126 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as presented. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL AUGUST 14, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-08-127 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the July 24, 2007 and July 31, 2007 Special/Study Meetings 
minutes as presented. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

STREET VACATION REQUEST 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – STREET VACATION REQUEST (SV 32-B) – Lincoln Drive, 
West of John R, South of Big Beaver, approximately ±260.00 feet long, ±25 feet 
wide, Section 26 – Zoned PUD #7 (The Village at Big Beaver) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
street vacation.  He reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the request with the condition that temporary easements would be retained 
for the water main and gas line.  Mr. Miller indicated the easements would be 
relocated during construction and engineering of the Sunrise Senior Living portion 
of the planned unit development project.  
 
Mr. Hutson asked if the temporary easements would be vacated automatically, or if 
they would remain.   
 
Ms. Lancaster said the temporary easements would cease upon vacation and that 
the Resolution should state that.   
 
Robert Jacobs, Attorney, of Jackier Gould, P.C., 121 W. Long Lake Road, 
Bloomfield Hills, was present to represent the petitioner. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL AUGUST 14, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2007-08-128 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the street vacation request, as submitted, for a street located west of 
John R, south of Big Beaver, approximately 260 feet long by approximately 25 feet 
wide, Section 26, be approved, subject to the following condition: 
 
1. A temporary water main easement and natural gas line easement shall be 

retained until such time that easements are executed for the relocated water 
main and natural gas line. 

 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 

6. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 941) – Proposed AAA Insurance Office, North side of 
Maple, East of Livernois (121 E. Maple), Section 27, Zoned O-1 (Low Rise Office) 
District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the 
site plan as submitted.  Mr. Miller indicated a dumpster is not required on the site, 
but noted there is a requirement to screen a dumpster should one be placed on the 
site. 
 
The petitioner, Marcella DeGiulio-Galka of 121 E. Maple, Troy, was present.  Ms. 
DeGiulio-Galka asked for clarification on storm water detention.   
 
Mr. Miller addressed the engineering process as relates to storm water detention. 
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Mr. Strat asked the petitioner what method of trash removal she would be using.   
 
Ms. DeGiulio-Galka replied that trash would be kept in the basement area and 
placed outside for curb pick-up.  She said a shredding company has been hired, 
and she estimates there would be two trash bags per week. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL AUGUST 14, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Mr. Strat asked if the petitioner uses the City’s residential trash removal service.  
 
Ms. DeGiulio-Galka replied in the affirmative, and said they have been using the 
service for the last 17 years.   
 
Chair Schultz informed the petitioner that it might be in her best interest to hire a 
trash hauling service.  He indicated the City’s residential service should not be 
picking up trash in the O-1 zoning district.   
 
Mr. Tagle asked the petitioner to address the size and setback compliance of the 
existing building. 
 
Ms. DeGiulio-Galka said the existing single floor building is 2,800 square feet and 
does not comply with existing setbacks.   
 
Chair Schultz addressed a news article that implied people were living in the office 
building at the time of the fire.  He asked if there were any legal implications if it 
should be discovered that people reside in buildings within the O-1 zoning district.   
 
Ms. Lancaster said people are not allowed to reside in office buildings, and 
indicated it could result in being ticketed.   
 
Ms. DeGiulio-Galka said there was no one living in the building. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-08-129 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed office, located on the north side of Maple, east of 
Livernois, located in Section 27, on approximately 10,200 net square feet in area, 
within the O-1 zoning district, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

7. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 641-C) – Proposed Industrial Building Addition, West side 
of Barrett, North of Maple (1893 Barrett), Section 28, Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) 
District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the 
site plan as submitted.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL AUGUST 14, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Mr. Tagle asked about the notation on the site plan relating to a waiver of the 
dumpster screen wall. 
 
Mr. Miller said there is no requirement to screen the dumpster because of its 
location on the site.  
 
Mr. Tagle questioned the number of landbanked parking spaces as relates to the 
application.   
 
Mr. Miller said the Planning Department would verify the number of designated 
landbanked parking spaces. 
 
Mr. Tagle addressed the turning radius of a semi trailer truck on the site.  He said 
the site plan shows that a turning semi trailer truck would clip the building.  Mr. 
Tagle said it appears that the landscaped area is in the way.  
 
Mr. Miller indicated that issue should be discussed with the petitioner, as the City 
does not have a standard on turning radii unless it relates to a fire truck. 
 
Thomas Roth of Roth and Associates, project architect, and Joe Gutowski of N D 
Industries, 1893 Barrett Drive, were present.   
 
Mr. Roth addressed the truck turning radius and said the CAD software could not 
put in a 90-degree curb radius.  
 
Mr. Gutowski addressed the building expansion, the landscaped area and existing 
truck wells.  He said they worked with the Troy Fire Department to resolve 
outstanding issues that existed over the years.   
 
Discussion followed. 
 
Messrs. Roth and Gutowski were confident that a semi trailer truck could maneuver 
the turn.   
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-08-130 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed industrial building addition, located on the west side 
of Barrett, north of Maple, located in Section 28, on approximately 2.0 acres in area, 
within the M-1 zoning district, be granted, subject to the following condition: 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL AUGUST 14, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

1. Verification of landbanked parking. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

8. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 305-H) – Proposed West Bed Tower Expansion, William 
Beaumont Hospital, West side of Dequindre, South of South Blvd. (44201 
Dequindre), Section 1, Zoned C-F (Community Facilities) and E-P (Environmental 
Protection) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the 
site plan as submitted. 
 
Tom Platz of Harley Ellis Devereaux, 26913 Northwestern Hwy, Southfield, was 
present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Platz addressed construction of the three 
additional stories.  He indicated the fifth floor would be completed immediately, and 
the 6th and 7th floors would be shelled until 2012.   
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-08-131 
Moved by: Troshynski 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed William Beaumont Hospital west bed tower 
expansion, located on the west side of Dequindre, south of South Boulevard, 
located in Section 1, on approximately 67.695 acres in area, within the C-F and E-P 
zoning districts, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL AUGUST 14, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN 
 

9. SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN REVIEW – Villas of Troy Site Condominium, 12 
units/lots proposed, South of Wattles Road, West side of Finch, Section 21, Zoned 
R-1B (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site condominium project.  He addressed the two flood plain lines shown 
on the plans, indicating that one flood plain line represents the FIRM map and the 
second flood plain line is representative of a study completed by Spalding 
DeDecker in February 2001.  Mr. Savidant reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the application subject to (1) a determination by the 
Planning Commission that the Parallel Plan is feasible; and (2) flood plain boundary 
approval by the MDEQ and FEMA prior to final site condominium approval. 
 
There was lengthy discussion on: 
• Feasibility of the Parallel Plan. 
• Distinction of conflicting flood plain lines, as relates to the number of 

developable units. 
• MDEQ approval procedure of which preliminary site plan approval is required at 

the time of MDEQ submission. 
• Precedence of action by MDEQ and FEMA over the Planning Commission.   
 
Mr. Miller said the City’s Engineering Department has determined that the proposed 
Parallel Plan is feasible.  He indicated it is very likely that the petitioner would get 
approval by the MDEQ.   
 
Mr. Savidant said the Engineering Department’s determination is based on the flood 
plain lines as represented by the Spalding DeDecker study.  He indicated that two 
of the proposed eleven units would conflict with the flood plain line.  
 
Ms. Kerwin expressed concern with the word “shall” in the approval condition cited 
in the Planning Department report.  The report references that the Planning 
Commission “shall” determine that the Parallel Plan is feasible.  Kerwin said the 
engineering report should have indicated in narrative form that the Spalding 
DeDecker flood plain lines were used in its determination that the Parallel Plan is 
feasible. 
 
Mr. Miller apologized if the language in the Planning Department report appeared 
too strong.  He noted that the proposed Resolution does not contain that language, 
and City Management is not asking the Planning Commission to make a 
determination on the feasibility of the Parallel Plan.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL AUGUST 14, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Also discussed were alternative detention methods and ingenuity in storm water 
management.   
 
Mr. Savidant said it would be a first for the City to require a developer to provide 
bioswales in a single family residential development.  He reviewed the procedure for 
preliminary and final site condominium approvals, and noted the Planning 
Commission would not review the plan for final approval. 
 
Mr. Miller said neither the Planning Commission nor City Council have the authority 
to dictate what engineering methods would be utilized.  He indicated that the site 
plan could change because the only requirement from the petitioner at the time of 
preliminary site condominium review is to show on the plan what they might do.  Mr. 
Miller further stated that the Engineering Department does not have the authority to 
require alternative storm water management methods.  
 
The petitioner, Joe Maniaci of Mondrian Properties, 50215 Schoenherr, Shelby 
Twp, was present.  Mr. Maniaci said the intent of the cluster development is to leave 
the natural open space and not impede into the wetlands or flood plain area.  He 
indicated there would be a small impact on one of the wetlands near the detention 
basin.  Mr. Maniaci said his engineer and the City’s Engineering Department 
extensively reviewed the site plan and the plan meets all City ordinance 
requirements.  He said development is feasible using either set of flood plain lines.  
He indicated the development would be easier using the Spalding DeDecker flood 
plain lines, and he is confident of the findings reported in their study.  Mr. Maniaci 
addressed the development process of site condominium development versus 
single family homes.   
 
Ms. Troshynski addressed the size of the homes on the smaller lots as proposed, 
and asked the petitioner if he had a “Plan B”.   
 
Mr. Maniaci replied they have not looked at options to reduce the number of units 
due to cost factors.  He said the lots are wider and the homes will appear larger 
than they really are because of the property depth.  Mr. Maniaci said the lots would 
have the same spatial relationship as the neighbors to the south.   
 
Mr. Miller addressed the 100 year flood plan impact on the proposed development, 
as relates to the FIRM flood plain lines and the Spalding DeDecker flood plain lines.  
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Joe McKeever of 840 Huntsford, Troy, was present.  Mr. McKeever addressed the 
density of the proposed development and storm water management in the area.  He 
asked Mondrian Properties to complete all construction phases, specifically sidewalks, 
of existing developments before beginning a new project.  Mr. McKeever said he 
would like to see future development of the southeast corner.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL AUGUST 14, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

Chair Schultz said the southeast corner is wetland and not buildable.  He informed Mr. 
McKeever to contact the Building Department about the sidewalk construction in the 
area. 
 
Bob Beauchamp of 880 Huntsford, Troy, was present.  Mr. Beauchamp addressed his 
concern for the health of the pine trees in the area with the placement of the drain to 
the south side of the property. 
 
Chair Schultz said the Engineering Department would address that concern.   
 
Jo Alice Pelletier of 800 Huntsford, Troy, was present.  Ms. Pelletier addressed the 
proposed development as relates to density, environmental impact and disruptions, 
and storm water management.  She also addressed the approval process of the City.  
 
Chair Schultz provided a brief explanation of the two-dimensional site plans that are 
reviewed by the Planning Commission, and multi-dimensional plans reviewed by other 
City departments.   
 
Edith Masana of 3830 Finch, Troy, was present.  Ms. Masana addressed the area’s 
environment, natural features and wildlife.  She asked what safety measures the 
developer would take for the protection of children near the creeks.  Ms. Masana also 
addressed the drainage system.   
 
Duane Devereaux 3812 Finch, Troy, was present.  Mr. Devereaux addressed the 
maintenance of the wetlands directly behind his house.  He maintains his property, but 
there has been no maintenance of the wetlands that abuts his property.   
 
Irene Pawlak of 3848 Finch, Troy, was present.  Ms. Pawlak shared a personal, 
negative experience she had with Spalding DeDecker.  She addressed the drainage in 
the area, and asked the City to take its time and review the situation before making a 
decision on the proposed development.   
 
Chair Schultz reviewed the procedure a petitioner must follow to seek MDEQ 
approval.   
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-08-132 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council, that the 
Preliminary Site Plan (Section 34.60.00 Open Space Preservation Option), as 
requested for Villas of Troy Site Condominium, including 11 units, located south of 
Wattles, west side of Finch, Section 21, within the R-1B zoning district, be granted, 
subject to the following conditions: 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL AUGUST 14, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

1.  Prior to Final Site Plan Approval, the flood plain boundary shall be approved 
by the MDEQ and FEMA. 

 
FURTHERMORE, That the following design recommendations are provided to City 
Management and to the property owners: 
 
1. That they will work with the neighboring properties to preserve the health of as 

many trees on the neighboring property when installing the drainage system.   
 
Yes: Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Vleck 
No: Hutson, Kerwin, Troshynski, Wright 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Mr. Wright said he is not convinced the Parallel Plan is feasible and that they can 
get 11 units on the property.   
 
Ms. Kerwin voiced concerns with the potential impact to neighboring properties as 
relates to density, environment and flooding.  She also addressed the engineering 
report on the matter.   
 
Mr. Hutson said he is not satisfied that the Parallel Plan is feasible. 
 
Ms. Troshynski voiced concern with the density of the proposed development.  She 
said the development was not well thought out as far as size and use of the 
property, and addressed the sale of homes without basements.   
 
A brief discussion followed on: 
• Action that could be taken by the petitioner. 
• Recommendation for denial to City Council. 
• Procedure to reconsider the motion. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-08--- 
Moved by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, Reconsideration of this issue.   
 
Motion FAILS due to a lack of a second. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL AUGUST 14, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Miller briefly addressed details of the August 22 and August 28, 2007 
Special/Study meetings.   
 
Mr. Strat regrettably said he would not be in attendance at the August 22nd meeting.   
 
Ms. Kerwin asked the Chair if he could share information on the study being 
conducted on the City’s permit approval process. 
 
Chair Schultz said his interview with Zucker Systems is scheduled tomorrow. 
 
Mr. Vleck thanked the Troy Parks and Recreation Department for a great job in 
accommodating the Troy Youth Football Association.   
 
Mr. Hutson addressed the prepared Resolutions by the Planning Department, as 
relates to general or more specific language for site plan approval.   
 
Chair Schultz reminded everyone of the Special meeting called on Wednesday, 
August 22 at 7:30 p.m. 
 
 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 9:14 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Final\08-14-07 Regular Meeting_Final.doc 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 21, 2007 

1 
 

The Chairman, Mark Maxwell, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order on Tuesday, August 21, 2007 at 7:30 P.M. in Council Chambers of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Glenn Clark 
   Kenneth Courtney 
   Marcia Gies 
   Matthew Kovacs 
   Mark Maxwell 
   Wayne Wright 
 
ABSENT:  Michael Bartnik 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Chris Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
Motion by Gies 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Bartnik from tonight’s meeting as he is out of town. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Clark, Courtney, Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. BARTNIK CARRIED 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF JULY 17, 2007 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of July 17, 2007 as written. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Courtney, Gies, Maxwell, Wright 
Abstain: 1 - Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.   PATRICK DYKE, REPRESENTING AZHAR ALI, 
2062 CHARNWOOD (PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new single-family residence with a 29’-9” building height where Section 30.10.01 (u) 
limits the building height of single-family residences in the R-1A Zoning District to 27’. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new single-family residence.  The plans submitted indicate a 29’-9” building height for 
the proposed residence when measured in accordance with Section 04.20.23.  Section 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 21, 2007 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
 30.10.01 (u) limits the building height of single-family residences in the R-1A Zoning 
District with properly installed attic draft stopping to not more than 27’. 
 
This item first appeared at the meeting of July 17, 2007 and was postponed to allow the 
petitioner the opportunity of a full Board. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that in going through the plans he did not see exactly how high the 
house was. 
 
Mr. Dyke stated that it was approximately 37 ½’ high at the highest point. 
 
Mr. Dyke was present and stated that the roof height is determined by the height of the 
entire roof at each point.  This is a hip roof and only a small portion of the roof will result 
in the 29’-9” height.  The majority of the home will be at a height of 36 ½’ to the peak. 
 
Mr. Maxwell explained that he had asked Mr. Stimac for a list of homes in the Troy area 
that were over 5,000 square feet.  Based about that list this home would be the second 
largest home and he believes would be a catalyst for change on other lots in this area 
that are the same size.   
 
Mr. Dyke stated that the practical difficulty is that they are not utilizing the maximum 
allowable coverage of the square footage of the lot.  This is a very large lot and the 
Ordinance allows 30% lot coverage.  This home will be at half of that percentage. The 
owners of the home plan to live here for at least twenty (20) years.  Roof pitches get 
taller and taller as the years go by.  Mr. Dyke went on to say that if a variance is not 
granted, they will “fire-suppress” the home and the roof height could go to 32’, which is 
allowed by the Ordinance.  The height is measured from the mid-point between the 
eaves and the peak.  In order for this home to comply, they would have to lower the 
ceiling height on the first floor to 9’ and would also lower the ceiling height on the 
second floor.   
 
Mr. Dyke feels that the Ordinance is not in keeping with the needs of people now.  
People want larger homes as the lots get bigger and Mr. Dyke thinks that the Zoning 
Ordinance should be changed to meet the needs of these people. Twenty years ago, 
people did not fathom building a home this large.  This house is 30’ deep and is not a 
very deep house. Mr. Dyke said that this Board has the authority to grant or deny this 
request and perhaps this request will bring about an investigation into the Ordinance 
and it will be changed.  In other communities where more variances are requested the 
Ordinance is re-visited and perhaps changed. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked for clarification on one of the pictures that Mr. Dyke had submitted 
to the Board.   
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 21, 2007 

3 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Dyke said that as a house gets bigger in width and taller in height, if there is not a 
large roof, it is not as aesthetically pleasing when viewing it from the street.  The Board 
does not consider aesthetics when making a decision, but as an Architect, this is one of 
the areas that Mr. Dyke places close attention to.  If the roofline is forced down, the look 
of the house would not be as aesthetically pleasing. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he could build the house 27’ high because he is adding extra 
draft stopping. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the Building Department is not in possession of the final drawings 
on the construction of the home, but is assuming that extra draft stopping would be 
added. 
 
Mr. Dyke stated that instead of going to 2,000 square feet for draft stopping they 
actually compartmentalized it further and has gone between 1,300 and 800 square feet 
for draft stopping. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if changing the width of the house would also change the roof height. 
 
Mr. Dyke stated that if they lower the roofline with the same roof pitch, they would have 
to drop off approximately 7’ and pull the house in. 
 
Mr. Wright stated that he thought this home would cost between $3 and $4 million 
dollars and does not see a hardship with adding a fire suppression system. 
 
Mr. Dyke stated that they do not have a hardship.  They have a practical difficulty.  If 
you look at the equation of 27’ to 32’ there is actually a 10’ differential. 
 
Mr. Wright stated that he would like to see the house built, but with a fire suppression 
system. 
 
Mr. Dyke said that in other communities they take in the entire height of the roof in 
determining the maximum allowable roof height. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he has to decide if this house will have a negative impact to 
surrounding property.  The setbacks are quite large. 
 
Mr. Dyke said that they have centered the house directly in the middle of the property so 
that it would not impose on surrounding property.  Mr. Dyke also believes that by 
allowing people to add fire suppression, they are opening the door for other people to 
build very large homes.  They are also going to build the house as low to the ground as 
possible. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 21, 2007 

4 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that just because people can build things allowed by the Ordinance, it 
does not mean that they are in the best interests to other people in the community.   
 
Mr. Clark stated that the house could be built 10’ taller than what is proposed, with a fire 
suppression system. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to speak and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written objection on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Clark said that he always tries to put himself in the house next to the property 
described in the petition and is trying to determine whether it would be better for the 
Board of Zoning Appeals to grant a variance and live next door to a larger home without 
fire suppression; or to have this home with a fire suppression system and have a taller 
home constructed next door.  Mr. Clark said in his opinion it was difficult to determine 
the practical difficulty. 
 
Mr. Dyke said that the reason for this is fire safety.  When this plan was presented, Mr. 
Dyke did contact the fire department.  If the Board believes the 2’-9” is going to make 
this house less safe the variance should not be granted.  On the other hand, if the 2’-9” 
height is not an issue than the variance should be granted. 
 
Mr. Clark asked why this home would need to have a fire suppression system. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that City Council and the Planning Commission are the governing 
bodies that adopt the regulation.  The 25’ height limit has been in the Ordinance for a 
great number of years and has served the City through its development phase.  In the 
late 90’s there were a number of requests for higher homes. These houses could 
potentially be as close as 20’ apart and access for fire fighting purposes would have to 
be done on that narrow strip of land.  The setbacks for this particular house are 
approximately 60’.  The Board would have to make the decision that this setback would 
be enough to offset the height of the house.  There are allowances in the Zoning 
Ordinance for additional roof height when setbacks are increased that apply to 
Churches and other non-residential buildings. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the house is 7,000 square feet and a 10’ ceiling on the main floor 
is not out of the ordinary.  Mr. Kovacs said that he would be very happy to either be able 
to construct a home like this one, or have one built next to him like this.  In his opinion 
the 2’-9” variance request is minimal. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Courtney 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 21, 2007 

5 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Patrick Dyke, representing Dr. Azhar Ali, 2062 Charnwood relief of the 
Ordinance to construct a new single-family residence with a 29’-9” building height where 
Section 30.10.01 (u) limits the building height of single-family residences in the R-1A 
Zoning District to 27’. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance request is minimal. 
• Variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use in a Zoning 

District. 
• Variance applies only to the property described in this application. 
• Literal enforcement of the Ordinance would be unnecessarily burdensome. 
• Minimum side setback of 54’ will be provided. 
• Roof draft stopping would be at a 1,200 square foot maximum. 

 
Mr. Maxwell said that he was quite sure that the surrounding neighbors would see an 
increase in their property values. 
 
Ms. Gies agreed with Mr. Maxwell and said that the value of the land would increase. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Clark, Courtney, Gies 
Nays:  1 – Wright 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MR. & MRS. DERRICK ROBINSON, 4472 
LANCASHIRE, for relief of the Ordinance to construct a patio enclosure on the rear of 
their home that has a proposed 21’ rear yard setback where Section 30.10.04 of the 
Ordinance requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback in R-1C Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a patio enclosure on the rear of their home.  The site plan submitted indicates an 
addition on the rear of the existing home with a proposed 21’ rear yard setback.  Section 
30.10.04 of the Ordinance requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback in R-1C Zoning 
Districts. 
 
Mr. Rob McMahon, representing the Robinsons was present.    Mr. McMahon stated 
that the hardship with this property is the pie-shaped lot and the location of the home.  If 
the home had been constructed slightly closer to the east property line it would have 
allowed enough room for this addition.  They want to use this room year round.   
 
Mr. Clark asked if this room could be moved farther east, which would locate it along the 
back of the house. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 21, 2007 

6 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. McMahon stated that right now it is coming out of the family room and kitchen.  He 
stated that they could move this room farther east but it would still require a variance, 
although he did think it would be smaller 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked what part of the house was near this proposed construction.   
 
Mr. Stimac stated that there was a door wall off of the family room and approximately 6’ 
from the corner of the house.  Mr. Stimac also stated that they could probably shift the 
addition a little more that 6’ to the east.  Based, on the drawings before him, Mr. Stimac 
stated it would be difficult to calculate what the rear setback would be.   
 
Mr. McMahon stated that if they did shift the room over 8’ and made the entrance 
through the kitchen, they would have a much larger space. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are three (3) written approvals on file.  There are two (2) written objections on file. 
 
Mr. McMahon said he did not think that the size of the room could be made smaller and 
still be efficient.   
 
Mr. Stimac stated that there was an existing patio off of the door at the rear of the house 
and asked if there was a desire to keep that patio there and put the addition to the east 
of the deck. 
 
Mr. McMahon said that the deck was in very rough shape and if the Board wanted him 
to move the room farther to the east, he believes that the deck would become a 
stamped concrete patio.  
 
Mr. Courtney asked which rooms were located at the east side of the house. 
 
Mr. McMahon stated that it was the kitchen, and if they plan to make the window a 
doorway into this room.  Mr. McMahon stated that he did not believe it would be a 
problem to move the room farther east, but he would have to confer with his clients. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that he would like to see what type of setback would be required if 
the room was moved farther east and perhaps the petitioner could come back with 
another plan.   Mr. Kovacs said that in his opinion this was a massive variance and he 
would like to see them come back with an alternative plan. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the room could be moved behind the garage. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 21, 2007 

7 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. McMahon stated that the intention is to enclose both of the existing rooms to allow 
access into the addition.  If you shift it all the way behind the garage you may be limiting 
access to this room.  
 
Mr. Courtney said that he thought the addition could be moved to the eastern edge of 
the garage and a lesser variance could be requested. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if the Board would like to see an alternate plan. 
 
Mr. Clark stated that he did not see a practical difficulty that would justify this variance 
and some of the neighbors have objections. 
 
Mr. McMahon stated that most of the neighbors approved of this request. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that they would like to look at a lesser variance. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that he would like to see the petitioner come back with a lesser 
variance request. 
 
Mr. McMahon stated that he thought the homeowner would be willing to look at moving 
the room farther east. 
 
Motion by Clark 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Mr. & Mrs. Derrick Robinson, 4472 Lancashire, for 
relief of the Ordinance to construct a patio enclosure on the rear of the home that has a 
proposed 21’ rear yard setback where Section 30.10.04 of the Ordinance requires a 40’ 
minimum rear yard setback in R-1C Zoning Districts until the meeting of September 18, 
2007. 
 

• To allow the petitioner to explore another alternative location that would require a 
lesser variance. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Clark, Courtney, Gies 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 18, 
2007 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MR. & MRS. RICK HOWARD, 2051 E. BIG 
BEAVER, for relief of the Ordinance to construct an addition to an existing day care 
center that will result in 23,250 square feet of outdoor play space, where Section 
10.30.03 of the Ordinance requires 28,250 square feet. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 21, 2007 

8 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
an addition to an existing day care center.  Section 10.30.03 of the Troy Zoning 
Ordinance requires that a minimum of 150 square feet of outdoor play area be provided 
for each child cared for at the center.  Petitioner is proposing a 190-child capacity.  A 
minimum of 28,500 square feet of outdoor play space is required.  The site plan 
submitted indicates that only 23,250 square feet of outdoor play space is proposed. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked how many children would be using the outdoor play area. 
 
Mr. Howard was present and said that right now they have eight (8) classrooms and the 
maximum number of children at any one time is only three (3) classrooms.  This usually 
means that there are fifty-(50) children outside at any one time.  This present  
variance is less than what they had asked for in 2003.  Mr. Howard really does not think 
this is a problem.  This is not a residential home and Mr. Howard stated that in his 
opinion the Ordinance is loosely written.  The City requires 500 square feet per child 
and the State only requires 150 per child.  Many of the children are in cribs and do not 
use this outdoor area at all.  There is also a gym located inside the building and 
therefore the outdoor space is not utilized. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that in his opinion the petitioner is working in good faith and he 
believes this to be a very reasonable request. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Mr. & Mrs. Rick Howard, 2051 E. Big Beaver, relief of the Ordinance 
to construct an addition to an existing day care center that will result in 23,250 square 
feet of outdoor play space, where Section 10.30.03 of the Ordinance requires 28, 250 
square feet. 
 

• Not more than 155 children will be over of 2 ½ years of age. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance applies only to the property described in this application. 
• Literal enforcement of the Ordinance would be unnecessarily burdensome. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Maxwell, Wright, Clark, Courtney, Gies, Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 21, 2007 

9 
 

ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  GARY ABITHEIRA, 193 FORTHTON (EXISTING 
ADDRESS), 195 & 207 (PROPOSED ADDRESSES), for relief of the Ordinance to 
demolish an existing single-family home and divide the property into two (2) parcels that 
would result in lot widths of 56.05’ and 56.06’ where Section 30.10.06 requires a 60’ 
minimum lot width for single-family homes. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to demolish 
an existing single-family home at 193 Forthton and divide the property into two (2) 
parcels for two future home sites.  The site plan submitted indicates that the proposed 
parcels would be only 56.05’ and 56.06’ in width.  Section 30.10.06 of the Troy Zoning 
Ordinance requires a 60’ minimum lot width for single-family homes constructed in the 
R-2 (Two-Family Residential) Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked how large the lots in this subdivision were. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that this area was a combination of number of older subdivisions that 
were pieced together and 99% of the other lots do comply with the requirements 
regarding lot width.  The lots to the west of this property are a result of a replat and they 
are all 60’ wide lots.  Parcels to the east were originally 125’ wide and then split into two 
separate lots. 
 
Mr. Abitheira was present and stated that he had purchased this property with the 
intention of removing the existing home and putting up a duplex.  After looking at the 
neighborhood he felt that two single-family homes would be a better fit in this area.  
There will be two families with two homes rather than renters. Two homes would be 
more neighborhood friendly and would create a better value to the neighborhood.  Mr. 
Abitheira also feels that private ownership creates more pride in a parcel.  These homes 
will meet all other setbacks, and will create 10’ more in open space. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked what the side setbacks would be. 
 
Mr. Abitheira stated that they would 9’ and 6’ for a total of 15’ as required by the 
Ordinance.  
 
Mr. Courtney asked how large the side setbacks would be with a duplex. 
 
Mr. Abitheira stated that he would put in 10’ on each side for a total of 20’. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There is one (1) written objection on file. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the numbers given were correct for the side yard setbacks. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 21, 2007 

10 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that a minimum 5’ side yard setback and a total of 15’ are required 
for a single family home in the R-2 (Two-Family Zoning District). 
 
Mr. Stimac also stated that a duplex would have to be 92’ wide in order to be at the 
minimum 20’ side yard setbacks. 
 
Mr. Abitheira stated that is what he planned on building, as the duplex would have a 
three car attached garage. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that since all other setbacks would be met, he did not have a problem 
with this request. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he would rather see a duplex than split the lot and make it 
smaller than the other lots in the area. 
 
Mr. Abitheira stated that he thinks the neighbors would rather see single-family homes 
rather than a rental property. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Clark 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Gary Abitheira, 193 Forthton (existing address), 195 & 
207 (proposed addresses), for relief of the Ordinance to demolish an existing single-
family home and divide the property into two (2) single-family residential parcels that 
would result in lot widths of 56.06’ and 56.06’ where Section 30.10.06 requires a 60’ 
minimum lot width for single-family homes. 
 

• Petitioner did not demonstrate a practical difficulty. 
• Property could be built on and comply with the requirements of the Ordinance. 

 
Mr. Maxwell stated that he believes new homes would be much better for the City rather 
than a duplex and the new construction will maintain all setbacks. 
 
Mr. Abitheira stated that the neighbors on either side of this parcel told him that they 
would rather see two homes than a duplex. 
 
Mr. Clark asked what kind of homes Mr. Abitheira planned to construct. 
 
Mr. Abitheira stated that they would be 4 bedroom, 2 ½ bath Colonials, approximately 
2,000 or 2,200 square feet.  This is what people want to buy. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if Mr. Abitheira bought this property with the intention of 
constructing a duplex on it. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 21, 2007 

11 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Abitheira stated that he purchased this property at a foreclosure and did originally 
plan to put up a duplex. The more he looked at it and put himself in the neighbors’ 
shoes, he decided that the neighbors would like two homes. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if he had any other property in the area. 
 
Mr. Abitheira stated that he had built a duplex 20 years ago, approximately 4 streets 
away. 
 
Vote on Mr. Courtney’s motion to deny. 
 
Yeas:  1 – Courtney 
Nays:  5 – Wright, Clark, Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell 
 
MOTION TO DENY FAILS 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Gary Abitheira, 193 Forthton (existing address), 195 & 207 (proposed 
addresses), relief of the Ordinance to demolish an existing single-family home and 
divide the property into two (2) single-family residential parcels that would result in lot 
widths of 56.06’ and 56.06’ where Section 30.10.06 requires a 60’ minimum lot width for 
single-family homes. 
 

• No other variances would be allowed on this parcel. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use in a Zoning 

District. 
• Homes will comply with all other setback requirements. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Clark, Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright 
Nays:  1 – Courtney 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  HAVEL HOME IMPROVEMENT, REPRESENTING 
MR. & MRS. STEVE CARRYER, 2777 ORCHARD TRAIL, for relief of the Ordinance to 
construct an addition to an attached garage that will result in a 27’-2” front yard setback 
to the northeast corner of the expanded garage, where Section 30.10.01 of the 
Ordinance requires a 40’ minimum front setback in the R-1A Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
an addition to an attached garage.  The site plan submitted indicates that the proposed  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 21, 2007 

12 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
addition would have a 27’-2” front yard setback to the northeast corner of the expanded 
garage.  Section 30.10.01 requires a 40’ minimum front setback in the R-1A Zoning 
District. 
 
Mr. John Havel of Havel Construction was present and stated that the practical difficulty 
is that this home is located on a cul-de-sac and without a variance 40% of the property 
is not usable.  The owner is handicapped and needs a wheel chair.  Due to the size of 
the van that has an automatic lift, there is not enough space in the garage.  The extra 
10’ feet would enable the lift to come out the side and lower the wheel chair. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if the driveway would also be changed. 
 
Mr. Havel indicated that they would be moving the driveway over to accommodate this 
addition. 
 
Mr. Clark asked if the present garage was a two-car garage. 
 
Mr. Havel stated that it was, however they would not be able to use the other side of the 
garage when this van was in the garage. 
 
Mr. Clark suggested not parking the second car in the garage, as he believes this is 
quite a large request. 
 
Mr. Wright stated that he could certainly understand the problems the property owner is 
facing especially with a side entrance van.  Mr. Wright suggested that they look into the 
possibility of a van with a rear entrance. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that in his opinion this was a very small variance request and asked if 
they could add to the back of the garage rather than the side and change the garage 
from a side entrance garage to a front entrance garage. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that if they added on the front of the garage they would still require a 
variance, but if they added to the back of the garage a variance would not be required. 
 
Mr. Havel stated that they could not add to the back of the garage as the door wall is 
next to the garage.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written approval on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 21, 2007 

13 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Havel Home Improvement, representing Mr.  & Mrs. Steve Carryer, 
2777 Orchard Trail, relief of the Ordinance to construct an addition to an attached 
garage that will result in a 27’-2” front yard setback to the northeast corner of the 
expanded garage, where Section 30.10.01 of the Ordinance requires a 40’ minimum 
front setback in the R-1A Zoning District. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance request is minimal over the previous variance granted in 1970. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• The unusual shape of the lot makes literal enforcement of the Ordinance 

unnecessarily burdensome. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Clark, Courtney, Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  PAUL T. BARNES, 5587 WHITEHAVEN, for relief 
of the Ordinance to construct a three-season room enclosure that will result in a 
proposed 42’-5” rear yard setback where Section 30.10.02 requires a 45’ minimum rear 
yard setback in R-1B Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a three-season room enclosure that will result in a 42’-5” rear yard setback.  Section 
30.10.02 of the Ordinance requires a 45’ minimum rear setback in R-1B Zoning 
Districts. 
 
Mr. Barnes was present and stated that he needs to replace the existing deck and he 
would like to add a three-season room.  Mr. Barnes said that he would like to minimize 
the cost of construction by using the existing foundations of the upper deck and by 
keeping the roof lines the same.  This is the only location a room could be added.  If 
they try to make the room smaller it would become long and narrow and would be 
impractical.  Mr. Barnes said that he had spoken to his neighbors and they do not have 
an objection to this addition.  
 
Mr. Courtney asked if he was planning to use a foundation. 
 
Mr. Barnes said that there would be a crawl space underneath the room.  An additional 
foundation would not be added. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are five (5) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 21, 2007 

14 
 

 
ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Clark 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Paul Barnes, 5587 Whitehaven, relief of the Ordinance to construct a 
three-season room enclosure on the rear of an existing home that will result in a 42’-5” 
rear yard setback where Section 30.10.02 requires a 45’ minimum rear yard setback in 
R-1B Zoning Districts. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance request is minimal. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Clark, Courtney 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:13 P.M. 
 
 
 
              
       Mark Maxwell, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   August 22, 2007  
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC)  was held on August 22, 2007 at 7:00 PM at 
Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver.  Maxine D’Amico and Rishi Joshi called the meeting to 
order at 7:04 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Maxine D’Amico (Co-chair) 

Rishi Joshi (Co-chair) 
Geon Woo Kim 
Joseph Niemiec  
Anupama Prasad (Secretary) 
Kristin Randall  
Shaina Sekhri 
Katie Thoenes  
David Wylie 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Disha Bora, Jessica Kraft, Neil Shaw, Nicole Vitale 
VISITORS: Sandy Macknis and Jeff Stewart (Troy Daze) 
STAFF PRESENT:  John Hug, Fitness/Gym Coordinator 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 

 Resolution # TY-2007-8-12 
  Moved by   Niemiec 
  Seconded by  Randall 

   
  RESOLVED, That the minutes of May 23, 2007 be approved. 

  Yes:  All – 9 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  4 – Bora, Kraft, Shaw, Vitale   
 
3.   Attendance Report:  

Report reviewed by council members, no comments.   
 

4.   Visitor:   Troy Daze Committee Members (Sandy Macknis and Jeff Stewart) 
Sandy Macknis  and Jeff Stewart updated Council on status of Troy Daze. 
-Over 287 volunteer positions filled. 
-Areas such as parking, Magic Cauldron, Entertainment tent and Ethni-City still 
need a few volunteers.  

  -Discount parking passes are available at the Community Center for $6. 
  -The Troy Daze Parade is back on schedule for 2007. 

 
 
5. Troy Daze Festival Update  – None 

 
 

6. Teen Room Naming Competition  
TYC reviewed flyer created by Jessica Kraft in 2006.  Discussed prize ideas 
for the competition including: gift certificates and i-tunes cards. 

 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   August 22, 2007  
 

 2

 
7. Special Events and Projects for 2007-08  

The Council discussed possible events and projects.  Further discussion to 
take place at September meeting. 
   

 
8. Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provide d Advance Notification  
  Resolution # TY-2007-8-13 

  Moved by  Thoenes 
  Seconded by  Niemiec  

  
RESOLVED that Bora, Kraft, Shaw are excused. 

  Yes:  All - 9   
            No:       0  
  Absent:  4 – Bora, Kraft, Shaw, Vitale   
  
9. Youth Council Comments  

    
 

10. Public Comments  –      
Sandy Macknis suggested providing Kleenex to youngsters in Detroit as a 
possible project. 

 
11. Adjournment – 7:28 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Maxine D’Amico, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 

 
Reminder Next Meeting: September 26 at 7:00 P.M.  



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES SEPTEMBER 4, 2007  
 

TROY ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD 
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 4, 2007 

TROY CITY HALL - CONFERENCE ROOM C 
 
I. Call to Order 7:05 p.m. 
 
II. Roll Call: 
 

Present:  
Michelle Haight 
Kelly Jones 
Mayada Fakhouri 
Cindy Stewart, City Liaison 
Tony Haddad 
Gladson Remos 
Lulu Guo, student rep 
Helen Yang, student rep 
 
Absent 
Reuben Ellis 
Grigore Buia  
Anju Brodbine 
 
Guests: 
Karen Yelder 
Cathy Francois 
Sushma Shrestha 
 
 

III. Approval of Minutes – August 14, 2007 
Motion by Gladson Remos to approve the August 14, 2007 minutes, seconded 
by Kelly Jones.   Approved unanimously  

 
 

IV. Correspondence / Articles – None  
 

V. New Business  
a. School Update 
Michelle Haight invited by Tim McAvoy to present information on the EIA Board 
to all the Troy School District’s new teachers (35).  She gave handouts regarding 
EIA Board, Resource Guide, and Troy cultural newsletter.  Information was very 
well received.  Members fell it is disappointing that the new teachers group is not 
diverse.   
 
b. Grant Info – tabled to October meeting.   

Grant opportunities information to be sent to Board.  Please read and 
bring to October meeting.   
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01m



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES SEPTEMBER 4, 2007  
 
 
VI. Old Business 

a. EthniCity – Troy Daze 
The tent is full with 15 organizations, kid’s activities and the poster contest.  The 
vendor meeting is scheduled for Thursday, September 6 at 7 pm at the 
Community Center.   
 
Posters are coming for the Poster contest. Judging is Tuesday, September 11 at 
the Community Center.  Michelle will coordinate pick up of posters at library, 
Community Center and Elementary Schools.  Tour judges confirmed (art teacher 
and music teachers).   
   
American flags to pass out to children and activities for children along with 
musical instruments.  Michelle will bring the CD player.   

 
Michelle has artifacts from Asia and Africa.  Kelly has artifacts from Russia and 
Mexico.  Cathy has items from India.  Tony has a tea maker from Iraq.   

 
      b. Recommendations for new Board Members  

City Attorney’s office recommends removal of wording of Ethnic Group 
representing.  City cannot ask this question of employees and wants to stay 
consistent with volunteers.   
 
Michelle made a motion to approve the application for Ethnic Issues Advisory 
Board prospective members with recommendations from the City Attorney’s 
office.  Seconded by Tony Haddad.  Approved unanimously.   
 
c. Resources 
Michelle has a textbook from her dad “Strangers to These Stories – Race and 
Ethnic Relations in the United States,” by Vincent Carrillo.  Board members can 
borrow it.  Tony Haddad will borrow until October meeting.  

 
VII. Staff Report 
 

Christina Broomfield will appoint Karen Yelder at the September 10 Council 
meeting.  Karen will go to the meeting to be introduced to Council.   

 
VIII. Member Comments 
 

Discussion held regarding how to facilitate hiring of more teachers of diverse 
backgrounds.  After Troy Daze, perhaps the Board can research how other 
communities and municipalities hire diverse populations.   

 
Michelle brought forward that the Cultural Committee Group at Barnard 
Elementary is going to match school families as mentors to new families from 
similar countries.  They sent letters home at the end of school year 2006-07 and 
received 15 letters from families who would be willing to be mentors and the 
languages they speak.   

 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES SEPTEMBER 4, 2007  
 
 

It would be great to have families helping families.  Information could be 
disseminated in school newsletters.   

 
Might be a good idea to get others regardless of background who would 
volunteer to mentor any new family.  They don’t have to be from the same ethnic 
background as the new family.   

 
  
           Bridging the Racial Divide – no news on fall date.   
 
 
October EIA Meeting 
 
Teona Mackelvene Institute for the Healing of Racism of South Eastern Michigan is 
scheduled.   
 
Cindy will email EIA Board recent mission and goals.   
 
What can the Board do to facilitate more understanding of ethnic groups among high 
school students?  Cathy and Karen have observed students hanging around in their 
separate ethnic groups.  Michelle will facilitate meeting with EIA Board members and 
Athens Principal and Assistant Principals to see what they can do to help.   
 
Michelle will set up a meeting mid-October.   
 
 
 
IX. Adjournment  

 
 Motion to adjourn by Mayada Fakhouri. Seconded by Gladson Remos.  
 Meeting adjourned at 8:25 pm.     

 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
Michelle Haight, EIA Chair 

 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, EIA Recording Secretary 



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

September 10, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 

 
Department Reports:  

J-2 No Department Reports Submitted  

campbellld
Text Box
J-02



campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-03c



campbellld
Text Box
J-03d





campbellld
Text Box
J-03e



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

September 10, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 

 
Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other 
Organizations:  

J-4 No Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from 
Other Organizations  

campbellld
Text Box
J-04



campbellld
Text Box
J-05







 

 

 
 
 
To: The Mayor & City Council 
From: Phil Nelson       
Subject: Possible Trends 
Date: August 31, 2007 
 
Background: 
 

 Over the past year, several presentations have been made to the Council 
concerning policy considerations that could assist in preparing the City of 
Troy for what seems to be a fairly uncertain future. 

 The Council has approved initiation of documents that are intended to set 
a pattern for preparation for the future.  These documents include: a 
revamp of the outdated comprehensive master plan; an update of the Park 
and Recreation Plan that will be an element of the updated master plan; 
an update of the zoning ordinance; and, while not officially adopted, the 
Council did consider the Troy Futures Report to be used as a planning tool 
for the future.   

 The Council has adopted an operating and capital budget for 2007/2008 
that is intended to address some of the many policy challenges of a 
community that undoubtedly faces many future changes.  Those changes 
include the facts that: Troy is landlocked and must look for redevelopment 
projects as the primary way to maintain or increase property values; the 
demography for the entire southeast region of the state will change to an 
elderly dominated population; young people are leaving the state in 
significant numbers; the region’s economy is changing from a 
manufacturing base to a knowledge base, and other pertinent factors that 
make the need to prepare for and accept change imminent. 

 At the last Council meeting, Councilmember Howrylak introduced a motion 
to instruct the Charter Revision Committee to develop a ballot question to 
change  the City’s Charter to freeze property tax levies at 2007/2008 
levels.  While no definitive direction was given, staff is assuming that the 
councilman’s intent was to limit the only two funds that fall under Charter 
control, the General Fund and the Capital Construction Fund. 

 Staff has started preliminary study of the potential impacts of such a 
change, the results of which will be addressed in this memo.   

 
 

campbellld
Text Box
K-01



 

 

Budget Considerations: 
 

 The proposed resolution does not consider the impact of inflation and 
other factors on the budget as well.  Again, according to American City 
and County Magazine, the Municipal cost index has increased 3.6% over 
the last year meaning that the budget’s buying power has decreased 
commensurately. 

 Staff has prepared charts that show some of the prospective impacts of 
the proposed Charter change.  The tables are based on maintaining 
service levels at today’s standards using basic assumptions in developing 
the data. 

 Table 1 assumes that property valuation levels will stay fairly constant 
over the next 6 years, and that the State will not continue to arbitrarily 
reduce shared revenues.  The chart also assumes that franchise fees 
collected from the various utilities stay constant (even though the state 
legislature’s actions could arbitrarily reduce franchise fee revenue). 

 On the expenditure side, staff has assumed a constant 3% increase in 
expenditures to account for increases in the Municipal Cost Index and the 
Construction Cost Index. 

 The chart shows that more and more reserve funds would have to be used 
to balance the General Fund budget.  This would be the case through 
2010/2011 when cash reserves would sharply dip below the Council’s goal 
of 10-to-17 % of budgeted expenditures.  In fact, even though revenues 
would stay constant with expenditures in 2009/2010, just over $3 million 
dollars would have to be cut from the budget to maintain the minimum 
10% cash reserve policy balance.  The following year, $7.5 million would 
have to be cut from the budget in order to meet minimum cash balance 
policy totals.  The chart indicates that budget cuts would be required in 
each of the next three years to stay within legal limits and to meet the 
Council’s cash reserve policies.   

 In essence, once cash reserves are exhausted, almost $42 million dollars 
would have to be cut from the General Fund over a six year period.  Logic 
would say that cuts would be made sooner, but the end result would still 
be the same, i.e., that service delivery and protection functions in all 
departments would be have to be cut significantly. 

 

Table 2 
 

 Chart 2 is probably more realistic in that it assumes a continued trend 
toward reduced property values over the next 6 years; more state cuts in 
shared revenue, reduced interest income from reduced revenues, and 
more General Fund Reserves being used to finance expenditures. 

 The chart also assumes that expenditure totals stay constant with 
2007/2008 totals through the 2008/2009 fiscal year. 

 The chart shows significant cuts to all departments in the General Fund.  
The cuts are equal to the total percentage of appropriations that each of 
the funds has with the total fund expenditures.  Cuts were made to  



 

 

maintain the Council’s cash reserve policy.  Total reserve percentage for 
2013/2014 is 11.4% which means that the 2014/2015 budget will have to 
show even more significant cuts to stay above the Council reserve totals. 
 

Table 1-Possible Budget Implications from Proposed Mill Rate Freeze 

2006/2007

Description Budget 2007/2008 2008/2009 2009/2010 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014

General Fund Revenues

Taxes 35,473,690$       36,308,690$   36,308,690$   36,308,690$   36,308,690$   36,308,690$   36,308,690$   36,308,690$   

Business Licenses & Permits 40,000$              42,000$          43,050$          44,126$          45,229$          46,360$          47,519$          48,707$          

Non-Bus. Licenses & Permits 2,019,000$         1,705,500$     1,748,138$     1,791,841$     1,836,637$     1,882,553$     1,929,617$     1,977,857$     

Federal Grants 34,500$              55,900$          57,298$          58,730$          60,198$          61,703$          63,246$          64,827$          

State Agencies 6,765,000$         6,784,000$     6,946,816$     7,106,593$     7,262,938$     7,415,460$     7,571,184$     7,730,179$     

Contributions- Local 140,000$            180,000$        184,500$        189,113$        193,840$        198,686$        203,653$        208,745$        

Charges for Services-Fees 1,271,500$         1,159,000$     1,187,975$     1,217,674$     1,248,116$     1,279,319$     1,311,302$     1,344,085$     

Charges for Services-Rend. 1,642,100$         1,717,500$     1,760,438$     1,804,448$     1,849,560$     1,895,799$     1,943,194$     1,991,773$     

Charges for Services-Sales 151,500$            157,000$        160,925$        164,948$        169,072$        173,299$        177,631$        182,072$        

Charges for Services-Rec 3,410,200$         3,565,200$     3,654,330$     3,745,688$     3,839,330$     3,935,314$     4,033,697$     4,134,539$     

Fines & Forfeits 1,012,000$         1,027,000$     1,052,675$     1,078,992$     1,105,967$     1,133,616$     1,161,956$     1,191,005$     

Interest and Rents 1,443,300$         2,081,600$     2,081,600$     2,081,600$     2,081,600$     2,081,600$     2,081,600$     2,081,600$     

Other Revenue 491,900$            510,550$        523,314$        536,397$        549,807$        563,552$        577,640$        592,081$        

Other Financing Sources 11,092,120$       4,951,200$     5,074,980$     5,201,855$     5,331,901$     5,465,198$     5,601,828$     5,741,874$     

Transfers from General Fund Cash Reserves 3,210,280$     4,574,356$     2,983,197$     

Total General Fund Revenue 64,986,810$       63,455,420$   65,359,083$   64,313,892$   61,882,885$   62,441,148$   63,012,758$   63,598,035$   

Expenditures

Legislative 2,041,140$         2,033,040$     2,094,031$     2,156,852$     2,221,558$     2,288,204$     2,356,851$     2,427,556$     

Finance 4,869,370$         5,054,990$     5,206,640$     5,362,839$     5,523,724$     5,689,436$     5,860,119$     6,035,922$     

Other Gen Government 2,807,150$         2,701,000$     2,782,030$     2,865,491$     2,951,456$     3,039,999$     3,131,199$     3,225,135$     

Police 23,174,400$       24,060,260$   24,782,068$   25,525,530$   26,291,296$   27,080,035$   27,892,436$   28,729,209$   

Fire 4,212,260$         4,317,390$     4,446,912$     4,580,319$     4,717,729$     4,859,260$     5,005,038$     5,155,189$     

Building Inspection 2,169,250$         2,243,190$     2,310,486$     2,379,800$     2,451,194$     2,524,730$     2,600,472$     2,678,486$     

Streets 5,359,530$         5,606,460$     5,774,654$     5,947,893$     6,126,330$     6,310,120$     6,499,424$     6,694,406$     

Engineering 3,096,890$         3,136,960$     3,231,069$     3,328,001$     3,427,841$     3,530,676$     3,636,596$     3,745,694$     

Recreation 8,744,820$         9,225,600$     9,502,368$     9,787,439$     10,081,062$   10,383,494$   10,694,999$   11,015,849$   

Library 5,002,000$         5,066,530$     5,218,526$     5,375,082$     5,536,334$     5,702,424$     5,873,497$     6,049,702$     

Transfers Out 3,510,000$         10,000$          10,300$          10,609$          10,927$          11,255$          11,593$          11,941$          

Total General Fund Expenditures 64,986,810$       63,455,420$   65,359,083$   67,319,855$   69,339,451$   71,419,634$   73,562,223$   75,769,090$   

Undesignated General Fund Cash Balance 14,312,304$   9,737,948$     6,754,751$     6,754,751$     7,141,963$     7,356,222$     7,576,909$     

Percentage GF Reserves to GF Budget 23% 15% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10%

Cuts Needed to Maintain Budget Policy 3,005,963$     7,456,566$     9,365,698$     10,763,724$   12,391,742$   

 
 As is indicated on the chart, using the Police Department as an example, 

budget totals remain the same for two consecutive years, and then 
decrease by about 5% in 2009/2010.   

 It should be noted that even though totals remain the same for two years, 
the department’s buying power would be decreased by the municipal price 
index of 3.5% per year.  Since the vast majority of expenditures for the 



 

 

department fall in the personnel services funding category, it is not 
inconceivable that personnel cutbacks would be a part of staying within 
the budget. 

 Over the 6 year period, cash reserves decrease from $14.3 million to 
approximately $6.7 million 

 
Table 2—Possible Budget Implications from Proposed Mill Rate Freeze 

2006/2007

Description Budget 2007/2008 2008/2009 2009/2010 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014

General Fund Revenues

Taxes 35,473,690$       36,308,690$   35,582,516$   35,226,691$   34,874,424$   34,525,680$   34,180,423$   33,838,619$ 

Business Licenses & Permits 40,000$              42,000$          43,050$          44,126$          45,229$          46,360$          47,519$          47,519$        

Non-Bus. Licenses & Permits 2,019,000$         1,705,500$     1,748,138$     1,791,841$     1,836,637$     1,882,553$     1,929,617$     1,929,617$   

Federal Grants 34,500$              55,900$          57,298$          58,730$          60,198$          61,703$          63,246$          63,246$        

State Agencies 6,765,000$         6,784,000$     6,716,160$     6,648,998$     6,582,508$     6,516,683$     6,451,516$     6,387,001$   

Contributions- Local 140,000$            180,000$        184,500$        189,113$        193,840$        198,686$        203,653$        203,653$      

Charges for Services-Fees 1,271,500$         1,159,000$     1,187,975$     1,217,674$     1,248,116$     1,279,319$     1,311,302$     1,311,302$   

Charges for Services-Rend. 1,642,100$         1,717,500$     1,760,438$     1,804,448$     1,849,560$     1,895,799$     1,943,194$     1,943,194$   

Charges for Services-Sales 151,500$            157,000$        160,925$        164,948$        169,072$        173,299$        177,631$        177,631$      

Charges for Services-Rec 3,410,200$         3,565,200$     3,600,852$     3,636,861$     3,673,229$     3,709,961$     3,747,061$     3,784,532$   

Fines & Forfeits 1,012,000$         1,027,000$     1,052,675$     1,078,992$     1,105,967$     1,133,616$     1,161,956$     1,161,956$   

Interest and Rents 1,443,300$         2,081,600$     2,039,968$     1,999,169$     1,959,185$     1,920,002$     1,881,602$     1,843,970$   

Other Revenue 491,900$            510,550$        523,314$        536,397$        549,807$        563,552$        577,640$        577,640$      

Other Financing Sources 11,092,120$       4,951,200$     5,074,980$     5,201,855$     5,331,901$     5,465,198$     5,601,828$     5,601,828$   

Transfers from General Fund Cash Reserves 3,210,280$     3,722,933$     3,855,878$     

Total General Fund Revenue 64,986,810$       63,455,420$   63,455,720$   63,455,720$   59,479,674$   59,372,411$   59,278,189$   58,871,708$ 

2006/2007

Budget 2007/2008 2008/2009 2009/2010 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014

Expenditures

Legislative 2,041,140$         2,033,040$     2,033,040$     2,033,040$     1,934,722$     1,836,525$     1,836,525$     1,823,502$   

Finance 4,869,370$         5,054,990$     5,054,990$     5,054,990$     4,810,150$     4,715,310$     4,715,310$     4,682,932$   

Other Gen Government 2,807,150$         2,701,000$     2,701,000$     2,701,000$     2,569,637$     2,438,306$     2,406,496$     2,389,199$   

Police 23,174,400$       24,060,260$   24,060,260$   23,009,410$   22,107,787$   22,962,855$   23,090,217$   22,935,968$ 

Fire 4,212,260$         4,317,390$     4,317,390$     4,217,390$     4,002,803$     4,049,803$     4,049,803$     4,022,184$   

Building Inspection 2,169,250$         2,243,190$     2,243,190$     2,243,190$     2,131,431$     2,019,672$     1,993,287$     1,978,940$   

Streets 5,359,530$         5,606,460$     5,606,460$     5,606,460$     5,326,630$     5,246,800$     5,180,861$     5,145,006$   

Engineering 3,096,890$         3,136,960$     3,136,960$     3,136,960$     2,985,256$     2,833,552$     2,796,597$     2,776,502$   

Recreation 8,744,820$         9,225,600$     9,225,600$     9,225,600$     8,779,447$     8,533,294$     8,533,294$     8,474,197$   

Library 5,002,000$         5,066,530$     5,066,530$     5,066,530$     4,821,511$     4,726,492$     4,666,806$     4,634,351$   

Transfers Out 3,510,000$         10,000$          10,300$          10,300$          10,300$          9,802$            8,993$            8,927$          

Total General Fund Expenditures 64,986,810$       63,455,420$   63,455,720$   62,304,870$   59,479,674$   59,372,411$   59,278,189$   58,871,708$ 

Undesignated General Fund Cash Balance 14,312,304$   10,589,371$   6,733,493$     6,733,493$     6,733,493$     6,733,493$     6,733,493$   

Percentage GF Reserves to GF Budget 22.6% 16.7% 10.8% 11.3% 11.3% 11.4% 11.4%

 
 



 

 

Capital Construction Fund: 
 
The other part of the property tax mill levy freeze would involve the Capital 
Construction Fund.  This account is funded by a 1.6 mill property tax levy, state 
and federal grants, contributions from the county road fund, charges for service, 
primarily through the sidewalk replacement fund, drug forfeiture funds, interest on 
idle funds, and operating transfers from the Major Street and Special 
Assessment fund, and from re-appropriation of fund balance of the fund. 
 
Again, tables were prepared showing potential impacts on the Capital 
Construction Fund should the property tax mill levy be ratified. 
 
Table 3 
 

 Property tax revenues start to decrease based on declining property 
values 

 Already approved federal grants increase from the 2009 through the 
remainder of the study period. 

 Operating transfers in continue at stable trends even though shared 
revenue funds are showing signs of declining. 

 On the expenditure side, staff put a higher priority on construction of hike 
and bike trails since that was the highest priority listed in the approved 
Park and Open Space Plan adopted by the council. 

 The majority of the funding over the next six years goes for road 
reconstruction.  Even at $73.8 million, the amount is insufficient to keep 
road conditions at satisfactory levels. 

 Departmental capital outlay is indicated at about 56% of past yearly totals 
 
Table 4 
 

 Chart 4 is probably more realistic in the property tax revenue totals as it 
reflects less funding as a result of reduced property values. 

 Already approved federal grants increase from the 2009 through the 
remainder of the study period.  

 Operating transfers in continue at stable trends even through shared 
revenue funds are showing signs of declining 

 On the expenditure side, total funds decrease by about $7 million from 
Chart 3.  Projected expenditures for streets are reduced by approximately 
$3 million dollars and funding for park development is decreased by 
approximately $2.4 million. 

 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

 It is virtually impossible that the Charter Revision Committee can meet to 
formulate language, and that the language can be approved by the  

 



 

 

Table 3 
Possible Impact of Mill Rate Freeze on Capital Construction Fund 

 

2006/2007 2007/2008 2008/2009 2009/2010 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014 Totals

Revenues

Taxes 8,291,000     8,440,000     8,271,200     8,188,488     8,106,603     8,025,537     7,945,282     7,865,829     48,402,939       

Federal Grants 305,000        2,200,000     2,650,000     2,590,000     759,800        759,800        8,959,600         

State Grants 1,409,000     4,219,000     459,000        459,000            

Contributions-Local 245,000        -                    

Charges for Service 150,000        75,000          75,000          75,000          75,000          75,000          75,000          75,000          450,000            

Fines and Forefeitures 246,180        -                    

Interest and Rents 607,200        807,200        650,000        650,000        650,000        650,000        650,000        650,000        3,900,000         

Other Revenue 335,260        150,000        150,000        150,000        150,000        150,000        150,000        900,000            

Operating Transfer In 14,907,000   15,709,560   12,000,000   11,500,000   11,615,000   11,731,150   11,848,462   11,966,946   70,661,558       

-                    

Total Revenues 26,004,460   29,741,940   21,605,200   22,763,488   23,246,603   23,221,687   21,428,543   21,467,575   133,733,096     

2006/2007 2007/2008 2008/2009 2009/2010 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014 Cumulative Annual

Expenditures Totals Average

Departmental Capital Outlay 10,980,330   6,216,010     2,531,200     3,443,488     3,771,603     4,116,687     4,074,543     3,132,575     21,070,096       3,511,683          

City Hall Improvements 2,078,000     4,288,000     750,000        1,000,000     500,000        250,000        250,000        250,000        3,000,000         500,000              

Major Roads 6,415,700     10,150,000   9,959,000     10,000,000   10,500,000   10,350,000   8,519,000     9,500,000     58,828,000       9,804,667          

Local Roads 2,061,630     2,500,000     2,500,000     2,500,000     2,500,000     2,500,000     2,500,000     2,500,000     15,000,000       2,500,000          

Sidewalks 600,000        600,000        600,000        600,000        600,000        600,000        600,000        600,000        3,600,000         600,000              

Drains 370,000        1,000,000     500,000        500,000        500,000        500,000        500,000        500,000        3,000,000         500,000              

Drains-Debt Service 255,830        260,930        265,000        270,000        275,000        280,000        285,000        285,000        1,660,000         276,667              

Parks Development 736,320        2,896,000     2,000,000     2,000,000     2,000,000     2,000,000     2,000,000     2,000,000     12,000,000       2,000,000          

Fire Vehicles 800,000        400,000        400,000        400,000        400,000        400,000        400,000        400,000        2,400,000         400,000              

Subdivision Improvements 996,000        850,000        800,000        800,000        800,000        800,000        800,000        800,000        4,800,000         800,000              

Library/Museum Improv. 710,650        581,000        550,000        500,000        650,000        675,000        750,000        750,000        3,875,000         645,833              

Hike and Bike Trails 750,000        750,000        750,000        750,000        750,000        750,000        4,500,000         750,000              

Total Capital Expenditures 26,004,460   29,741,940   21,605,200   22,763,488   23,246,603   23,221,687   21,428,543   21,467,575   133,733,096     22,288,849        

Cash Balance 1,626,900     1,626,900     1,626,900     1,626,900     1,626,900     1,626,900     1,626,900     1,626,900     

 
Attorney General for the November election.  The first time that the 
question could be put on the ballot would be sometime in 2008. 

 The city is already subject to the Headlee Amendment which requires 
local voter approval for increasing tax rates above the rates authorized by 
law or Charter; and, requires rolling back or decreasing millage rates so 
the total amount of taxes paid on existing property increases by no more 
than the rate of inflation during periods when property values increase by 
more than the rate of inflation.  It should be noted that the City is levying .4 



 

 

mills less than the Headlee Amendment allows.  Additionally, the August 
16, 2007 edition of the Detroit Free Press included an article that notes “a 
state panel changed the rules regarding home foreclosures to allow sales  

 
Table 4 

Possible Impact of Mill Rate Freeze on Capital Construction Fund 

 

2006/2007 2007/2008 2008/2009 2009/2010 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014 Totals

Revenues

Taxes 8,291,000       8,440,000       8,136,160       7,843,258       7,560,901       7,288,709       7,026,315       6,773,368       44,628,710      

Federal Grants 305,000           -                   2,200,000       2,650,000       2,590,000       759,800           732,447           8,932,247        

State Grants 1,409,000       4,219,000       -                    

Contributions-Local 245,000           -                    

Charges for Service 150,000           75,000             72,300             75,000             75,000             75,000             75,000             72,300             444,600            

Fines and Forefeitures 246,180           237,318           237,318            

Interest and Rents 607,200           807,200           778,141           650,000           650,000           650,000           650,000           626,600           4,004,741        

Other Revenue 335,260           -                   150,000           150,000           150,000           150,000           144,600           744,600            

Operating Transfer In 14,907,000     15,709,560     11,568,000     11,568,000     11,568,000     11,568,000     11,568,000     11,151,552     68,991,552      

-                    

Total Revenues 26,004,460     29,741,940     20,791,918     22,486,258     22,653,901     22,321,709     20,229,115     19,500,867     127,983,768    

2006/2007 2007/2008 2008/2009 2009/2010 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014 Totals Ave. Per Year

Expenditures

Departmental Capital Outlay 10,980,330     6,216,010       2,124,559       3,304,873       3,475,252       4,116,709       3,424,829       3,400,000       19,846,222      3,307,704         

City Hall Improvements 2,078,000       4,288,000       750,000           1,000,000       500,000           250,000           250,000           250,000           3,000,000        500,000            

Major Roads 6,415,700       10,150,000     9,959,000       10,000,000     10,500,000     9,450,000       8,619,000       8,500,000       57,028,000      9,504,667         

Local Roads 2,061,630       2,500,000       2,500,000       2,500,000       2,500,000       2,500,000       2,500,000       2,500,000       15,000,000      2,500,000         

Sidewalks 600,000           600,000           600,000           600,000           600,000           600,000           600,000           600,000           3,600,000        600,000            

Drains 370,000           1,000,000       500,000           500,000           500,000           500,000           500,000           500,000           3,000,000        500,000            

Drains-Debt Service 255,830           260,930           265,000           270,000           275,000           280,000           285,000           285,000           1,660,000        276,667            

Parks Development 736,320           2,896,000       1,593,359       1,861,385       1,703,649       2,000,000       1,350,286       1,115,867       9,624,546        1,604,091         

Fire Vehicles 800,000           400,000           400,000           400,000           400,000           400,000           400,000           400,000           2,400,000        400,000            

Subdivision Improvements 996,000           850,000           800,000           800,000           800,000           800,000           800,000           800,000           4,800,000        800,000            

Library/Museum Improv. 710,650           581,000           550,000           500,000           650,000           675,000           750,000           500,000           3,625,000        604,167            

Hike and Bike Trails 750,000           750,000           750,000           750,000           750,000           650,000           4,400,000        733,333            

Total Capital Expenditures 26,004,460     29,741,940     20,791,918     22,486,258     22,653,901     22,321,709     20,229,115     19,500,867     127,983,768    21,330,628       

Cash Balance 1,626,900       1,626,900       1,626,900       1,626,900       1,626,900       1,626,900       1,626,900       1,626,900       

 



 

 

of foreclosed homes—usually at depressed prices—to be part of the mix 
in figuring assessments, a move that could help drive down property 
assessments in some communities as much as 8%”. 

 The city is also subject to Proposal A which defined a special class of 
property—Homestead.  Homestead is treated differently than the other 
classes of property as these properties are exempt from the local school 
tax of 18 mills.  No other class has this exemption.  Schools were provided 
with state funds, generated by the state sales tax to offset the loss of 
property tax revenues. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 

 The city’s property tax levy was 9.48 mills from 1996 through 2001, was 
decreased to 9.45 mills from 2002 through 2005, and was decreased to 
9.43 mills in 2006.  The Council recently lowered the mill rate to 9.28 mills 
by reducing the Refuse and Recycling millage by .15 mills.  While the 
assessed value of properties grew, so did the local, regional and national 
economies.  While the city was holding mill levies fairly constant, the state 
legislature was busy mandating new programs without funding, and 
reducing the city’s shared revenues by over $8 million dollars over the 
past 8 years.  The legislature continued their pattern of usurping Home 
Rule statutes by imposing laws that reduce local control of rights-of-way 
and lowering cable television franchise fees commensurately. 

 Through all of these reductions in funding and constant mill rates, staff has 
continued to provide excellent services, maintain extraordinary bond 
ratings, and win budgeting and comprehensive annual financial reporting 
awards for the last 10 years.  The most significant fact is that General 
Fund expenditures for 2006-2007 were reduced by 2.4% 

 The further the city gets behind in maintaining infrastructure, the more 
chance there is that at some point in time, the city will have to consider 
issuing bonds to make essential upgrades.  As example of potential fiscal 
impacts of bond issuance to pay for infrastructure, a $30 million dollar 
bond issue with an amortization period of 25 years could carry a total 
repayment cost of approximately $56 million.  The most deleterious part of 
a bond issue to pay for capital improvements is that the infrastructure will 
be worn out and need replacement prior to the time the debt on the bonds 
is paid. 

 The most logical question to ask is what impact local property taxes have 
on personal income.  Are city property taxes at such exorbitant levels that 
they cause a burden to home and property owners?  Table 5 shows the 
impacts of ad valorem property taxes on typical Troy taxpayers.  Table 5 
shows the total impact of the city’s levy of 9.28 mills on properties of 
various values.  Annual property taxes range from $601 for properties 
valued at $150,000 to $2,606.43 for properties valued at $650,000.  Using 
a real estate industry standard formula for purchasing a residence that 
states that families can usually afford to pay 25% of their gross incomes 



 

 

for house payments, staff has calculated that the typical property in Troy 
uses about 1.4% of annual income for payment of property taxes levied by 
the City of Troy. 

 There still seems to be some confusion as to what taxes are being paid by 
property owners in Troy.   Most people look at their tax statement and 
since it comes from the City of Troy make an assumption that Troy gets all 
of the taxes that have to be paid.  In reality, the city gets about 26.5% of 
taxes paid.  Other taxing entities that get a various percentage of tax 
dollars include:  
 

 The Troy School District at 27.2%,  
 Oakland County government at 13.3%;  
 Oakland Community College at 4.5%;  
 The Intermediate School District at 9.6%;  
 S.M.A.R.T at 1.7%; and,  
 State Education at 17.2% of the total tax bill.   

 
 This breakdown means that education gets 58.5% of all funds 

collected.  It also means that of the total tax bill, 73.5% goes to other 
taxing entities that have operations inside the City of Troy. 

 The truest policy decision should focus on the legacy that the City Council 
will leave to the City of Troy if this amendment should pass.  There are 
those who advocate the political ideology that cutting taxes will starve the 
beast—the beast being government.  Those who follow this ideology 
advocate spending government funds on only certain priorities, even 
though citizen surveys indicate that people have expectations of the best 
service possible and who want a comprehensive city at a low price.  Over 
many years, city staff has done a phenomenal job in maintaining peak 
service delivery within the funds that have been appropriated.  This has 
been proven time and time again by citizen surveys that show over 94% of 
those citizens responding feel that services are good to excellent.  Staff 
has shown that there are about $459 million dollars in unfunded capital 
improvements that should be done over the next 20 years.  The answer to 
solving this challenge does not come in cutting taxes.  It comes with 
careful fiscal planning and in discussions with the property owners of Troy.  

 Staff has attached several spreadsheets showing the true impact of 
property taxes on property owners.  The first, Table 5, shows the impact of 
all 9.28 mills on Troy property owners.  The average value of a single 
family house in Troy is about $300,000.  This means that the owner of a 
property valued at $300,000 pays $1,202.97 in City of Troy taxes, or about 
$3.30 per day. 

 Table 6 shows property tax impact removing the Refuse and Recycling 
mill rate.  The owner of property valued at $300,000 would pay $1,114.83 
in property taxes, or about $3.05 per day. 

 Table 7 shows the impact of only those programs, projects and functions 
that are a part of the General Fund.  The 6.50 mills that pays for such 



 

 

services as Police, Fire, streets, parks and recreation, library/museum, 
administration, etc. costs the owner of a $300,000 property $842.60 per 
year, or about $2.31 per day. 

 Table 8 shows the impact of the Capital Construction Fund on property 
owners in the City.  The owner of property valued at $300,000 pays about 
$207.41, or about 57 cents per day for capital construction projects.  

 
In conclusion, staff hopes that Council shares the same pride that we do in the 
fact that we are rated (just to name a few): 
 

 The fifth safest city in the United States with a population over 75,000 
 The second highest rated library in the State 
 The third ranked motor pool in North America 
 One of five entrepreneurial cities in Michigan as rated by the University in 

Michigan 
 The third highest assessed valuation in the state (it should be noted that 

we were second, but Sterling Heights has moved past Troy) 
 One of three governmental units in Michigan and one of 60 organizations 

nationwide that maintains a AAA bond rating from all bond rating agencies 
 Recipient of 8 straight Budgeting Awards given by the Government 

Finance Officers Association 
 Recipient of 10 straight Comprehensive Annual Financial Report Awards 

given by the Government Finance Officers Association 
 
The previous awards were listed solely to show that it takes resources that are 
provided by the home and business owners of the community to make a model 
city.  The awards also point out that the City of Troy has one of the most 
conscientious, hard working and dedicated staffs of any city in the United States.  
City staff understands that there are economic challenges and fully understands 
that close scrutiny has to be given to each and every expenditure.  Staff has an 
extremely significant stake in the future of the community and we take our jobs 
very seriously. 
 
The economy, demographics and the general nature of this community, region 
and state will continue to change.   While the future seems uncertain, the Council 
has to concentrate on policies that set the pathways to the future by focusing on 
developing plans and policies that are flexible enough to meet the next series of 
changes that will face Troy. Now is the time to understand that government or 
business, interest groups or other interested parties cannot individually meet the 
challenges of the future. Instead, if this city, region and state are going to 
succeed, all interested parties will have to form partnerships that find the way to 
the future.   
 
Other states have tried property tax freezes through such initiatives as the 
Taxpayers Bill of Rights (TABOR) in Colorado and Proposition 13 in California 
and have seen disastrous results in terms of maintaining infrastructure.  The 



 

 

Colorado Department of Transportation has stated that they can no longer afford 
to build new roadways and has taken a stance of road maintenance only.  The 
results have been that all new expressways in the Denver Metropolitan area are 
now toll roads.  As an example of new fees without public input, E470 that circles 
the east side of Denver from Thornton to Parker, a distance of 42 miles costs 
$9.75 (one-way), which is about 3 days of property tax payments for the owner of 
a $300,000 home in Troy.  Additionally, the voters of Colorado also had to vote to 
suspend TABOR for three years in order to give CDOT adequate funding to fix 
major highways in the state. 
 
Michigan Futures completed a study that provides insight as to providing a near 
term and longer term roadmap to the future for the State.   The most serious of 
the principles states that “an investment in higher education, research and 
innovation, while providing our institutions with the capacity to become more 
agile and market smart”.  The report also indicates that tax reductions are 
not the key to the future  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
Table 5 

Total City of Troy Property Tax Impact 
 
Property Value 150,000$      175,000$ 200,000$ 250,000$  275,000$   300,000$   350,000$   400,000$   450,000$   500,000$   650,000$  

Assessment Ratio 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21%

Taxable Value 64,815$        75,618$   86,420$   108,025$  118,828$   129,630$   151,235$   172,840$   194,445$   216,050$   280,865$  

City Property Tax Rate (2006-07) 0.00928 0.00928 0.00928 0.00928 0.00928 0.00928 0.00928 0.00928 0.00928 0.00928 0.00928

Annual Property Taxes-City Only 601.48$        701.73$   801.98$   1,002.47$ 1,102.72$  1,202.97$  1,403.46$  1,603.96$  1,804.45$  2,004.94$  2,606.43$ 

Monthly Property Tax Equivalent 50.12$          58.48$     66.83$     83.54$      91.89$       100.25$     116.96$     133.66$     150.37$     167.08$     217.20$    

Daily Property Tax Equivalent 1.65$            1.92$       2.20$       2.75$        3.02$         3.30$         3.85$         4.39$         4.94$         5.49$         7.14$        

Daily Cost/Person Tax Equiv. 0.61$            0.71$       0.82$       1.02$        1.12$         1.23$         1.43$         1.63$         1.84$         2.04$         2.65$        

Est. Monthly House Payment 900$             1,050$     1,200$     1,500$      1,650$       1,800$       2,100$       2,400$       2,700$       3,000$       3,900$      

Est. Yearly House Payment 10,800$        12,600$   14,400$   18,000$    19,800$     21,600$     25,200$     28,800$     32,400$     36,000$     46,800$    

Est. Annual Household Income 43,200$        50,000$   57,600$   72,000$    80,000$     86,400$     100,000$   115,200$   129,600$   144,000$   187,200$  

% of Income for House Payment 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25%

Percent Property Taxes of

Annual Income 1.39% 1.40% 1.39% 1.39% 1.38% 1.39% 1.40% 1.39% 1.39% 1.39% 1.39%

Examples of Service Costs--Daily Basis

Daily Cost of Police Protection 0.26              0.31         0.35         0.44          0.48           0.53           0.62           0.70           0.79           0.88           1.14          

Daily Cost of Fire Protection 0.04              0.05         0.05         0.07          0.07           0.08           0.09           0.11           0.12           0.13           0.17          

Daily Cost of Library/Museum 0.06              0.07         0.08         0.10          0.11           0.12           0.13           0.15           0.17           0.19           0.25          

Daily Cost of Parks & Rec 0.10              0.12         0.13         0.16          0.18           0.20           0.23           0.26           0.30           0.33           0.43          

Daily Cost of Administration 0.02              0.03         0.03         0.04          0.04           0.05           0.05           0.06           0.07           0.08           0.10          

Total Cost of All General Fund 0.74$        0.87$    0.99$    1.24$     1.36$      1.48$      1.73$      1.98$      2.22$      2.47$      3.21$    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Table 6—Property Tax For Services Excluding Refuse and Recycling Fund 

 
Property Value 150,000$      175,000$ 200,000$ 250,000$  275,000$   300,000$   350,000$   400,000$   450,000$   500,000$   650,000$  

Assessment Ratio 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21%

Taxable Value 64,815$        75,618$   86,420$   108,025$  118,828$   129,630$   151,235$   172,840$   194,445$   216,050$   280,865$  

City Property Tax Rate (2006-07) 0.0086 0.0086 0.0086 0.0086 0.0086 0.0086 0.0086 0.0086 0.0086 0.0086 0.0086

Annual Property Taxes-City Only 557.41$        650.31$   743.21$   929.02$    1,021.92$  1,114.82$  1,300.62$  1,486.42$  1,672.23$  1,858.03$  2,415.44$ 

Monthly Property Tax Equivalent 46.45$          54.19$     61.93$     77.42$      85.16$       92.90$       108.39$     123.87$     139.35$     154.84$     201.29$    

Daily Property Tax Equivalent 1.53$            1.78$       2.04$       2.55$        2.80$         3.05$         3.56$         4.07$         4.58$         5.09$         6.62$        

Daily Cost/Person Tax Equiv. 0.57$            0.66$       0.76$       0.95$        1.04$         1.14$         1.32$         1.51$         1.70$         1.89$         2.46$        

Est. Monthly House Payment 900$             1,050$     1,200$     1,500$      1,650$       1,800$       2,100$       2,400$       2,700$       3,000$       3,900$      

Est. Yearly House Payment 10,800$        12,600$   14,400$   18,000$    19,800$     21,600$     25,200$     28,800$     32,400$     36,000$     46,800$    

Est. Annual Household Income 43,200$        50,000$   57,600$   72,000$    80,000$     86,400$     100,000$   115,200$   129,600$   144,000$   187,200$  

% of Income for House Payment 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25%

Percent Property Taxes of

Annual Income 1.29% 1.30% 1.29% 1.29% 1.28% 1.29% 1.30% 1.29% 1.29% 1.29% 1.29%

Examples of Service Costs--Daily Basis

Daily Cost of Police Protection 0.24              0.29         0.33         0.41          0.45           0.49           0.57           0.65           0.73           0.81           1.06          

Daily Cost of Fire Protection 0.04              0.04         0.05         0.06          0.07           0.07           0.09           0.10           0.11           0.12           0.16          

Daily Cost of Library/Museum 0.05              0.06         0.07         0.09          0.10           0.11           0.12           0.14           0.16           0.18           0.23          

Daily Cost of Parks & Rec 0.09              0.11         0.12         0.15          0.17           0.18           0.21           0.24           0.27           0.31           0.40          

Daily Cost of Administration 0.02              0.02         0.03         0.04          0.04           0.04           0.05           0.06           0.06           0.07           0.09          

Total Cost of All General Fund 0.69$        0.80$    0.92$    1.15$     1.26$      1.37$      1.60$      1.83$      2.06$      2.29$      2.98$    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Table 7 
Property Tax Impact of Services Funding in the General Fund 

 
Property Value 150,000$      175,000$ 200,000$ 250,000$  275,000$   300,000$   350,000$   400,000$   450,000$   500,000$   650,000$  

Assessment Ratio 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21%

Taxable Value 64,815$        75,618$   86,420$   108,025$  118,828$   129,630$   151,235$   172,840$   194,445$   216,050$   280,865$  

City Property Tax Rate (2006-07) 0.0065 0.0065 0.0065 0.0065 0.0065 0.0065 0.0065 0.0065 0.0065 0.0065 0.0065

Annual Property Taxes-City Only 421.30$        491.51$   561.73$   702.16$    772.38$     842.60$     983.03$     1,123.46$  1,263.89$  1,404.33$  1,825.62$ 

Monthly Property Tax Equivalent 35.11$          40.96$     46.81$     58.51$      64.36$       70.22$       81.92$       93.62$       105.32$     117.03$     152.14$    

Daily Property Tax Equivalent 1.15$            1.35$       1.54$       1.92$        2.12$         2.31$         2.69$         3.08$         3.46$         3.85$         5.00$        

Daily Cost/Person Tax Equiv. 0.43$            0.50$       0.57$       0.72$        0.79$         0.86$         1.00$         1.14$         1.29$         1.43$         1.86$        

Est. Monthly House Payment 900$             1,050$     1,200$     1,500$      1,650$       1,800$       2,100$       2,400$       2,700$       3,000$       3,900$      

Est. Yearly House Payment 10,800$        12,600$   14,400$   18,000$    19,800$     21,600$     25,200$     28,800$     32,400$     36,000$     46,800$    

Est. Annual Household Income 43,200$        50,000$   57,600$   72,000$    80,000$     86,400$     100,000$   115,200$   129,600$   144,000$   187,200$  

% of Income for House Payment 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25%

Percent Property Taxes of

Annual Income 0.98% 0.98% 0.98% 0.98% 0.97% 0.98% 0.98% 0.98% 0.98% 0.98% 0.98%

Examples of Service Costs--Daily Basis

Daily Cost of Police Protection 0.18              0.22         0.25         0.31          0.34           0.37           0.43           0.49           0.55           0.62           0.80          

Daily Cost of Fire Protection 0.03              0.03         0.04         0.05          0.05           0.06           0.06           0.07           0.08           0.09           0.12          

Daily Cost of Library/Museum 0.04              0.05         0.05         0.07          0.07           0.08           0.09           0.11           0.12           0.13           0.18          

Daily Cost of Parks & Rec 0.07              0.08         0.09         0.12          0.13           0.14           0.16           0.18           0.21           0.23           0.30          

Daily Cost of Administration 0.02              0.02         0.02         0.03          0.03           0.03           0.04           0.04           0.05           0.05           0.07          

Total Cost of All General Fund 0.52$        0.61$    0.69$    0.87$     0.95$      1.04$      1.21$      1.39$      1.56$      1.73$      2.25$    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

Table 8 
Property Tax Impact of the Capital Construction Fund 

 
Property Value 150,000$      175,000$ 200,000$ 250,000$  275,000$   300,000$   350,000$   400,000$   450,000$   500,000$   650,000$  

Assessment Ratio 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21% 43.21%

Taxable Value 64,815$        75,618$   86,420$   108,025$  118,828$   129,630$   151,235$   172,840$   194,445$   216,050$   280,865$  

City Property Tax Rate (2006-07) 0.0016 0.0016 0.0016 0.0016 0.0016 0.0016 0.0016 0.0016 0.0016 0.0016 0.0016

Annual Property Taxes-City Only 103.70$        120.99$   138.27$   172.84$    190.12$     207.41$     241.98$     276.54$     311.11$     345.68$     449.38$    

Monthly Property Tax Equivalent 8.64$            10.08$     11.52$     14.40$      15.84$       17.28$       20.16$       23.05$       25.93$       28.81$       37.45$      

Daily Property Tax Equivalent 0.28$            0.33$       0.38$       0.47$        0.52$         0.57$         0.66$         0.76$         0.85$         0.95$         1.23$        

Daily Cost/Person Tax Equiv. 0.11$            0.12$       0.14$       0.18$        0.19$         0.21$         0.25$         0.28$         0.32$         0.35$         0.46$        

Est. Monthly House Payment 900$             1,050$     1,200$     1,500$      1,650$       1,800$       2,100$       2,400$       2,700$       3,000$       3,900$      

Est. Yearly House Payment 10,800$        12,600$   14,400$   18,000$    19,800$     21,600$     25,200$     28,800$     32,400$     36,000$     46,800$    

Est. Annual Household Income 43,200$        50,000$   57,600$   72,000$    80,000$     86,400$     100,000$   115,200$   129,600$   144,000$   187,200$  

% of Income for House Payment 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25%

Percent Property Taxes of

Annual Income 0.24% 0.24% 0.24% 0.24% 0.24% 0.24% 0.24% 0.24% 0.24% 0.24% 0.24%

Examples of Service Costs--Daily Basis

Daily Cost of Police Protection 0.05              0.05         0.06         0.08          0.08           0.09           0.11           0.12           0.14           0.15           0.20          

Daily Cost of Fire Protection 0.01              0.01         0.01         0.01          0.01           0.01           0.02           0.02           0.02           0.02           0.03          

Daily Cost of Library/Museum 0.01              0.01         0.01         0.02          0.02           0.02           0.02           0.03           0.03           0.03           0.04          

Daily Cost of Parks & Rec 0.02              0.02         0.02         0.03          0.03           0.03           0.04           0.05           0.05           0.06           0.07          

Daily Cost of Administration 0.00              0.00         0.01         0.01          0.01           0.01           0.01           0.01           0.01           0.01           0.02          

Total Cost of All General Fund 0.13$        0.15$    0.17$    0.21$     0.23$      0.26$      0.30$      0.34$      0.38$      0.43$      0.55$    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

September 10, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested   

 

campbellld
Text Box
L-01


	AGENDA: September 10, 2007
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 No Presentations

	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Rezoning Application (File Number: Z-727) – Office Use, West Side of Rochester Road, South of De Etta – 6493 Rochester, Section 3 – R-1B to O-1
	C-2 Concept Development Plan Approval – Big Beaver Place Planned Unit Development (PUD-008), North Side of Big Beaver, West of John R, Section 24 – Currently Zoned R-1D (One Family Residential) District
	C-3 Concept Development Plan Approval – The Oasis at Centennial Park Planned Unit Development (PUD-006), South Side of Long Lake and West Side of John R, Section 14 – Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District
	C-4 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 230) – Articles X and XVIII – Wireless Communication Towers on School Property in the R-1A through R-1E (One Family Residential) and C-F (Community Facilities) Districts

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 No Postponed Items

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:
	a) National Save a Life Month – September, 2007
	b) National Autism Awareness Month – September, 2007

	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – HAVEN Program
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – Troy Youth Assistance
	c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10:  Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend Funds on Council Members’ Travel Expenses – National League of Cities (NLC) Congress of Cities & Exposition
	d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder Contract 07-7 – Northwood,  Maple to Maplelawn Mill and Overlay
	e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – Common Ground

	E-5 Application for Transfer of SDD and SDM License for Atlas Blue Sky, Inc.
	E-6 Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions – Congregation Shir Tikvah
	E-7 Sole Source – East Jordan Iron Works – Complete Hydrant and Valve Repair Parts
	E-8 Request for Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard, Project No. 02.204.5 Parcel #50 – Sidwell #88-20-02-228-028 – Glenda M. McDowell
	E-9 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard, Project No. 02.204.5 Parcel #61 and #62 – Sidwell #88-20-01-300-02 and #88-20-...
	E-10 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement – 4265 and 4305 Rochester Road – Sidwell #88-20-15-426-053 and -054 – Aurelia A. Kwitt Revocable Living Trust
	E-11 Private Agreement for Mitchell’s Ocean Club Restaurant – Project No. 07.923.3

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Downtown Development Authority b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Animal Control Appeal Board; Ethnic Issues Advisory Board; Historic Dist...

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	Street Vacation (File Number SV-32-B) – Lincoln Drive, West of John R, South of Big Beaver, Zoned PUD #7, Section 26 – September 17, 2007

	G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for Placement on the Agenda
	H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1 No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Downtown Development Authority/Final – May 16, 2007
	Youth Council/Final – May 23, 2007
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – June 11, 2007
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – July 17, 2007
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – July 24, 2007
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – August 1, 2007
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – August 13, 2007
	Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – August 14, 2007
	Planning Commission/Draft – August 14, 2007
	Planning Commission/Final – August 14, 2007
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – August 21, 2007
	Youth Council/Draft – August 22, 2007
	Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – September 4, 2007

	J-2 Department Reports:  None Submitted
	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter to Officer Harrison from Kym Worth in Appreciation of the Troy Police Hockey Clinic
	Letter of Appreciation to Tim Richnak from Mary Ann Bernardi Commending the Efforts of the Public Works Staff
	Letter of Appreciation to Ann Blizzard from Mary Zimmerman Regarding the Professional and Kind Aquatic Center Staff
	Letter of Thanks to Jennifer Lawson and Steve Vandette from Sandshores Area Lake Residents and Lake Charnwood Property Owners Association Regarding the Your Lake and You Publication
	Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Judith Ryder Commending Officer Haddad

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted
	J-5  Calendar

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 Possible Trends

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested

	ADJOURNMENT



